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Universal Health jServices, Inc. is one of the
largest and most experie-fnced hospital managemént
companies in the nation. Wa have focused our efforts
on managing acute care rjwspitals, behavioral health
hospitals, and ambulator;/ surgery and radiation

oncology centers.

We believe hospitals will remain the focal point

of the health care deliver)E‘/ system. We have built our

success by remaining cor§11mitted to a program of rational
growth around our core b?usinesses and seeking

opportunities complemen:ta y to them. The future of
our industry remains brigijﬂ or those whose focus is

providing quality health cére on a cost-effective basis.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ' 2004

2003

PERCENTAGE
CHANGE

2002

NET REVENUES $ 3,938,320,000

NeT INCOME $ 169,492,000
EARNINGS PER SHARE (DILUTED) $ 2.75
PATIENT DAYS 2,827,859
ADMISSIONS 440,934
AVERAGE NUMBER OF LICENSED BEDS 11,458

Net Revenues
{in millions}

$ 3,391,506,000
$ 199,269,000
$ 3.20

2,509,408
397,984
10,119

Earnings Per Share

{diluted)

$3.40

$2.98

$2.55

$2.13

$1.70

$1.28

$.85

$.43
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$ 2,991,919,000
$ 175,361,000

S 2.74
2,338,377
372,415
9,636

Admissions

{in thousands)

403

345

288
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115
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The results this past ye:ar Qid
not meet our expectatio;ns .
While revenues, admissions.
and development activn:y
were robust, earnings dlid not
keep pace with our 2003 results.
Net revenues for the!: year
ended December 31, 2004,
were $3.9 billion, a 16%
increase from the prior year.
Net income for the yeari
though, decreased 15 percent
from 2003 to $169 million or
$2.75 per share (dilutedj). ‘By
year-end 2004, sharehoyd‘ars'
equity increased 12% to) $1.2
billion and long-term debt
declined to $852 million.
The past year has been a
challenging one for both UHS
and America's hospital industry.
Throughout the nation,
hospitals have experienfce d
a surge in bad debt and
charity care as the numjber of
uninsured patients com;in ed
to rise. UHS's acute care bad

|
debt has grown to almost

ten percent of our totah
revenue, slightly less 1ih AN
the industry average, bL?Jt
still a significant increasie.
With increased employrﬁne nt
in the nation, we expect bad
debt expense to stabiliie in
2005. Still, indigent patiients
and other forms of non-!pay—
ment will continue to répne-

sent a challenging issué for

hospitals, which, at times, are
obligated to provide serﬁvi‘ces
regardless of an individijal’s
ability to pay. ‘
Additionally, changes
in benefit plan design
have shifted more of th
financial burden for payment
of hospital bills to the
employee or the consumer.
These changes have Sérved
10 reduce demand at hospitals
throughout the coumry.'

49

In the past, hospitals could
reach their revenue goals by
building patient volume:. This,
too, has become more diffi-
cult as physicians have grown
increasingly competitive with
hospitals by establishing
limited-service “specialty”
hospitals, outpatient surgery
centers, diagnostic centers,
and other facilities that tend
to attract the more profitable
patients from existing acute
care facilities.

As a result of these
trends, acute care hospitals
are facing a more competitive
environment in which to
operate.

Despite these recent
challenges, the hospital
management industry remains
fundamentally sound, with
predictable and growing
demand, limited technology
risk, high cash flow gerneration,
and a position at the center
of our health care delivery
system.

In addition, long-term
demographic trends are
favorable for the indusiry.

The 50+ age group is the
fastest-growing segment of
the U.S. population, increasing
at more than triple the rate of
the 20-34 age group. And

as people age, the nurnber

of annual days they spend

in the hospital steadily increases,
rising from approximatsly 565
per 1000 population in the
45-64 age category, to 1469 in
the 65-74 year-old category, to
more than 3700 in the 85+
category. As a result, the
acute care hospital industry is
expected to experience an
increase in demand from this
aging population for many
years to come,

Uncommon Strengths

while UHS is subject to

the current challenges of

the hospital management
industry, we have uncommon
strengths that will help us
weather these challenges
better than many of our
peers. They include:

* Geographic Positioning:
UHS currently operates facilities
in 24 states, the District of
Columbia, Puerto Rico and
France. Our strategy of
locating in areas of above-
average population growth
offers the potential for
better admissions growth
over the long term.

* Dominant Local
Franchises: UHS hospitals are
market leaders, with 94 percent
of our facilities ranking first
or second in their respective
markets.

+ Growth-Oriented
Investments: UHS continues
to invest in new facilities and
technologies that attract more
patients and health care
professionals. In the past year,
we have built new facilities
or significant addtions at
several of our hospitals, and
have added new technologies
such as the Picture Archival
Communication System
(PACS), which allows radiology
images to be viewed via
personal computers.

* Premier Reputation:
UHS has earned an outstand-
ing reputation for providing
high-quality health care at a
reasonable cost — and for
being an excellent corporate
citizen. we continue to
strengthen this reputation
through our vigorous quality
initiatives.




¢ Strong Financial
Position and Cash Flow:
UHS remains one of the only
invesiment-grade credit rated
companies in the hospital
management industry. And
we have consistently used
our strong cash flow to make
strategic acquisitions and
reinvest in our facilities.

Awards and Recognition

The many strengths of UHS
have not gone unnoticed
within the health care industry
and the financial community.

UHS has been named
one of the best big companies
in America for profitability and
growth by the FORBES
Platinum List of 400 in 2003
and 2004. And. our company
was named one of the “100
Best Places to Work in 18" by
Computerworld magazine in
1997, 1998, and again in 2004

Our individual hospitals
also continued to win recognition.
For example, in its annual
ranking of the nation's “100
Top Hospitals,” Modern
Healthcare magazine listed
wellington Regional Medical
Center, our facility in West
Palm Beach, Florida, for the
third consecutive year.

Investing In Our Future

with confidence in the future
of our company and our
industry, UHS continues to
build new capacity and new
services nationwide.

For instance, the demand
for behavioral health care
nationwide has significantly
increased over the past
several years, vet the number
of beds per capita has
declined. At UHS behavioral
health facilities, occupancy
exceeded 80 percent in 2004,
and some facilities have been

unable to admit patients due
to a shortage of beds in
certain programs.

To address this situation,
our Behavioral Health Division
has undertaken an aggressive
effort to increase its capacity.
Our design and construction
teams are working hard to
fast-track this important
initiative., Over the next three
years we will be adding close
to 600 beds.

This will include new
capacity at Lakeside Behavioral
Health System in Memphis,
Tennessee: North Star
Behavioral Health System in
Palmer, Alaska: The Bridgeway
Hospital in North Little Rock,
Arkansas; and Two Rivers
Psychiatric Hospital in Kansas
City, Missouri.

In our Acute Care Division,
the Fort Duncan Medical
Center, Ceniennial Hills
Hospital, Temecula Hospital,
and Paimdale Regional Medical
Center are just a few of the
major projects that are under-
way o meet increasing
demand in the years ahead.

In addition, our 2004
acquisitions such as Corona
Regional Medical Center in
Corona, California; Pendleton
Methodist Memorial Hospital
and Lakeland Medical Center
in New Orleans; Stonington
Institute in Stonington,
Connecticut; and four
behavioral facilities in
Georgia, Arkansas, Kentucky,
and Nevada, further enhance
our ability to serve more
patients nationwide.

A Steady Course

To manage in the current
environment, UHS has
continued to focus on
expansion, service, cost
control, and the recruitment
and retention of qualified

nurses and other personnel.

We plan to maintain
the steady course that has
served us so well for more
than a quartercentury. That
is, we will continue 10 deliver
quality health care at a
reasonable cost. focusing on
markets with above-average
population growth. And, we
will continue to invest in our
facilities and our people so
that our hospitals will be the
preferred providers in their
respective communities.

we believe that this
course offers our company
and its shareholders the best
prospects for long-term
growth and profitability.

Wwe thank you for being
our shareholders, and pledge
to do everything possible to
achieve positive results on
your behalf in the months and
years ahead.
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ACUTE CARE DIVIS|ON

The past year was
not an easy one in the
hospital management

industry. But UHS is

meeting the challenges
of this difficult envirbn-

ment, and s positio:ned

for continued growt

UHS holds a strong

h.

1
i

position as America’s
third-largest hospita

management company,

) |
with more than 40 acute
care facilities located|in

the United States and

France. And in 2004,

our consistent hosp:mal

management stratefgy
continued to yield p})ositive
results. This strateg)/

focuses on:

i
1
i

o Building or acquiring
hospitals in areas of
above-average population
growth

o Continually investing
in our existing hospitals
through new facilities,
technologies, and health
care services

o Delivering high-quality
care to all patients

o Creating regional health
care networks in
order to become
a dominant
provider within
the community

o Building
strong relation-

ships with

communities
and health care

professionals

Examples of all of these
strategic pillars can be
found in the highlights

of 2004.

Expanding Our Portfolio

Targeted acquisitions are a

core component

of the UHS

strategy. We
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in 2004, poth in areas of
strong population growth.

In January, we acquired
Corona Regional Medical
Center, a 228-bed hospital
in Corona, California, near
Los Angeles.

Also in January, we
acquired a 90 percent
interest in both Pendleton
Memorial Methodist
Hospital, a 306-bed acute
care facility in East New
Orleans, Louisiana; and
Lakeland Medical Pavilion,

its affiliated outpatient

Coillly, TOHaiiltatluld,
and geriatric behavioral
health center. Methodist
is just ten miles from
our Chalmette Medical
Center, and the two
hospitals will benefit
from sharing resources,

group purchasing, and

other operating efficiencies.

Building for the Future

To meet increasing
demand and enhance the
quality of care, UHS also

engaged in a wide range

O Lotistiuctiionl dalrlau
expansion projects at its
existing acute care hospi-
tals across the country.

At Fort Duncan
Medical Center in Eagle
Pass, Texas, for example,
we broke ground on a $40
million project to replace
the existing hospital with
an entirely new facility.

In the Eastern region,
a new patient tower was
completed at wellingron

Regional

Medical
ok of
Center future-icok of
ort Dancan Medical

erter, Bagle Pass, TX
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in West Palm Beach|
|

Florida, and another patient

tower is under develop-
|
z
ment at Manatee Memorial
i
Hospital in Bradenton|

Florida.
Bradenton is alséa the
site of Lakewood Rénch
Medical Center, a bréemd-
new, 120-bed acute gcare
hospital and the ne\éyesT

|

member of the Manétee
i
Healthcare System. !

In the westerm reigion,
at valley Hospital Mei:dical
Center in Las Vegas, we
opened an expandeid
emergency critical cgare
center that includes ja|total
of 54 beds. This state:of-
the-art facility compris'es
two major treatment rooms

for patients with cardiac or

respiratory distress, ia rapid

freatment room, new

onsite x-ray equipmélznt,

and a decontamination
i

«

room for patients who
have been exposed to a
hazardous substance.,
Also in Las Vegas,
planning has begun for
construction of Centennial
Hills Hospital in the north-
western corner of the city.
This 176-bed facility will be
the fifth member of our
large and growing network
in the greater Las vegas
region, which remains the
nation's fastest-growing

major metropolitan area.

A i~ St

Through Technology

Technology plays a vital
role in improving the
quality and efficiency of
health care - while reducing
overall costs. And UHS
is one of the industry's
leading innovators in the
use of important new
medical technologies.
For example, the
Picture Archival
Ccommunication System
(PACS) enables medical
professionals (o view
radiology images such
as x-rays, CAT scans,
and magnetic resonance
imaging (MRI) images
through any personal
computer. As a result, it
allows more efficient
diagnosis and treatment,

regardless of where

F{?@m Lopez wes the
CEO ¢f e award-winning
8t Meny's

Medliee] Centier unil his
reeent o CEO
of Nerthwest Texes
System In
Ao, Teres
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are located.

A growing number
of existing UHS hospitals
have implemented the
PACS system, including
Aiken Regional Medical
Centers, Northwest Texas
Healthcare System,

The George Washington
University Hospital in
Washington, D.C.,
Manatee Memorial
Hospital, Lakewood
Ranch, wellington

Regional Medical

|
|
L
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Valley Medical Center.

Managing Costs

with revenues under
pressure industry-wide,
UHS worked even harder
to control costs.
Because of our
nationwide presence,
UHS benefits from
volume purchasing,
national contracts,
centralized technology

systems, and other

A AT AT B AT AL JAAl .

We also used our
purchasing power to
negotiate the most favor-
able terms with the leading
regional and national

managed care providers.

Focusing on Business

Development

Throughout
our network
of acute care
hospitals,

UHS has




RSV RiLale, G20 € WEITREER
Reglonal Medioal Center, West Paim
Boach, Fiortde, Weilngton has
agaln been seiesied as ons of fhe
nefion's 100 Top Hosplals, “kisa
ks to the quality of our hospiels
meanegement teerm, empleyaes and
. mediea] sz, says DiLalle.

energized its staff to support

business developmen%t.

i

For example. we
are working to further
strengthen our relationships
with medical professic nals
by offering the sewicés
and tacilities that help

them achieve their patient

care goals. In additioni,

believe that it will result in
a higher quality of care to
every patient.

The UHS Acute Care
Division comprises an
exceptional group of
hospitals, staffed by a
dedicated team of health
care professionals. lts

value is measured not

we are expanding the

only in its continued flow
list of services available of strong revenues and
in order to better meet profits, but in the thousands
the needs of each local of lives it enhances every
community. day of the year.

we believe that this

i ]
new focus will help UHS To (et replelyising

| Gonsirustion of & new

become an even stronger

presence in the communi-
&
espiail

ties it serves. And we
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BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH DIVISION

UHS operates the largest
behavioral health group of
any hospital management
company in the United
States, with a total of 49
facilities from Connecticut
to Alaska.

In 2004, our network
of behavioral hospitals
continued to grow, through
expansions, acquisitions,
strong admissions, and
the consistent pursuit of

quality care.

Expanding to Meet
Rising Demand

With same-store admis-

sions up six percent and

occupancy running
at 80 percent of capacity
in 2004, the Behavioral
Health Division continued
to add new capacity to
its existing facilities.
Examples of this

strategy include:

Lakeside Behavioral
Health System

At Lakeside Behavioral
Health System in
Memphis, Tennessee,
we replaced an aging
facility with a new,
state-of-the-art building.
Lakeside is now a
204-bed hospital that
provides psychiatric and
chemical dependency

treatment services

to geriatrics, adults,
adolescents, and children,
Oon a 37-acre campus.
Specialty programs include
an impaired professionals
program, a dual diagnosis
residential treatment
program for adolescents
ages 12-17, a nationally
recognized inpatient
suicide prevention
program, and two trauma
programs for adults and
adolescents.

In addition, Lakeside
offers assessment/referral
and intensive outpatient
services in two satellite
locations, and operates
two county alternative
schools and a private
school. Lakeside also

provides mobile




assessment servicesifor

o nine hospital emergency
NN

\,0 departments.

N The BridgeWay Hospital

&

R At the Bridgeway Hospital
' in North Little Rock,

Arkansas, UHS recentl

added 28 new patien}

beds to the existing fécility.

Nestled in a lush wo&ded
|

area, The Bridgeway jis

{
now a 98-bed private|

psychiatric hospital that
i
has earned a reputation for

excellence in helping

Leeaied in Nerth (e Rosk, Afensas,

The Bridgeiay (ospital ofier @ full FErge of
peyehiaNs eng substanes Hbuse TEElmem

senviees for ehieren, adolosesnts and aduils.
The hospitel resemtly adese 25 petient beds.
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patients resolve a wide
range of behavioral health
problems. Its inpatient
and outpatient services

include programs for

adults, children/adolescents.

neurobehavioral care, and
drug/alcohol treatment.
UHS also operates
the Rivendell Behavioral
Health Services of
Arkansas, in Benton, which

is currently planning to add

an adult treatment program.

North Star Behavioral
Health System

Alaska is a market of
increasing importance for

UHS, which operates the

three-facility North Star
Behavioral Health System.
Wwith 137 treatment
beds, North Star is already
Alaska’s largest behavioral
health provider, public or
private, and is growing
quickly. In Anchorage,
North Star's hospital offers
74 beds, while our nearby
residential treatment center
offers 34 beds. In Palmer,
North Star's residential
treatment center recently
added 20 new beds,
more than tripling its
previous capacity to 29.
Through these
outstanding facilities,
North Star provides a

comprehensive range of



behavioral health services
for youth, ages 5 through
17, including crisis
evaluation, acute hospital
stabilization, and long-term

residential treatment.

Two Rivers

Psychiatric Hospital

At Two Rivers Psychiatric
Hospital in Kansas City.,
Missouri, UHS has
completed an expansion
of 25 beds, bringing the
total to 105.

Known for its excellence
in comprehensive behavioral
health care, Two Rivers
Hospital offers multidisci-
plinary treatment in a
tranquil environment that

ensures safety and security.

The services at
Two Rivers include an
adolescent psychiatric
program, dual diagnosis
for substance abuse
combined with other
disorders, outpatient
programs, a program for
survivors of post-traumatic
stress, a neurobehavioral
program, and a traumatic

grief program.

High-Quality Acquisitions

In 2004, UHS acquired five
behavioral health facilities:
s Stonington
Institute, Stonington.
Connecticut
* Coastal Harbor
Treatment Center,

Savannah, Georgia

+ Rivendell Behavioral
Health Services of
Arkansas. Benton,
Arkansas

¢ Rivendell Behavioral
Health Services of
Kentucky, Bowling
Green, Kentucky

e Spring Mountain
Treatment Center,
Las Vegas, Nevada.

Each of the facilities

has a long, proud history
of providing quality care
in its respective market.
And we plan to continue
their traditions of

excellence by

investing in ongoing
improvements to
their facilities and

services.
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Keys to Success

UHS has established ah
exceptional track record
of profitable growth in

the behavioral health

category, which is widely

regarded as one of the

most challenging areas

of the health care marl%et.

i

The keys to our

success include:

employ proven approaches
that achieve real results
for our patients. As a
result, we have earned the
trust of patients, families,
and professionals in the
communities we serve.
Individualized
Treatment: To UHS,
every patient is a unique
individual who deserves

fully personalized

Decentralized Management:
UHS employs a decentral-
ized approach to hospital
management, allowing
local executives to make
the right decisions for their
facilities. For example,
key decisions regarding
services, treatment
modalities, and staffing
levels are made primarily

at the hospital level, with

%Q Quality Programs: At attention. Our professionals UHS headquarters staff

\ ]

© \\:1\\ each of its facilities, U}HS is take the time to understand providing support and

‘ TJ\ committed to delivering the needs of each patient guidance as needed. We

\\\Qe behavioral health services before prescribing and believe that this approach
R\\ of the highest quality, administering treatment. results in an entrepreneurial
e

| Our innovative programs By doing s0, we help management style, greater

% address a wide range of increase the likelihood of creativity, and the optimum
& d) behavioral issues, andi a positive outcome. quality of care for each

Pipkin oversses 11 UNS behavieral
heelth faciifes In the southern U.S., where

demend Is so strong (hat Rew beds are
aiiaDEnRRegiona

Viee Bresident, UHS

100% {flied within weeks = even days =
of thelr evellebiliy.

;
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community. In addition,
it allows our facilities to
adapt more quickly to
changing conditions in
their markets.

Stable Leadership:
Perhaps because of our
entrepreneurial approach,
UHS is fortunate to have
outstanding managers at
its behavioral health
facilities with exceptionally
long tenures. This results
in long-term decision-
making and consistency

of leadership.

PSYCHIATRIC

Best Practices: UHS
openly shares "best
practices” throughout its
network of behavioral
health care facilities. Staff
members nationwide are
encouraged to identify
and communicate those
programs, treatments,
and other management
practices that yield the
best results, so that all
of our facilities can
benefit from our growing

knowledge base.

Effective Cost Control:
Like our Acute Care
Division, the Behavioral
Health Division takes
advantage of corporate
purchasing discounts and
other measures that help
keep our total costs below
industry averages.

In 2005. UHS plans to
continue applying these
proven strategies to
ensure the future growth
and profitability of its
exceptional Behavioral

Health Division.

HOSPITAL
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Looking Ahead

After 25 years in a
i
dynamic and ever-

changing indusrry;, JHS

recognizes that challenges

will always be an:integral

part of hospital

management.,
And our strategy
and management;

style are

designed to help
our company
adapt to virtually
any challenge -
while remaining
frue to our core

principles.

we face the current

industry conditions ffrom

our strongest position

ever, with an unmatched

portfolio of high-quality

hospitals, an exceptionally

solid balance sheéat, and
a team of dedicarcfad
professionals thatg is‘
unequaled in the indusrry.
{
we also enjoy:a
i
tremendous reser;ve of

goodwill among tkile

i
H
)i
i
i
!
|
1
i

patients and heailth care
professionals who have
experienced the UHS

style of caring. And we
enjoy the support of the

communities we serve.

While there are
no guarantees in any
business, we are confident
that UHS will continue
to meet the needs of
patients, partners,
communities, and
shareholders for many

years 1o come.

98 cniinues (o grow by
reGogrAIERg thet the sAmellest
@3%@@%@@}@@@
-




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(MARK ONE)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004

OR

(] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 1-10765
UNIVERSAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC. -

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 23-2077891
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or erganization) Identification Number
e
UNIVERSAL CORPORATE CENTER .
367 South Gulph Road 19406-0958
P.O. Box 61558 (Zip Code)

King of Prussia, Pennsylvania
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (610) 768-3300

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each Class Name of each exchange on which registered
Class B Common Stock, $.01 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Class D Common Stock, $.01 par value
(Title of each Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes v/ No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)
Yes v/ No

The number of shares of the registrant’s Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value, Class B Common Stock, $.01
par value, Class C Common Stock, $.01 par value, and Class D Common Stock, $.01 par value, outstanding as of
January 31, 2005, were 3,328,404, 54,046,996, 335,800 and 27,336, respectively.

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates at June 30, 2004 $2,475,482,221.03 (For the
purpose of this calculation, it was assumed that Class A, Class C, and Class D Common Stock, which are not
traded but are convertible share-for-share into Class B Common Stock, have the same market value as Class B
Common Stock.)

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after December 31, 2004 (incorporated
by reference under Part 11I).
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This Annual Report on Forrh 10-K is for the year ended December 31, 2004. This Annual Report modifies

and supersedes documents filed pri
will automatically update and supe
« our” and the “Compar

LY

we, us,

LEYS

o to this Annual Report. Information that we file with the SEC in the future

rsede information contained in this Annual Report. In this Annual Report,
1y~ refer to Universal Health Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

You should carefully reviev& all of the information contained in this Annual Report, and should particularly

consider any risk factors that we fse
from time to time with the SEC. In

s . . .
t forth in this Annual Report and in other reports or documents that we file

this Annual Report, we state our beliefs of future events and of our future

financial performance. In some c:ases, you can identify those so-called “forward-looking statements” by words

such as “may,” “will,” “should,” {‘expects,

“potential,” or “continue” or the he
those statements are only our predi
statements, you should specifically

LERT3 LAY 3 G LI

plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,”

gative of those words and other comparable words. You should be aware that
ctions. Actual events or results may differ materially. In evaluating those
consider various factors, including the risks outlined below. Those factors

may cause our actual results to differ materially from any of our forward-looking statements.

Factors Affecting Future Operation

Factors that may cause our act
presented in this Annual Report inc

: i
%  possible unfavorable changes
or government programs, incl

S

ual results to differ materially from any of our forward-looking statements
lude, but are not limited to:

in the levels and terms of reimbursement for our charges by third party payors

uding Medicare or Medicaid;
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industry capacity, demographic changes, existing laws and government regulations and changes in or failure
to comply with laws and governmental regulations;

our ability to enter into managed care provider agreements on acceptable terms;
liability and other claims asserted against us;

liabilities arising out of shareholders’ suits which have been commenced against us and certain of our
officers and directors;

the continuing high number of governmental inquiries, investigations and administrative and legal actions
being taken against health care providers, which, if directed at us or one of our facilities, could significantly
increase costs and expenses;

competition from other healthcare providers, including physician owned facilities in certain markets,
including McAllen, Texas, the site of one of our largest acute care facilities, and/or the loss of significant
customers;

technological and pharmaceutical improvements that increase the cost of providing, or reduce the demand
for healthcare;

our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including nurses, and our ability to recruit physicians to
provide services at our facilities;

our ability to successfully integrate our recent acquisitions;

a significant portion of our revenues are produced by a small number of our facilities;

our ability to finance growth on favorable terms;

many of our acute care facilities continue to experience decreasing inpatient admission trends;

our acute care facilities continue to experience an increase in uninsured and self-pay patients which
unfavorably impacts the collectibility of our patient accounts,;

our financial statements reflect large amounts due from various commercial and private payors (including
amounts due from patients) and there can be no assurance that failure of the payors to remit amounts due to
us will not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations;

we have experienced a significant increase in professional and general liability and property insurance
expense caused by unfavorable pricing and availability trends of commercial insurance and as a result, we
have assumed a greater portion of our liability risk and consequently, there can be no assurance that a
continuation of these unfavorable trends, or a sharp increase in claims asserted against us, which are self-
insured, will not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations, and;

other factors referenced herein or in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-
looking statements. We disclaim any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly announce the result of
any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments.



quality of care concerns. In addition, hospital costs are affected by the level of patient acuity, occupancy rates

and local physician practice pattém}s, including length of stay and number and type of tests and procedures
ordered. A hospital’s ability to C(‘)nFol or influence these factors which affect costs is, in many cases, limited.

On August 1, 2003, CMS pi:lbl‘ished regulations that made certain changes to the inpatient PPS. Among the
changes made by this new rule, as a‘tmended, is an expansion of the definition of when the discharge of a hospital
patient must be considered a transfer for Medicare payment purposes. Under the rule, a discharge results in a
transfer if the patient discharge is a‘ssigned to one of thirty DRGs in federal fiscal year 2005. The rule also
addresses other issues that may 1mpact us, including certain changes to the DRG classifications and updates to
the wage index. We do not beheve that this rule will have a material adverse impact on our future results from

oper ations.

On September 9, 2003, CMS published a final rule clarifying policies relating to the responsibilities of
Medicare-participating hospitals in/treating individuals with emergency medical conditions who are presented to
a hospital under the provisions of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Labor Act (“EMTALA”). The
clarifications in the final rule relzite to, among other areas, seeking prior authorization from insurers for services,
emergency patients presented at off-campus outpatient clinics that do not routinely provide emergency services,
the applicability of the EMTALA p‘rovisions to hospital inpatients and outpatients, the circumstances under
which physicians must serve on ﬁo§pital medical staff “on-call” lists, and the responsibilities of hospital-owned
ambulances. We do not believe that this new rulé will have a matenal adverse impact on our future results from

_ operations.

'

In addition to revenues receive‘,d pursuant to the Medicare program, we receive a large portion of our
revenues either directly from Medxcald programs or from managed care companies managing Medicaid with a

large concentration of our Medicaid revenues received from Texas, Pennsylvania and Massachusetts. We can
provide no assurance that reductlpn‘s to Medicaid revenues, particularly in the above-mentioned states, will not
have a material adverse effect on'our future results of operations. Furthermore, we can provide no assurances that
future reductions to federal and/or gtate budgets that contain certain further reductions or decreases in the rate of

increase of Medicare and Medicaid|spending, will not adversely affect our future operations.

In 1991, the Texas legislature authorized the LoneSTAR Health Initiative, a pilot program in two areas of
that state, to establish for Medicaid|beneficiaries a healthcare delivery system based on managed care principles.

The program is now known as the SFAR program, which is short for State of Texas Access Reform. Since 1995,
the Texas Health and Human Ser‘vi‘ces Commission (the “Commission™), with the help of other Texas agencies
such as the Texas Department of State Heath Services, formerly known as the Texas Department of Health, has

rolled out STAR Medicaid manage‘d care pilot programs in several geographic areas of the state. Under the
STAR program, the Commission?eifher contracts with health maintenance organizations in each area to arrange
for covered services to Medicaid beneficiaries, or contracts directly with healthcare providers and oversees the

furnishing of care in the role of the }case manager. Two carve-out programs are the STAR+PLUS program, which
provides long-term care to elderly and disabled Medicaid beneficiaries in the Harris County service area, and the

NorthSTAR program, which furnishes behavioral health services to Medicaid beneficiaries in the Dallas County

service area. The Commission has a}dso sought a waiver to extend a limited Medicaid benefits package to low

income persons with serious mental illness. The waiver is limited to individuals residing in Harris County or the

NorthSTAR service areas. As a résﬂllt of the passage of Texas House Bill 2292, which passed in the 2003 -

legislative session, the Commission: conducted an analysis and cost-effectiveness study of the managed care
models in use to determine how a statewide rollout should be implemented. As a result of this study, the
Commission created a framework for expanding Medicaid managed care in Texas. Under this proposal, set to go
into effect in September 2005, sofm‘e form of Medicaid managed care will exist in every Texas county and the
STAR+PLUS program will be expa‘nded to seven additional service arcas. Such actions could have a material

unfavorable impact on the reimbursement the Texas hospitals receive.

Upon meeting certain conditions, and serving a disproportionately high share of Texas’ and South
Carolina’s low income patients, five of our facilities located in Texas and one facility located in South Carolina
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industry capacity, demographic changes, existing laws and government regulations and changes in or failure
to comply with laws and governmental regulations;

our ability to enter into managed care provider agreements on acceptable terms;
liability and other claims asserted against us;

liabilities arising out of shareholders’ suits which have been commenced against us and certain of our
officers and directors;

the continuing high number of governmental inquiries, investigations and administrative and legal actions
being taken against health care providers, which, if directed at us or one of our facilities, could significantly
increase costs and expenses;

competition from other healthcare providers, including physician owned facilities in certain markets,
including McAllen, Texas, the site of one of our largest acute care facilities, and/or the loss of significant
customers;

technological and pharmaceutical improvements that increase the cost of providing, or reduce the demand
for healthcare;

our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including nurses, and our ability to recruit physicians to
provide services at our facilities;

our ability to successfully integrate our recent acquisitions;

a significant portion of our revenues are produced by a small number of our facilities;

our ability to finance growth on favorable terms;

many of our acute care facilities continue to experience decreasing inpatient admission trends;

our acute care facilities continue to experience an increase in uninsured and self-pay patients which
unfavorably impacts the collectibility of our patient accounts;

our financial statements reflect large amounts due from various commercial and private payors (including
amounts due from patients) and there can be no assurance that failure of the payors to remit amounts due to
us will not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations;

we have experienced a significant increase in professional and general liability and property insurance
expense caused by unfavorable pricing and availability trends of commercial insurance and as a result, we
have assumed a greater portion of our liability risk and consequently, there can be no assurance that a
continuation of these unfavorable trends, or a sharp increase in claims asserted against us, which are self-
insured, will not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations, and;

other factors referenced herein or in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-
looking statements. We disclaim any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly announce the result of
any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments.




| PARTI

ITEM 1. Business

We are a Delaware corporation that was organized in 1979.

Our principal business is ovl'vning and operating, through our subsidiaries, acute care hospitals, behavioral
health centers and ambulatory surgery and radiation oncology centers. As of March 1, 2005, we operated 44
acute care hospitals and 49 behavn?ral health centers located in 23 states, Washington, DC, Puerto Rico and
France. As part of our ambulatory treatment centers division, we manage and own outright or in partnership with
physicians, 12 surgery and radiaﬁio’n oncology centers located in 7 states and Puerto Rico. Subsequent to
December 31, 2004, we executed a definitive agreement to sell two acute care hospitals located in Puerto Rico.
The sales, which are subject to cﬁls omary regulatory approvals, are expected to be completed by March 31, 2005.

Services provided by our hospitals include:

s general surgery . !
* . internal medicine

o obstetrics

t
°  emergency room care |
E
{
b

e radiology

° oncology

» diagnostic care
°  coronary care

o pediatric services

{
{
]
|
|
i
i
'
i
|
t
!
{

o behavioral health serVic’eS

{
|
i

We provide capital resources as well as a variety of management services to our facilities, including central
purchasing, information serv1ces,(ﬁ(nance and control systems, facilities planning, physician recruitment services,
administrative personnel management, marketing and public relations.

|

Our principal executive offic%es are located at 367 South Gulph Road, King of Prussia, PA 19406. Our
telephone number is (610) 768-33;00. Universal Health Services, Inc. has a web site at http://www.uhsinc.com.
Copies of the annual, quarterly and current reports we file with the SEC, and any amendments to those reports,
are available on our web site. Thei information posted on our web site is not incorporated into this Annual Report.

We selectively seek opportuﬁities to expand our base of operations by acquiring, constructing or leasing
additional hospital facilities. Suchf expansion may provide us with access to new markets and new health care
delivery capabilities. We also seek to increase the operating revenues and profitability of owned hospitals by the
introduction of new services, impfo}vement of existing services, physician recruitment and the application of
financial and operational controls% Fressures to contain health care costs and technological developments
allowing more procedures to be perf‘ormed on an outpatient basis have led payors to demand a shift to
ambulatory or outpatient care where‘ver possible. We are responding to this trend by emphasizing the expansion
of outpatient services. In addition| in response to cost containment pressures, we continue to implement programs
designed to improve financial perifo%mance and efficiency while continuing to provide quality care, including
more efficient use of professionalland paraprofessional staff, monitoring and adjusting staffing levels and
equipment usage, improving patient management and reporting procedures and implementing more efficient
billing and collection procedures. EWe also continue to examine our facilities and consider divestiture of those

facilities that we believe do not have the potential to contribute to our growth or operating strategy.
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We are involved in continual development activities. Applications to state health planning agencies to add
new services in existing hospitals are currently on file in states which require certificates of need. Although we
expect that some of these applications will result in the addition of new facilities or services to our operations, no
assurances can be made for ultimate success by us in these efforts.

Recent and Proposed Acquisition and Divestiture Activities

Subsequent to December 31, 2004, we signed a definitive agreement to sell two acute care facilities in
Puerto Rico: Hospital San Pablo, a 430-bed acute care hospital located in Bayamon and Hospital San Pablo del
Este, a 180-bed acute care hospital in Fajardo. The sale proceeds will be approximately $120 million in cash plus
the value of certain components of working capital. The sale is subject to customary regulatory approvals and we
expect the closing to occur by March 31, 2005. The operating results of these facilities are reflected as “Income/
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

During 2004, we spent approximately $163 million on acquisitions to acquire the following:

* a90% controlling ownership interest in a 54-bed acute care hospital located in New Orleans, Louisiana,
{operations subsequently merged with the operations of a 306-bed acute care hospital located in East
New Orleans, Louisiana);

» a50-bed acute care facility, a 20-bed acute care facility and the remaining 65% ownership interest (35%
previously acquired) in the real estate assets of a 198-bed acute care facility located in France, all of
which were acquired by an operating company in which we own an 80% controlling ownership interest;

* a63-bed behavioral health hospital, partial services, a school, group homes and detox services located in
Stonington, Connecticut;

* a112-bed behavioral health facility in Savannah, Georgia;

* a77-bed behavioral health facility in Benton, Arkansas;

* the operations of an 82-bed behavioral health facility in Las Vegas, Nevada;

» a72-bed behavioral health facility in Bowling Green, Kentucky, and,;

* an outpatient surgery center in Edinburg, Texas and an outpatient surgery center located in New

Orleans, Louisiana.

In addition, in late December, 2003, we funded $230 million (which was included in other assets on our
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003) for the combined purchase price of the following acute care
facilities which we acquired effective January 1, 2004:

* 2 90% controlling ownership interest in a 306-bed facility located in East New Orleans, Louisiana;
* a228-bed facility located in Corona, California;

* a112-bed facility located in San Luis Obispo, California (this facility was sold during the second
quarter of 2004), and,;

»  a65-bed facility located in Arroyo Grande, California (this facility was sold during the second quarter
of 2004).

During 2004, in conjunction with our strategic plan to sell two recently acquired acute care hospitals in
California as well as certain other under-performing assets, we sold the operations and/or property of the
following acute care facilities and surgery and radiation therapy centers for combined cash proceeds of
approximately $81 million:

* a112-bed hospital located in San Luis Obispo, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);
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o a65-bed hospital located in Arroyo Grande, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);

» a136-bed leased hospital in Shreveport, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a 106-bed hospital located in La Place, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a 160-bed pediatric and
2004), and,;

E

surgery hospital located in Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico (sold in third quarter of

« ownership interests in ﬂve outpatient surgery centers located in Ponca City, Oklahoma (sold in second
quarter of 2004), New Alt?any, Indiana (sold in third quarter of 2004), Hammond, Louisiana (sold in
third quarter of 2004), thtleton Colorado (sold in the first quarter of 2004) and St. George, Utah (sold
in the fourth quarter of 2004) and a radiation therapy center located in Madison, Indiana (sold in first

quarter of 2004). ;

Bed Utilization and Occu]pancy; Rates

The following table shows tihe

historical statistical information for the hospitals operated by us for the years

indicated. Accordingly, information related to hospitals acquired during the five-year period has been included
from the respective dates of acquisition, and information related to hospitals divested during the five year period
has been included up to the respective dates of divestiture. Also included for all years presented, is the statistical
information related to two acute ¢are facilities located in Puerto Rico that we expect to sell by March 31, 2005, as

¢
|

discussed above.

Average Licensed Beds: x
Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers . .

Puerto Rico ..

Acute Care Hospitals——Franice( | 5 B

Average Available Beds(2): ;
Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers .

Puerto Rico ..

Acute Care Hospltals—France(l) ..........

Admissions:
Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers : .
Acute Care Hospitals—France
Average Length of Stay (Days): |
Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers 1.

Acute Care Hospltals—France( | 1) S

Patient Days(3): ‘
Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers . .

Acute Care Hospitals—Franfce‘(l) ..........

Occupancy Rate—Licensed Beds(4):

Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers | .

Acute Care Hospltals—Franlce(l) ..........

Occupancy Rate—Auvailable Beds(4).

Acute Care Hospitals—U.S &
Behavioral Health Centers | .

Puerto Rico ..

Acute Care Hospitals—France(1) ..........

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
6,496 5,804 5,813 5,514 4,980
4225 3,894 3,752 3,732 2,612
1,588 1,433 1,083 720 —
" 5,592 4,955 4,802 4,631 4,220
4,145 3,762 3,608 3,588 2,552
1,588 1,433 1,083 720 —
286,630 266,207 266,261 237802 214,771
94,743 87,688 84,348 78,688 49,971
94,536 82364 63781 38,627 —
4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7
13.0 12.2 11.9 12.1 12.2
4.7 5.0 5.0 4.7 —
1,342,242 1,247,882 1,239,040 1,123,264 1,017,646
1,234,152 1,067,200 1,005,882 950,236 608,423
442,825 409,860 319,100 180,111 —
56% 59% 58% 56% 56%
C80%  T5% 73% 70% 64%
6%  78% 81% 69% —
66% 69% 71% 66% 66%
81% 78% 76% 73% 65%
76% 78% 81% 69% —

(1) The facilities located in Franice are owned by an operating company that is 80% owned by us.

6



(2) “Average Available Beds” is the number of beds which are actually in service at any given time for
immediate patient use with the necessary equipment and staff available for patient care. A hospital may
have appropriate licenses for more beds than are in service for a number of reasons, including lack of
demand, incomplete construction, and anticipation of future needs.

(3) “Patient Days” is the sum of all patients for the number of days that hospital care is provided to each patient.

(4) “Occupancy Rate” is calculated by dividing average patient days (total patient days divided by the total
number of days in the period) by the number of average beds, either available or licensed.

The number of patient days of a hospital is affected by a number of factors, including the number of
physicians using the hospital, changes in the number of beds, the composition and size of the population of the
community in which the hospital is located, general and local economic conditions, variations in local medical
and surgical practices and the degree of outpatient use of the hospital services. Current industry trends in
utilization and occupancy have been significantly affected by changes in reimbursement policies of third party
payors. A continuation of such industry trends could have a material adverse impact upon our future operating
performance. We have experienced growth in outpatient utilization over the past several years. We are unable to
predict the rate of growth and resulting impact on our future revenues because it is dependent upon developments
in medical technologies and physician practice patterns, both of which are outside of our control. We are also
unable to predict the extent to which other industry trends will continue or accelerate.

Sources of Revenue

We receive payments for services rendered from private insurers, including managed care plans, the federal
government under the Medicare program, state governments under their respective Medicaid programs and
directly from patients. All of our acute care hospitals (located in the U.S. and Puerto Rico) and most of our
behavioral health centers are certified as providers of Medicare and Medicaid services by the appropriate
governmental authorities. The requirements for certification are subject to change, and, in order to remain
qualified for such programs, it may be necessary for us to make changes from time to time in our facilities,
equipment, personnel and services. The costs for recertification are not material as many of the requirements for
recertification are a part of our internal quality control processes. If a facility loses certification, it will be unable
to receive payment for patients under the Medicare or Medicaid programs. Although we intend to continue in
such programs, there is no assurance that we will continue to qualify for participation.

The sources of our hospital revenues are charges related to the services provided by the hospitals and their
staffs, such as radiology, operating rooms, pharmacy, physiotherapy and laboratory procedures, as well as basic
charges for the hospital room and related services such as general nursing care, meals, maintenance and
housekeeping. Hospital revenues depend upon the occupancy for inpatient routine services, the extent to which
ancillary services and therapy programs are ordered by physicians and provided to patients, the volume of
outpatient procedures and the charges or negotiated payment rates for such services. Charges and reimbursement
rates for inpatient routine services vary depending on the type of bed occupied (e.g., medical/surgical, intensive
care or behavioral health) and the geographic location of the hospital.

Our patient registration process includes an interview of the patient or the patient’s responsible party at the
time of registration. At that time, an insurance eligibility determination is made and an insurance plan code is
assigned. There are various pre-established insurance profiles in our patient accounting system which determine
the expected insurance reimbursement for each patient based on the insurance plan code assigned and the
services rendered. Our acute care hospitals identify patient co-pay and deductible amounts through insurance
card review and insurance eligibility/benefit inquiries. These inquiries are completed during the scheduling and
pre-admission process and at the time of actual patient registration. For non-emergent patients, hospitals attempt
to collect co-pay and deductible amounts from the patient at the end of the registration process. As required
under federal EMTALA regulations, for patients provided medical treatment in the emergency room, the hospital
attempts collection of patient co-pay and deductible amounts after the completion of the medical treatment.
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McAllen Medical Center located in McAllen, Texas and Edinburg Regional Medical Center located in
Edinburg, Texas operate w1th1n the same market. On a combined basis, these two facilities contributed 9% in
2004, 11% in 2003 and 12% in| 2@)02 of our consolidated net revenues and 10% in 2004, 16% in 2003 and 19%
in 2002, of our consolidated eammgs before income taxes (after deducting an allocation for corporate overhead).
We have a majority ownership 1 interest in four acute care hospitals in the Las Vegas, Nevada market. These four
hospitals, Valley Hospital Medical Center, Summerlin Hospital Medical Center, Desert Springs Hospital and
Spring Valley Medical Center, on‘ a combined basis, contributed 17% in 2004, 16% in 2003 and 17% in 2002 of
our consolidated net revenues anq 12% in 2004, 13% in 2003 and 16% in 2002 of our consolidated earnings
before income taxes (after deductmg an allocation for corporate overhead).

The following table showsj the approx1mate percentages of net patient revenue, defined as revenue from all
sources after deducting contracfucl allowances and discounts from established billing rates, which we derived
from various sources of payment for the years indicated (excludes sources of revenues for all periods presented
for five acute care facilities, three|of which have been divested, and two which are expected to be divested, and
are therefore reflected as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements).

; : PERCENTAGE OF
i NET PATIENT REVENUES
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Third Party Payors: P

Medicare . ................ ................................ 28.6% 30.4% 31.5% 30.7% 31.6%
Medicaid ............ U 2 R 113% 11.0% 109% 11.4% 12.7%
Managed Care (HMO and PPOs) ............................... 40.5% 40.2% 39.6%. 35.5% 32.7%
Other Sources . ............. P 19.6% 18.4% 18.0% 22.4% 23.0%
Towal ... ... P 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Note 11 to our consohdated f}nanmal statements included in this annual report contains our revenues,
income and other operatmg mformatwn for each repomng segment of our business.

f

]Regulatlon and Other Factors

A significant portion of our revenue is derived from federal and slate healthcare programs, including Medicare
and Medicaid (excluding managed Medicare and Medicaid programs), which accounted for 40%, 41% and 42% of
our net patient revenues during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Under the statutory framework of the Medicare
and Medicaid programs, many of our operations are subject to administrative rulings, interpretations and discretion
that may affect payments made|under either or both of such programs as well as by other third party payors.
Management believes that adequate] prov1s10n has been made for any adjustment that might result therefrom.

The federal government makes payments to participating hospitals under its Medicare program based on
various formulas. For inpatient services, our general acute care hospitals are subject to a prospective payment
system (“PPS”) under which the hospltals are paid a predetermined amount per admission. The payment is based
upon a diagnostic related group (“DRG”) for which payment amounts are adjusted to account for geographic
wage differences. For outpatient | se‘r\nces both general acute and behavioral health hospitals are paid under an
outpatient prospective payment system (“OPPS”) according to ambulatory procedure codes (“APC”) that group
together services that are comparable both clinically and with respect to the use of resources, as adjusted to

. - | .
account for certain geographic wage differences.

Prior to January 1, 2005, bebavioral health facilities, which are generally excluded from the inpatient
services PPS, were reimbursed on a reasonable cost basis by the Medicare program (“TEFRA Payment”), but
were generally subject to a per difscharge ceiling, calculated based on an annual allowable rate of increase over
the hospital’s base year amount under the Medicare law and regulations. Capital-related costs were exempt from
this limitation. The discharge cellm‘g is higher for those hospitals that were excluded from PPS before October 1,

1997. Congress required the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) to develop a per diem PPS
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for inpatient services furnished by behavioral health hospitals under the Medicare program (“Psych PPS”). On
November 15, 2004, CMS published final regulations that implement Psych PPS, which is effective beginning on
an inpatient psychiatric facility’s first cost reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2005. This new
system will generally become effective for most UHS hospitals on January 1, 2005. The federal prospective rate
is a base prospective per diem rate and is adjusted for individual hospital demographic factors including:
geographic location, resident teaching program status and licensed emergency room department status. The base
per diem rate is also adjusted for patient specific demographic factors including: patient age, medical diagnosis
and the existence of certain comorbid medical conditions. The base per diem rate is paid based on sliding scale
payment adjustment factors wherein a provider will receive an increased per diem for day one of the patient stay
and the per diem payment will decrease during the patient hospital stay based on a published CMS sliding scale.
Psych PPS will be implemented over a four year period with Year 1 having a blended Medicare payment rate
based on seventy-five percent (75%) TEFRA payment and twenty-five percent (25%) Psych PPS payment. For
PPS transition Years 2, 3 and 4, the blended rate is 50% TEFRA and 50% Psych PPS, 25% TEFRA and 75%
Psych PPS, 0% TEFRA and 100% Psych PPS, respectively. We believe the implementation of inpatient Psych
PPS will have a favorable affect on our future results of operations, however, due to the four-year phase-in
period, we do not believe the favorable affect will have a material impact on our 2005 results of operations.

There are also a number of other more general federal regulatory trends and factors affecting our business.
Federal legislation continues to call for the government to trim the growth of federal spending on Medicare and
Medicaid, including reductions in the future rate of increases to payments made to hospitals, to reduce the
amount of payments for outpatient services, bad debt expense and capital costs. In federal fiscal year 2004,
hospitals were receiving full market basket inflation adjustment for services paid under the inpatient PPS
(inpatient PPS update of the market basket is 3.4% in fiscal year 2004), although CMS estimates that for the
same time period, Medicare payment rates under OPPS were to increase, for each service, by an average of 4.5%.
Under the Medicare Modernization Act of 2003, which was signed into law in November 2003, the update was
restored to the full market basket for fiscal year 2004; however, for fiscal years 2005 through 2007, operating
updates equal to the market basket will be granted only to those hospitals that submit data on the ten quality
indicators established by CMS. Our hospitals intend to submit the required quality data to CMS. In addition, in
February, 2003, the federal fiscal year 2003 omnibus spending federal legislation included approximately $800
million in increased spending for hospitals. More specifically, $300 million of this amount was targeted for rural
and certain urban hospitals effective for the period of April, 2003 through September, 2003. Certain hospitals of
ours were eligible for and received the increased Medicare reimbursement resulting from this legislation which
amounted to approximately $3 million during 2004 and 2003. For federal fiscal year 2005, CMS will increase the
inpatient Medicare unadjusted standard base rate by a full market basket increase of 3.3.%, absent any legislative
action by Congress. However, this Medicare payment increase will be mitigated by changes in other factors that
directly impact a hospital’s DRG payment including, but not limited to, annual Medicare wage index updates,
expansion of the DRG transfer payment policy and the annual recalibration of DRG relative payment weights.

Certain Medicare inpatient hospital cases with extraordinarily high costs in relation to other cases within a
given DRG may receive an additional payment from Medicare (“Outlier Payments”). In general, to qualify for the
additional Outlier Payments, the gross charges associated with an individual patient’s case must exceed the
applicable DRG plus a threshold established annually by CMS. In the federal 2004 fiscal year, the unadjusted
Outlier Payment threshold decreased from $33,560 to $31,000. In the federal 2005 fiscal year, the threshold will be
reduced to $25,800. In June, 2003, CMS issued a final rule that changed the formula for determining outlier
payments in an effort to promote more accurate spending for outlier payments to hospitals. These changes to the
Outlier Payment methodology resulted in a decrease in the overall Outlier Payments received by us during the 2004
federal fiscal year as compared to the prior year. Our total Outlier Payments were less than 0.5% of our consolidated
net revenues in 2004 and 2003, less than 1% in 2002 and we expect outlier payments to be less than 0.5% in 2005.

Within certain limits, a hospital can manage its costs, and to the extent this is done effectively, a hospital
may benefit from the DRG system. However, many hospital operating costs are incurred in order to satisfy

licensing laws, standards of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (“JCAHO”) and
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quality of care concerns. In addition, hospital costs are affected by the level of patient acuity, occupancy rates
and local physician practice patterns, including length of stay and number and type of tests and procedures
ordered. A hospital’s ability to control or influence these factors which affect costs is, in many cases, limited.

On August L, 2003, CMS p{lbhshed regulations that made certain changes to the inpatient PPS. Among the
changes made by this new rule, eils ‘amended, is an expansion of the definition of when the discharge of a hospital
patient must be considered a transfer for Medicare payment purposes. Under the rule, a discharge results in a
transfer if the patient discharge is assigned to one of thirty DRGs in federal fiscal year 2005. The rule also
addresses other issues that may 1m pact us, including certain changes to the DRG classifications and updates to
the wage index. We do not believe|that this rule will have a material adverse impact on our future results from
operations. i

i

" On September 9, 2003, CM’S published a final rule clarifying policies relating to the responsibilities of
‘Medicare-participating hospltals in treating individuals with emergency medical conditions who are presented to
a hospital under the provisions of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Labor Act (‘EMTALA”). The
clarifications in the final rule relate to, among other areas, seeking prior authorization from insurers for services,
emergency patients presented at of1f campus outpatient clinics that do not routinely provide emergency services,
the applicability of the EMTALA provisions to hospital inpatients and outpatients, the circumstances under
which physicians must serve on Illol‘spital medical staff “on-call” lists, and the responsibilities of hospital-owned
ambulances. We do not believe that this new rule will have a material adverse impact on our future results from
operations. o \ {

In addition to revenues rece!ived pursuant to the Medicare program, we receive a large portion of our
revenues either directly from M‘e:di]caid programs or from managed care companies managing Medicaid with a
large concentration of our Medicaid revenues received from Texas, Pennsylvania and Massachusetts. We can
provide no assurance that reductions to Medicaid revenues, particularly in the above-mentioned states, will not

. . [ 1. . .
have a material adverse effect oni 01ur future results of operations. Furthermore, we can provide no assurances that
future reductions to federal and/or state budgets that contain certain further reductions or decreases in the rate of

' increase of Medicare and Medlcald spending, will not adversely affect our future operations.

In 1991, the Texas leglslatml'e authorized the LoneSTAR Health Initiative, a pilot program in two areas of
that state, to establish for Medicaid| beneficiaries a healthcare delivery system based on managed care principles.
The program is now known as the STAR program, which is short for State of Texas Access Reform. Since 1995,
the Texas Health and Human Serv1ces Commission (the “Commission”), with the help of other Texas agencies
such as the Texas Department of! Séate Heath Services, formerly known as the Texas Department of Health, has
rolled out STAR Medicaid managed care pilot programs in several geographic areas of the state. Under the
STAR program, the Commission! elther contracts with health maintenance organizations in each area to arrange
for covered services to Medicaid ibéneﬁclanes, or contracts directly with healthcare providers and oversees the
furnishing of care in the role of the case manager. Two carve-out programs are the STAR+PLUS program, which
provides long-term care to elderly and disabled Medicaid beneficiaries in the Harris County service area, and the
NorthSTAR program, which furngis%les behavioral health services to Medicaid beneficiaries in the Dallas County
service areca. The Commission ha:s also sought a waiver to extend a limited Medicaid benefits package to low
income persons with serious mental illness. The waiver is limited to individuals residing in Harris County or the

NorthSTAR service areas. As a resﬁlt of the passage of Texas House Bill 2292, which passed in the 2003

legislative session, the Commissi:on: conducted an analysis and cost-effectiveness study of the managed care
models in use to determine how a statewide rollout should be implemented. As a result of this study, the

Commission created a frameworl% for expanding Medicaid managed care in Texas. Under this proposal, set to go
into effect in September 2005, sofme form of Medicaid managed care will exist in every Texas county and the
STAR+PLUS program will be ex'pa‘nded to seven additional service arcas. Such actions could have a material
unfavorable impact on the reimbtjrs%ment the Texas hospitals receive.

Upon meeting certain conditions, and serving a disproportionately high share of Texas” and South
Carolina’s low income patients, five of our facilities located in Texas and one facility located in South Carolina
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became eligible and received additional reimbursement from each state’s disproportionate share hospital
(“DSH”) fund. To qualify for DSH funds in Texas, the facility must have either a disproportionate total number
of inpatient days for Medicaid patients, a disproportionate percentage of all inpatient days that are for Medicaid
patients, or a disproportionate percentage of all inpatient days that are for lJow-income patients. Included in our
financial results was an aggregate of $39.3 million in 2004, $27.8 million in 2003 and $33.0 million in 2002
related to DSH programs. In February 2003, the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office
of Inspector General (“O1G”) published a report indicating that Texas Medicaid may have overpaid Texas
hospitals for DSH payments. During 2004, the Commission implemented rules which offset negative Medicaid
shortfalls in the hospital-specific cap formula, and included third-party and upper payment limit payments in the
shortfall calculation. These changes resulted in reduced payments to our hospitals located in Texas that have
significant Medicaid populations. The Texas and South Carolina programs have been renewed for each state’s
2005 fiscal years and we expect the DSH reimbursements to be no less than the amounts received during each
state’s 2004 fiscal years. Failure to renew these DSH programs beyond their scheduled termination dates (June
30, 2005 for South Carolina and August 31, 2005 for Texas), failure of our hospitals that currently receive DSH
payments to qualify for future DSH funds under these programs, or reductions in reimbursements, could have a
material adverse effect on our future results of operations.

In May, 2004, the state of Texas submitted a Medicaid state plan amendment to the Centers for Medicaid
Services (“CMS”) requesting CMS’s approval to expand the Texas supplemental inpatient reimbursement
methodology. In July, 2004, CMS approved the submitted state plan amendment retroactive to the May, 2004
submission date. With the CMS approval, the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (“HHSC™)
published a proposed rule change in the Texas Register in October, 2004 to incorporate the state plan amendment
changes in the Texas Administrative Code regulation. After expiration of the public comment period, the final
rule, with language identical to that contained in the proposed rule, was published in the Texas Register on
February 18, 2005. The general provisions of this supplemental payment methodology, which is governed by
federal statute and regulations, includes: (i) matching federal dollars to the state for certain qualifying Medicaid
expenditures; (ii) the federal government permitting the state to use the inter-governmental transfer of funds
between state and local entities, and; (iii) subjecting supplemental payments made to hospitals to federally
mandated limits. Included in our 2004 financial results was $6.2 million of incremental revenue earned pursuant
to the provisions of this program. During 2005, assuming the program remains unchanged, we expect to earn
approximately $12 million of incremental revenue in connection with this program. In Pennsylvania, several of
our behavioral health hospitals were notified that $2.6 million in state Medicaid DSH monies paid for the state
fiscal year 2004 will require repayment to the state. This repayment is the result of a change in the calculation of
the hospital specific DSH cap formula as it relates to the handling of a hospital’s negative Medicaid payment
shortfall. The repayment of these Pennsylvania Medicaid DSH monies have been reflected in our operating
results for 2004. We expect this change to the DSH calculation and the resulting adverse financial impact to
remain in place in 2005 and forward.

Approximately 40% of our net patient revenues, during each of the last three years, were generated from
managed care companies, which inciude health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations and
managed Medicare and Medicaid programs. In general, we expect the percentage of our business from managed
care programs to continue to grow. The consequent growth in managed care networks and the resulting impact of
these networks on the operating results of our facilities vary among the markets in which we operate. Typically,
we receive lower payments per patient from managed care payors than we do from traditional indemnity insurers,
however, during the past few years, we have secured price increases from many of our commercial payors
including managed care companies.

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws, regulations and rules including among others those
related to government healthcare participation requirements, various licensure and accreditations, reimbursement
for patient services, health information privacy and security rules, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse
provisions (including, but not limited to, federal statutes and regulations prohibiting kickbacks and other illegal
inducements to potential referral sources, false claims submitted to federal health care programs and self-referrals
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by physicians). Providers that are ff)und to have violated any of these laws and regulations may be excluded from
participating in government healthcare programs, subjected to significant.fines or penalties or required to repay
amounts received from govemme;n‘t for previously billed patient services. Although management believes its
policies, procedures and practice:s comply with governmental regulations, no assurance can be given that we will
not be subjected to governmental iﬁquiries or actions, or that we would not be faced with sanctions, fines or
penalties if so subjected. Even if iw‘e were to ultimately prevail, a significant governmental inquiry or action

under one of the above laws, reghlations or rules could have a material adverse impact us.

The federal physician self—r{eferral and payment prohibitions (codified in 42 U.S.C. Section 1395nn, Section
1877 of the Social Security Act) igenerally forbid, absent qualifying for one of the exceptions, a physician from
making referrals for the furnishiﬁg of any “designated health services,” for which payment may be made under
‘the Medicare or Medicaid progrdm}s, to any “entity” with which the physician (or an immediate family member)
has a “financial relationship.” The ilegislation was effective January 1, 1992 for clinical laboratory services
(“Stark I”’) and January 1, 1995 ‘f:or} ten other designated health services (“Stark IT”). Stark I and Stark II are
collectively referred to as the Stai'rklr Law. A “financial relationship” under Stark I and II includes any direct or
indirect compensation arrangement with an entity for payment of any remuneration, and any direct or indirect
ownership or investment interestf in the entity. The legislation contains certain exceptions including, for example,
where the referring physician has an ownership interest in a hospital as a whole or where the physician is an
employee of an entity to which hfe or she refers. The Stark Law prohibitions include specific reporting
requirements providing that eacH entity providing covered items or services must provide certain information
concerning its ownership, mvestme‘nt and compensation arrangements. In August 1995, CMS published a final
rule regarding physician self—referr‘als for clinical lab services (Stark I). On March 26, 2004, CMS published its
final rule regarding physician self referrals for the ten other designated health services (Stark II), which became
effective on July 26, 2004. The Stark II final rule added new exceptions to the general prohibition, but also
narrowed some of the previously, e‘xisting exceptions. Penalties for violating Stark I and Stark II include denial of
payment for any services rendered|by an entity in violation of the prohibitions, civil money penalties of up to

$15,000 for each offense, and ex;clusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

The fed.eral anti-kickback siatute (codified in 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b)) prohibits individuals and
entities from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or paying any remuneration to other
individuals and entities (directlyjor indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind):

1.  in return for referring an in(;!lividual to a person for the furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of any item
or service for which payment|may be made under a federal or state health care program; or,

2. inreturn for purchasing, leaisi‘ng‘, ordering or arranging for or recommending purchasing, leasing, or
ordering any goods, facility, service or item for which payment may be made under a federal or state health

care program. |

Starting in 1991, the Inspec’to‘r General of the Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) issued
regulations which provide for “séf%: harbors” from the federal anti-kickback statute; if an arrangement or
transaction meets each of the standards established for a particular safe harbor, the arrangement will not violate
the statute. If an arrangement doies not meet the safe harbor criteria, it may be subject to scrutiny under its
particular facts and circumstances to determine whether it violates the federal anti-kickback statute. Safe harbors
include protection for certain linﬁited investment interests, space rental, equipment rental, personal service/
management contracts, sales of é ﬂhysician practice, referral services, managed care payment arrangements,
employees, discounts and group| purchasmg arrangements, among others. The criminal sanctions for a conviction
under the anti-kickback statute mclude imprisonment, fines, or both. Civil sanctions include exclusion from

federal and state healthcare programs

Many states, including Texas have also enacted similar illegal remuneration statutes that apply to healthcare
services reimbursed by private 1ns urance, not just those reimbursed by a federal or state health care program. In -
many instances, the state statute§ provide that any arrangement falling in a federal safe harbor will be immune
from scrutiny under the state statutes.
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We do not anticipate that the Stark Law, the anti-kickback statute or similar state law provisions will have
material adverse effects on our operations. However, in consideration of the current health care regulatory
atmosphere, we cannot provide any assurance that federal or state authorities would not attempt to challenge one
or more of our business dealings in consideration of one of these federal or state provisions, or that if challenged,
the authorities might not prevail.

Several states, including Florida and Nevada, have passed legislation which limits physician ownership in
medical facilities providing imaging services, rehabilitation services, laboratory testing, physical therapy and
other services. This legislation is not expected to significantly affect our operations. Many states have laws and
regulations which prohibit payments for referral of patients and fee-splitting with physicians. We do not make
any such payments or have any such arrangements.

All hospitals are subject to compliance with various federal, state and local statutes and regulations and
receive periodic inspection by state licensing agencies to review standards of medical care, equipment and
cleanliness. Our hospitals must comply with the conditions of participation and licensing requirements of federal,
state and local health agencies, as well as the requirements of municipal building codes, health codes and local
fire departments. In granting and renewing licenses, a department of health considers, among other things, the
physical buildings and equipment, the qualifications of the administrative personnel and nursing staff, the quality
of care and continuing compliance with the laws and regulations relating to the operation of the facilities. State
licensing of facilities is a prerequisite to certification under the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Various other
licenses and permits are also required in order to dispense narcotics, operate pharmacies, handle radioactive
materials and operate certain equipment. All our eligible hospitals have been accredited by JCAHO. JCAHO
reviews each hospital’s accreditation once every three years. The review period for each state’s licensing body
varies, but generally ranges from once a year to once every three years.

The Social Security Act and regulations thereunder contain numerous provisions which affect the scope of
Medicare coverage and the basis for reimbursement of Medicare providers. Among other things, this law
provides that in states which have executed an agreement with the Secretary of HHS, Medicare reimbursement
may be denied with respect to depreciation, interest on borrowed funds and other expenses in connection with
capital expenditures which have not received prior approval by a designated state health planning agency.
Additionally, many of the states in which our hospitals are located have enacted legislation requiring certificates
of need (“CON™) as a condition prior to hospital capital expenditures, construction, expansion, modernization or
initiation of major new services. Failure to obtain necessary state approval can result in the inability to complete
an acquisition or change of ownership, the imposition of civil or, in some cases, criminal sanctions, the inability
to receive Medicare or Medicaid reimbursement or the revocation of a facility’s license. We have not
experienced and do not expect to experience any material adverse effects from those requirements.

Health planning statutes and regulatory mechanisms are in place in many states in which we operate. These
provisions govern the distribution of healthcare services, the number of new and replacement hospital beds,
administer required state CON laws, contain healthcare costs, and meet the priorities established therein.
Significant CON reforms have been proposed in a number of states, including increases in the capital spending
thresholds and exemptions of various services from review requirements. We are unable to predict the impact of
these changes upon our operations.

Federal regulations provide that admissions and utilization of facilities by Medicare and Medicaid patients
must be reviewed in order to insure efficient utilization of facilities and services. The law and regulations require
Peer Review Organizations (“PROs”) to review the appropriateness of Medicare and Medicaid patient
admissions and discharges, the quality of care provided, the validity of DRG classifications and the
appropriateness of cases of extraordinary length of stay. PROs may deny payment for services provided, assess
fines and also have the authority to recommend to HHS that a provider that is in substantial non-compliance with
the standards of the PRO be excluded from participating in the Medicare program. We have contracted with
PROs in each state where we do business as to the scope of such functions.
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Our healthcare operations éenerate medical waste that must be disposed of in compliance with federal, state
and local environmental laws, riles and regulations. In 1988, Congress passed the Medical Waste Tracking Act
(42 U.S.C.§ 6992). Infectious waste generators, including hospitals, now face substantial penalties for improper
arrangements regarding disposal df medical waste, including civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day of
noncompliance, criminal penalti‘es‘ of up to $50,000 per day, imprisonment, and remedial costs. The
comprehensive legislation estab;lis‘hes programs for medical waste treatment and disposal in designated states.
The legislation also provides for, sweepin0 inspection authority in the Environmental Protection Agency,
including monitoring and testmg We beheve that our disposal of such wastes is in material compliance with all
state and federal laws. i
Medical Staff and Employees |
Our hospitals are staffed by" li‘censed physicians who have been admitted to the medical staff of individual
hospitals. With a few except1ons physicians are not employees of our hospitals. During the first quarter of 2005,
McAllen Medical Center affthated itself with a company employing approximately 10 physicians. Members of
the medical staffs of our hosp1tals also serve on the medical staffs of hospitals not owned by us and may
terminate their affiliation with our hospitals at any time. Each of our hospitals are managed on a day-to-day basis
by a managing director employed by us. In addition, a Board of Governors, including members of the hospital’s
medical staff, governs the medlcal professional and ethical practices at each hospital. Our facilities had
approximately 37,000 employees on December 31, 2004, of whom approximately 25,000 were employed full-
time. l
Approximately, 2,000 of our employees at six of our hospitals are unionized. At Valley Hospital, unionized
employees belong to the Culmary Workers and Bartenders Union, the International Union of Operating
Engineers and the Service Employees International Union. Registered nurses at Auburn Regional Medical Center
located in Washington, are represented by the United Staff Nurses Union, the technical employees are
represented by the United Food ancl Commercial Workers, and the service employees are represented by the
Service Employees InternatlonallU‘mon At The George Washington University Hospital, unionized employees
are represented by the Service Employees International Union. Nurses and technicians at Desert Springs Hospital
are represented by the Service Employees International Union. Registered Nurses, Licensed Practical Nurses,
certain technicians and therapists, pharmacy assistants, and some clerical employees at HRI Hospital in Boston
are represented by the Service Emp loyees International Union. Registered Nurses at Inland Valley are
represented by the Cahforma Nurses Association. We believe that our relations with our employees are
satisfactory. P
l

Competition

In all geographical areas in Wl ich we operate, there are other hospitals which provide services comparable
_to those offered by our hospitals, lsome of which are for profit entities, some of which are owned by
governmental agencies and supported by tax revenues, and others of which are owned by nonprofit corporations
and may be supported to a large extent by endowments and charitable contributions. Such support is not available
to our hospitals. Certain of our competxtors have greater financial resources, are better equipped and offer a
broader range of services than us: Outpatlent treatment and diagnostic facilities, outpatient surgical centers and
freestanding ambulatory surgical cénters also impact the healthcare marketplace. In recent years, competition

among healthcare providers for patxents has intensified in the United States due to, among other things,

regulatory and technological changes increasing use of managed care payment systems, cost containment
pressures and a shift toward outpé}tient treatment.

In addition, certain hospitals|which are located in the areas served by our facilities are special service
hospitals providing medical, surgica}tl and behavioral health services that are not available at our hospitals or other
general hospitals. The competitive position of a hospital is to a large degree, dependent upon the number and
quality of staff physicians. Although a physician may at any time terminate his or her affiliation with a hospital,

our hospitals seek to retain doctors of varied specializations on their staffs and to attract other qualified doctors
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by improving facilities and maintaining high ethical and professional standards. In addition, in certain markets
including McAllen, Texas, the site of one of our largest acute care facilities, competition from other healthcare
providers, including physician owned facilities, has increased and additional inpatient capacity at a physician
owned hospital opened in late 2004 which may further erode our higher margin business, including cardiac
procedures. A continuation of the increased provider competition in the markets in which our hospital facilities
operate, including McAllen, Texas, could have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations.

General and Professional Liability

Due to unfavorable pricing and availability trends in the professional and general liability insurance
markets, our subsidiaries have assumed a greater portion of the hospital professional and general liability risk as
the cost of commercial professional and general liability insurance coverage has risen significantly. As a result,
effective January 1, 2002, most of our subsidiaries were self-insured for malpractice exposure up to $25 million
per occurrence. We purchased umbrella excess policies for our subsidiaries through several commercial
insurance carriers for coverage in excess of $25 million per occurrence with a $75 million aggregate limitation.
Given these insurance market conditions, there can be no assurance that a continuation of these unfavorable
trends, or a sharp increase in claims asserted against us, will not have a material adverse effect on our future
results of operations.

Our estimated liability for professional and general liability claims is based on a number of factors
including, among other things, the number of asserted claims and reported incidents, estimates of losses for these
claims based on recent and historical settlement amounts, estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on
historical experience, and estimates of amounts recoverable under our commercial insurance policies. While we
continuously monitor these factors, our ultimate liability for professional and general liability claims could
change materially from our current estimates due to inherent uncertainties involved in making this estimate.

For the period from January 1, 1998 through December 31, 2001, most of our subsidiaries were covered
under commercial insurance policies with PHICO, a Pennsylvania based insurance company that was placed into
liquidation during the first quarter of 2002. As a result of PHICO’s liquidation, we recorded a $40 million pre-tax
charge during 2001 to reserve for PHICO claims that could become our liability, however, we are entitled to
receive reimbursement from state insurance guaranty funds, other commercial insurers and/or PHICO’s estate for
a portion of certain claims ultimately paid by us.

As of December 31, 2004, the total accrual for our professional and general liability claims was $204.1
million ($172.5 million net of expected recoveries), of which $28.0 million is included in other current liabilities.
As of December 31, 2003, the total accrual for our professional and general liability claims was $190.8 miilion
($147.7 million net of expected recoveries), of which $35.0 million is included in other current liabilities.
Included in other assets was $31.6 million as of December 31, 2004 and $43.0 million as of December 31, 2003,
related to estimated expected recoveries from various state guaranty funds, insurance companies and other
sources in connection with PHICO related professional and general liability claims payments.

Relationship with Universal Health Realty Income Trust

At December 31, 2004, we held approximately 6.7% of the outstanding shares of Universal Health Realty
Income Trust (the *“Trust”). We serve as Advisor to the Trust under an annually renewable advisory agreement.
Pursuant to the terms of this advisory agreement, we conduct the Trust’s day-to-day affairs, provide
administrative services and presents investment opportunities. In addition, certain of our officers and directors
are also officers and/or directors of the Trust. Management believes that it has the ability to exercise significant
influence over the Trust, therefore we account for our investment in the Trust using the equity method of
accounting. Our pre-tax share of income from the Trust was $1.6 million in 2004, $1.6 million during 2003 and
$1.4 million during 2002, and is included in net revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. The carrying value of this investment was $9.5 million and $9.4 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, and is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The market value
of this investment was $25.2 million at December 31, 2004 and $23.4 million at December 31, 2003.
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As of December 31, 2004, vae leased five hospital facilities from the Trust with terms expiring in 2006
through 2009. These leases contailin up to five S-year renewal options. In addition, certain of our subsidiaries are
tenants in several medical office buildings owned by limited liability companies in which the Trust holds non-

controlling ownership interést. !

On December 31, 2004, Wegcompleted the purchase of the real estate assets of the Virtue Street Pavilion,
located in Chalmette, Louisiana, Efr]om the Trust. The purchase was completed pursuant to the exercise of an
option granted to us under our prfeviious lease for the facility. The purchase price for the facility was $7.3 million
and was determined, in accordance with the terms of the lease, based upon independent appraisals obtained by
both us and the Trust. ’

During the third quarter of 2004, we exercised the five-year renewal option on a behavioral health hospital
leased from the Trust which waszsc‘heduled to expire in December, 2004. The lease was renewed at the same
lease terms. During 2002, we exerdised the five- -year renewal option on an acute care hospital leased from the
Trust which was scheduled to exp&e in March, 2003. The renewal rate on this facility was based upon the five-

year Treasury rate on March 29, 2003 plus a spread.

During 2003, we sold four medlcal office buildings located in Las Vegas, Nevada, for combined cash
proceeds of $12.8 million, to limited liability companies, in which the Trust holds non-controlling majority
ownership interests. The sale of thcise medical office buildings resulted in a pre-minority interest and pre-tax gain
of $3.1 million ($1.4 million after Ilmnonty interest expense and after-tax) which is included in our 2003 results
of operations. Tenants of these buﬂdmgs include certain of our subsidiaries.

Future minimum lease payments to the Trust are included in Note 7. Total rent expense under these
operating leases was $17.4 rmlhon in 2004, $17.4 million in 2003 and $17.2 million in 2002. As of December 31,
2004, the aggregate fair market value of our facilities leased from the Trust is not known, however, the aggregate
original purchase price paid by the Trust for these properties was $101.3 million (excluding the Virtue Street
Pavilion). Pursuant to the terms of the leases with the Trust, we have the option to purchase the respective leased
facilities at the end of the lease tefrrhs or any renewal terms at the appraised market value. In addition, we have
rights of first refusal to: (i) purchhs‘e the respective leased facilities during and for 180 days after the lease terms
at the same price, terms-and conditions of any third-party offer, or; (ii) renew the lease on the respective leased

facility at the end of, and for 1801de‘1ys after, the lease term at the same terms and conditions pursuant to any

third-party offer. The terms of the l‘eases also provide that in the event we discontinue operations at the leased
facility for more than one year, or éleCt to terminate a lease prior to the expiration of its term for prudent business
reasons, we are obligated to offer: a;substitution property. If the Trust does not accept the substitution property
offeted, we are obligated to purclélase the leased facility back from the Trust at a price equal to the greater of its
then fair market value or the original purchase price paid by the Trust.

We received an advisory fee from the Trust of $1.5 million in 2004, $1.5 million in 2003 and $1.4 million in
2002 for investment and adnﬁnisirative services provided under-a contractual agreement which is included in net
revenues in the accompanying cofns\olidated statements of income.

!

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive-officers, whoée terms will expire at such time as their successors are elected, are as follows:

Name and Ag%e ' PPresent Position with the Company

Alan B. Miller (67) ........... l‘ | Director, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
[ ‘ Executive Officer

Steve G. Filton (47) .......... .................. Senior Vice Pre51dent Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and
‘ ' Secretary

O. Edwin French (58) .. ....... L U Senior Vice President

Debra K. Osteen (49) ........ ; ................... Vice President

Richard C. Wright (57) ....... 1 P Vice President
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Mr. Alan B. Miller has been Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer since inception.
Prior thereto, he was President, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of American Medicorp, Inc.
He currently serves as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Trustee of the Trust. Mr, Miller also
serves as a Director of Penn Mutual Life Insurance Company and Broadlane, Inc. (an e-commerce marketplace
for healthcare supplies, equipment and services).

Mr. Filton was elected Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in February, 2003 and he was
elected Secretary in September, 1999. He had served as Vice President and Controller since 1991.

Mr. French joined us in October 2001, as Senior Vice President, responsible for the Acute Care Hospital
Division. He had served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Physician Reliance Network from 1997 to
2000, as Senior Vice President of American Medical International from 1992 to 1995, as Executive Vice
President of Samaritan Health Systems of Phoenix from 1991 to 1992 and as Senior Vice President of Methodist
Health Systems, Inc. in Memphis from 1985 to 1991.

Ms. Osteen was elected Vice President in January 2000, responsible for the Behavioral Health Services
facilities. She has served in various capacities related to our Behavioral Health Services facilities since 1984

Mr. Wright was elected Vice President in May 1986. He has served in various capacities since 1978 and
currently heads the Development function.

We make available, free of charge, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments, if any, to those reports through our Internet website as soon as
reasonably practicable after they have been electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our Internet address
is http://www.uhsinc.com. Additionally, we have adopted corporate governance guidelines, a Code of Business
Conduct and Corporate Standards applicable to all our employees, officers and directors, a Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Officers and new charters for each of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and
Nominating and Governance Committee of our Board of Directors. These documents are also available on our
Internet website under the “Investor Relations” hyperlink. Copies of these documents are also available in print
to any stockholder who requests a copy. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 10 of Form
8-K relating to amendments to or waivers from any provision of our Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers
by posting this information on our Internet website. Our website address is listed above.
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ITEM 2. Properties ]

Executive Offices

We own an office building Wlth 68,000 square feet available for use located on 11 acres of land in King of

Prussia, Pennsylivania.

i
Facilities _ I

The following tables set forith the name, location, type of facility and, for acute care hospitals and behavioral
health centers, the number of licensed beds, for each of our facilities:

Name of Facility

Aiken Regional Medical Centers
Auburn Regional Medical Cenler ................
Central Montgomery Medical Center ..............
Chalmette Medical Center(1) . ..
Chalmette Medical Center({l) ................
Virtue Street Pavilion
Corona Regional Medical Center .
Desert Springs Hospital(2) ..... .0 ........... ...
Doctors’ Hospital of Laredo .. .1 ... ... ... .. ..
Edinburg Regional Medical Center B
Fort Duncan Medical Center ..!.
The George Washington Universﬁty Hospital(3) .....
Hospital San Pablo(14) . . . . ... i .................
Hospital San Pablo del Este(14) :
Lakewood Ranch Medical Center ................
Lancaster Community Hospital |................
Manatee Memorial Hospital . . . ' l ................
McAllen Medical Center(5) ... :. L
McAllen Medical Center(4) .| ...............
McAllen Heart Hospital ... 0. ..............
Methodist Hospital(13) .. ... ... S S
Methodist Hospital .
Lakeland Medical Pav1l1on
Northern Nevada Medical Center(3w ..............
Northwest Texas Healthcare Sybtiem ..............
Southwest Healthcare System(lO)
Inland Valley Campus . .. .; ................
Rancho Springs Campus . .
Spring Valley Hospital Medical Center(2) ..........
St. Mary's Regional Medical Center ..............
Summerlin Hospital Medical Cente}(Z) ............
Valley Hospital Medical Center(2) |....oovvvnn..
Wellington Regional Medical Center(4) ...........

Acute Care Hospitals

Location

Aiken, South Carolina
Auburn, Washington
Lansdale, Pennsylvania

Chalmette, Louisiana
Chalmette, Louisiana
Corona, California
Las Vegas, Nevada
Laredo, Texas
Edinburg, Texas
Eagle Pass, Texas
Washington, D.C.
Bayamon, Puerto Rico
Fajardo, Puerto Rico
Bradenton, Florida
Lancaster, Califorma
Bradenton, Florida

McAllen, Texas
McAllen, Texas

New Orleans, Louisiana
New Orleans, Louisiana
Sparks, Nevada
Amarillo, Texas

Wildomar, California
Murrieta, California
Las Vegas, Nevada
Enid, Oklahoma

Las Vegas, Nevada
Las Vegas, Nevada

West Palm Beach, Florida
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Real Property
Number QOwnership
of Beds Interest
225 Owned
149 Owned
150 Owned
195
Leased
Owned
228 Owned
346 Owned
180 Owned
169 Owned
77 Owned
371 Owned
430 Owned
180 Owned
120 Owned
117 Owned
319 Owned
633
Leased
Owned
360
Owned
Owned
100 Owned
447 Owned
176
Leased
Owned
176 Owned
277 Owned
274 Owned
409 Owned
143 Leased



Médi-Partenaires (Paris/Bordeaux)

Real
Property
Number  Ownership
Name of Facility(11) Location of Beds Interest
Clinique Ambroise Paré .......... .. . ... . ..o Toulouse, France 198 Owned
Clinique Bon SEcours .. ... o Le Puy en Velay, France 96 Owned
Clinique d ATessy ... ..ottt e Pau, France 179 Owned
Clinique Bercy ......... . Charenton le Pont, France 92 Owned
Clinique duLouvre ... ... s Paris, France 20 Owned
Clinique du Trocad8ro . ..., . ..eviiiuit e e Paris, France 50 Owned
Clinique Montréal .. ... ... Carcassonne, France 125 Owned
Clinique NOtre Dame . .. ..ottt ettt e i Thionville, France 73 Owned
Clinique Pasteur ......... ... ... Bergerac, France 96 Owned
Clinique Richelieu ....... ... ... . Saintes, France 73 Owned
Clinique Sailt AUZUSTIL . . ...t ot e e e Bordeaux. France 155 Owned
Clinique Villette ... ... e Dunkerque, France 117 Owned
Hépital Clinique Claude Bemard .. ... ... ... ... ... .. .. .. oot Metz, France 224 Owned
Polyclinique St.Jean ... i e Montpellier, France 102 Owned
Behavioral Health Centers
Real
Property
Number  Ownership

Name of Facility Location of Beds Interest
Anchor Hospital ........ ... . oo i P Atlanta, Georgia 84 Owned
The Arbour Hospital ........... ... ... ... . Boston, Massachusetts 118 Owned
The Bridgeway(4) . ... ... North Little Rock, Arkansas 70 Leased
The Carolina Center for Behavioral Health ................................. Greer, South Carolina 66 Owned
Clarion Psychiatric Center . ........ ... ... ... .. ... . e Clarion, Pennsylvania 74 Owned
Community Behavioral Health .. ............... ... ... . ... . Memphis, Tennessee 50 Leased
Coastal Harbor Treatment Center ... ..o er et vt Savannah, Georgia 112 Owned
Del AmoHospital ... e Torrance, California 166 Owned
Fairmount Behavioral Health System .. .......... ... ... ... ... oo Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 180 Owned
Forest View Hospital ... . .. .. . . .. Grand Rapids, Michigan 62 Owned
Fuller Memorial Hospital . ...... ... . oo i South Attleboro, Massachusetts 82 Owned
Glen Oaks Hospital ... ... ... o e Greenville, Texas 54 Owned
Good Samaritan Counseling Center ............outiirn it nniienns Anchorage, Alaska — Owned
Hampton Hospital . ...... ... o i e Westhampton, New Jersey 100 Owned
Hartgrove Hospital ... ... Chicago, Illinois 128 Owned
The Horsham ClInIC . ...t Ambler, Pennsylvania 146 Owned
Hospital San Juan Capestrano . ...ttt Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico 108 Owned
HRIHospital .. ... . .. Brookline, Massachusetts 68 Owned
KeyStone Center(6) ........ ..o e Wallingford, Pennsylvania 119 Owned
La Amistad Behavioral Health Services ........... . ... .. ... .. ... ... .... Maitland, Florida 54 Owned
Lakeside Behavioral Health System ... ...... ... ... . ... . .. i Memphis, Tennessee 204 Owned
Laurel Heights Hospital ... .. .. . ... . .. i Atlanta. Georgia 102 Owned
The Meadows Psychiatric Center ........... ... ... .o Centre Hall, Pennsylvania 101 Owned
Meridell Achievement Center .. ........ ... .o i Austin, Texas 112 Owned
The Midwest Center for Youthand Families ... .................. ... ... ..... Kouts, Indiana 58 Owned
North Star Children’s Hospital ... ... ... o i i i Anchorage, Alaska 34 Owned
North Star Counseling Centers . ..........ueriinriiinin i, Anchorage, Alaska —_ Owned
North Star Hospital .. ... . e Anchorage. Alaska 74 Owned
Palmer Residential Treatment Center . .......... ... i ons Palmer, Alaska 29 Owned
Parkwood Behavioral Health System ........... ... oo oo Olive Branch, Mississippi 112 Owned
ThePavilion .. ... o e Champaign, Illinois 52 Owned
Peachford Behavioral Health Systemof Atlanta .................... ..., ... Atlanta, Georgia 184 Owned
Pembroke Hospital ........... ... . Pembroke, Massachusetts 115 Owned
Provo Canyon School ... ... . e Provo, Utah 242 Owned
Ridge Behavioral Health System ................ ... . ... ... ... Lexington, Kentucky 110 Owned
Rivendell Behavioral Health Services of Arkansas .. ............ ... .. ... .. Benton, Arkansas 77 Owned
Rivendell Behavioral Health Services of Kentucky ........................... Bowling Green, Kentucky 72 Owned
River Crest Hospital San Angelo, Texas 80 Owned
River Oaks Hospital New Orleans, Louisiana 126 Owned
Rockford Center .. .. .. Newark, Delaware 72 Owned
Roxbury(6) ............ . ... i i i i ee oL Shippensburg, Pennsylvania 48 Owned
St. Louis Behavioral Medicine Institute ... . .........ooivie i iiii i St. Louis, Missouri — Owned
Spring Mountain Treatment Center .. ................. ..o i o, .. Las Vegas, Nevada 82 Leased
Stonington Institute . ... ... e North Stonington, Connecticut 63 Owned
Talbott Recovery Campus ... ... ...t i e Atlanta, Georgia —_ Owned
Timberlawn Mental Health System .......... .. .. ... ..o i, Dallas, Texas 124 Owned
Turning Point Care Center(6) ... ...t i Moultrie, Georgia 59 Owned
Two Rivers Psychiatric Hospital ............ ... ... .. .. ... ... ..., Kansas City, Missouri 80 Owned
Westwood Lodge Hospital ............ .. ... ... .. ... . il Westwood, Massachusetts 133 Owned



Ambulatory Surgery Centers

Real
Property
' Ownership
Name of Facility Locatiolil Interest
OJOS/Eye Surgery Specialists|of Puerto Rico(8) ...... Santurce, Puerto Rico Leased
Goldring Surgical Center . ......................... Las Vegas, Nevada Leased
Northwest Texas Surgery Center(8) ................. Amarillo, Texas Leased
Providence Surgical and Medlcal Center(7) .......... Laredo, Texas Leased
Surgery Center at We]hngton(19) e West Palm Beach, Florida Leased
Surgery Center of Midwest C1ty(7) e Midwest City, Oklahoma Leased
Surgery Center of Spnngﬁeld(ﬁ) ................... Springfield, Missouri Leased
Surgical Arts Surgery Center(8) .. .................. Reno, Nevada Leased
Surgical Center of South Te)%as e Edinburg, Texas Owned
Radiation Oncology Centers
Name of Facility E Location
Auburn Regional Center for Cdncer Care .............. Auburn, Washington Leased
Cancer Institute of Nevada(S)(lZ) .................... Las Vegas, Nevada Owned
Carolina Cancer Center ... .|....................... Aiken, South Carolina Owned
E Specialized Women’s Health Center
Name of Facility 5 | Locawtiﬂ
Renaissance Women'’s Centér of Edmond(8)(12) ........ Edmond, Oklahoma Owned

(1) Includes Chalmette Medlcal JCenter a 118-bed medical/surgical facility and The Virtue Street Pavilion, a
77-bed facility consisting of a physical rehabilitation unit, skilled nursing and inpatient behavioral health
services.

(2) Desert Springs Hospital, Sumimerhn Hospital Medical Center, Valley Hospital Medical Center and Spring
Valley Hospital Medical Center are owned by limited liability companies (“LLC) in which we hold
controlling, majority ownershlp interests of approximately 72%. The remaining minority ownership
interests in these facilities are held by unaffiliated third-parties. All hospitals are managed by us.

" (3) General partnership 1nterest in limited partnership.

(4) Real property leased from the Trust.

(5) Real property of McAllen Medical Center is leased from the Trust. During 2000, we purchased the assets
of an 80-bed non-acute care fﬁmhty located in McAllen, Texas. Although the real property of the non-acute
facility is not leased from the Trust, the license for this facility is included in McAllen Medical Center’s

. license. |

(6) Addictive disease facility. |

" (7) Each facility is owned in partnershlp form. We own general and limited partnership interests in a limited
partnership. ;

(8) We own a majority interest 1n aLLC.
(9) We own a minority interest inja LLC that owns and operates this center.

(10) Southwest Healthcare System consists of the Inland Valley Campus in Wildomar, California and the
Rancho Springs Campus in Murrieta, California.

(11) All facilities located in France are owned by an operating company in which we own an 80% equity
interest.

(12) Real property is owned by al hmlted partnership or LLC that is majority owned by us.

(13) In January, 2004, we purchas:ed a controlling 90% ownership interest in a LLC (10% ownership interest
held by a third- party) that ’0\;vns the assets and operations of Methodist Hospital, a 306-bed acute care
facility located in New Orleans, Louisiana, and in February, 2004 this LLC purchased the assets and
operations of Lakeland Medm al Pavilion, a 54-bed acute care facility located in New Orleans.

l
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(14) Subsequent to December 31, 2004, we executed a definitive agreement to sell these two acute care
hospitals located in Puerto Rico. The sales, which are subject to regulatory approval, are expected to be
completed by March 31, 2005.

Some of these facilities are subject to mortgages, and substantially all the equipment located at these
facilities is pledged as collateral to secure long-term debt. We own or lease medical office buildings adjoining
some of our hospitals.

We believe that the leases or liens on the facilities, medical office buildings and other real estate leased or
owned by us do not impose any material limitation on our operations.

The aggregate lease payments on facilities leased by us were $36.8 million in 2004, $37.9 million in 2003
and $33.8 million in 2002.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including those arising from care and
treatment afforded by our hospitals and are party to various other litigation, as outlined below.

Lawsuits:

In December 2003, one of our subsidiaries, McAllen Hospitals, L..P., was named as a defendant in a case
filed in the District Court of Hidalgo County, Texas, 275" Judicial District, under the caption Rio OB-Gyn
Partners Ltd. v. McAllen Hospitals, L.P., Cause No. C-3128-03-E. The plaintiff is a physician group which
claims that McAllen and its agents committed fraud or negligent misrepresentation in promising to build an OB-
Gyn hospital and inducing the plaintiff to cancel an agreement with another party to build a competing OB-Gyn
hospital.

On or about March 22 through March 26, 2004 two purported class action Complaints were filed against us
and certain of our officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania alleging that defendants violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder by disclosing materially false and misleading information or failing to disclose material information
necessary to make other disclosure not misleading or to correct prior disclosure with respect to our financial
condition and operations. A claim is asserted against the individual defendants under section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act alleging that because they controlled the Company, they should be held liable for damages caused
by the Company’s violation of section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 thereunder. Plaintiffs seek, on behalf of a purported
class of purchasers of our common stock during a class period from July 21, 2003 through February 27, 2004,
unspecified money damages, restitution, attorneys’ fees and reimbursement of expenses.

Pursuant to an Order of the Court, these two cases were consolidated into one action captioned: In re
Universal Health Services, Inc. Securities Litigation, Case No. CV-04-01233-JP. Subsequently, the plaintiffs
filed an Amended Consolidated Class Action Complaint. The defendants have moved to dismiss that complaint.
The motion to dismiss has been fully briefed and oral argument was held on March 9, 2005.

On July 6, 2004, we were served with a complaint filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania captioned “Eastside Investors LLP, derivatively and on behalf of nominal defendant,
Universal Health Services, Inc., v. Alan B. Miller, Robert Hotz, Anthony Pantaleoni and Steve G. Filton.”
Plaintiff subsequently filed an amended complaint which dropped Messrs Hotz and Pantaleoni as defendants.
Plaintiff purports to assert claims derivatively on behalf of the Company against our officers and directors
seeking to recover on behalf of the Company unspecified damages to redress alleged breaches of fiduciary duty,
abuses of control and gross mismanagement by the individual defendants. The complaint also seeks equitable
relief and attorneys’ fees. We are named as a nominal defendant in that action. The Court has granted the parties’
joint motion in the derivative action asking that the Defendants’ time to respond to the complaint be extended
until after the decision on the motion to dismiss the class action complaint. That motion is pending.
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On August 5, 2004, we weré named, together with our subsidiary Valley Hospital Medical Center, Inc., as
defendants in a lawsuit filed in C}ark County, Nevada, under the caption Deborah Louise Poblocki v. Universal
Health Services, Inc., et al., No. Q4]-A—489927-C. The plaintiff alleges that we overcharged her and other
similarly situated patients who la:cked health insurance. The complaint seeks class action treatment.

The complaint, filed by plair;tiff individually and on behalf of other unnamed class members, alleges that
Valley Hospital Medical Center charged her “unconscionable rates” because it charged her, an uninsured
outpatient, more than it charged ihshred patients and more than the cost of the services provided. She claims that
this alleged conduct violates state civil RICO laws as well as other state statutory and common law. We filed a
notice of removal to federal court, And plaintiff filed a motion to remand back to state court. The court has not yet

ruled on plaintiff’s motion.

In October, 2004, one of our| sub51d1ar1es Aiken Regional Medical Centers, Inc., received a complaint filed
in state court in South Carolina (Case No. 04-CP-02-1275). The complaint, filed by the plaintiff individually and
on behalf of other unnamed, putang class members, alleges that Aiken breached its contract with the plaintiff
(and other putative plaintiffs), or in the alternative Aiken was unjustly enriched, by virtue of billing and

collecting full hospital charges fro:m the plaintiff and other putative class members.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

l
No matter was submitted durmg the fourth quarter of the fiscal yedr ended December 31, 2004 to a vote of
security holders. ,
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PART 11

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our Class B Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Shares of our Class A, Class C and
Class D Common Stock are not traded in any public market, but are each convertible into shares of our Class B
Common Stock on a share-for-share basis.

Number of shareholders of record as of January 31, 2005, were as follows:

Class ACommon ........... 11
ClassBCommon............ 428
ClassCCommon ............ 5
ClassDCommon ........... 163

During 1998 and 1999, our Board of Directors approved stock repurchase programs authorizing us to
purchase up to 12 million shares of our outstanding Class B Commeon Stock on the open market at prevailing
market prices or in negotiated transactions off the market. In November, 2004, an additional 2 million shares
were approved for repurchase. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we purchased 559,481 shares at an
average price of $42.07 per share or $23.5 million in the aggregate. Since inception of the stock purchase
program in 1998 through December 31, 2004, we purchased a total of 11,437,404 shares at an average purchase
price of $25.76 per share or $294.6 million in the aggregate. As of December 31, 2004, the maximum number of
shares that may yet be purchased under the program is 2,562,596 shares.

Number of Maximum

shares number of

purchased as shares that

Total part of Aggregate may yet be

number of publicly Average purchase purchased

shares announced price paid price paid under the

2004 period purchased programs per share  (in thousands) program
October, 2004 . ... ... .. .. i 346,000 346,000 $41.33 $14,300 641,540
November, 2004 . ......................... 77,500 77,500 $41.86 $ 3,244 2,564,040
December, 2004 ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,444 1,444 $47.33 $ 68 2,562,596
Total October through December ............. 424,944 424,944 $41.45 317,612 2,562,596

Dividends

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we announced the initiation of quarterly cash dividends, commencing
with the fourth quarter of 2003. During the two years ending December 31, 2004, dividends per share were
declared as follows:

2004 2003
FITSt QUATTET .. oottt et e e e e e $.08 —
Second QUATTET .. .ottt et e $.08 —
Third QUAITEL . .. ..o e $.08 —
Fourth quarter ... ... o $.08 $.08
Total . $32  $.08
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data‘

z
i
1
)
:

Year Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Summary of Operations (in thousands)_
Netrevenues . ................... L. § 3,938320 § 3,391,506 $ 2,991,919 $ 2,582,423 § 1,985,913
Netincome ..................... L R 169,492 & 199,269 § 175,361 § 99,742 § 93,362
Netmargin ..............c...... R 4.3% 5.9% 5.9% 3.9% 4.7%
Return on average equity . ......... f dgo 14.4% 20.0% 19.6% 12.8% 13.7%
Financial Data (in thousands) ‘
Cash provided by operating activities i .{. .~ $ 392,880 $ 376,775 % 331,259 3 297543 $ 174,821
Capital expenditures. net(1) ... ... . ,‘i. .08 230,905 $ 224370 % 207,627 $ 160,748 % 115,751
Totalassets .................. -8 3,022,843 % 2,772,730 3 2,329,137 % 2,168,589 § 1,742,377
Long-term borrowings ......... $ 852,229 $ 868,566 $ 680,514 % 718,830 $ 548,064
Common stockholders’ equity i -8 1,220,586 $ 1,090,922 % 917459 $ 807,900 $ 716,574
Percentage of total debt to total i '
capitalization ................. L 42% 45% 43% 47% 43%
Operating Data—Acute Care Hospltals in
U.S. i
Average licensed beds ............ Lo 5,645 4,792 4,801 4,502 3,972
Average availablebeds ........... !k A4 4,860 4,119 3,966 3,795 3,388
Hospital admissions .............. . L 251,655 227,932 224,286 196,234 171,900
Average length of patient stay . .. ... Lol 4.6 4.5 4.5 4.6 4.6
Patientdays .................... Ny 1,150,882 1,032,348 1,013,395 896,874 790,219
Occupancy rate for licensed beds . ..%. L, ‘ 56% 59% 58% 55% 54%
Occupancy rate for available beds ...+ . L ‘ 65% 69% 70% 65% 64%
Operating Data—Behavioral Health ;
Facilities !
Average licensed beds ............ vl 4,225 3,894 3,752 3,732 2,612
Average available beds .......... 4,145 3,762 3,608 3,588 2,552
Hospital admissions ............. 04,743 87,688 84,348 78,688 49,971
Average length of patientstay ......1.1. 13.0 122 119 12.1 122
Patientdays ....................0. L 1,234,152 1,067,200 1,005,882 950,236 608,423
Occupancy rate for licensed beds : 80% 75% 73% 70% 64%
Occupancy rate for available beds . .. : 2 81% 78% 76% 73% 65%
Operating Data—Acute Care Hospitals in
France(2) ;
Average licensed beds .. ............ | 1,588 1,433 1,083 720 —
Average available beds ........... .. | 1,588 1,433 1,083 720 —
Hospital admissions ............../! ‘ e 94,536 82,364 63,781 38,627 -
Average length of patient stay .. ..... L 4.7 5.0 5.0 4.7 —
Patientdays ....................! ' A 442,825 409,860 319,100 180,111 —
Occupancy rate for licensed beds ... .. .. 76% 8% 81% 69% —
Occupancy rate for available beds ... .. .. 76% 78% 81% 69% —
Per Share Data
Net income—basic(3) ............. RN TR 294 % 345§ 294 % 1.67 §$ 1.55
Net income—diluted(3) ............ R 275§ 320 % 274§ 1.60 3 1.50
Other Information (in thousands) |
Weighted average number of common |
shares—basic(3) ................ S .| 57,653 57,688 59.730 59,874 60,220
Weighted average number of common . :
shares and equivalents—diluted(3) .i..{ 64,865 65,089 67,075 67,220 64,820
Common Stock Performance i
Market price of common stock :
High—Low, by quarter(4) |
Ist oo L.l $56.51—3$43.97 $46.58—$34.99 $43.00-—$37.80 $50.69—$38.8%8 $24.50—3$18.25
2nd o L. | $46.55—342.53 $4548--$34.77 $51.90—$42.31 $46.75—3$37.82  $35.03—$24.50
3cd oo L.l $46.10—$42.04  $52.00-$39.76  $31.40—$41.90 $52.60—$42.65 $42.81—$31.91
dth oo L $48.51—8$39.87 $54.30—8$44.34  $56.20—8$43.00 $48.60—$38.25 $55.88—$38.63
(1) Amount includes non-cash capital leaise obligations.
(2) The facilities located in France are owned by an operating company that is 80% owned by us.

©)

In April 2001, the Company declared a‘two for-one stock split in the form of a 100% stock dividend which was paid in June 2001. All

classes of common stock participated on a pro rata basis. The weighted average number of common shares and equivalents and earnings
per common and common equlvalent share for all years presented have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split.

€

These prices are the high and low closmg sales prices of the Company’s Class B Common Stock as reported by the New York Stock

Exchange (all periods have been adju§ted to reflect the two-for-one stock split in the form of a 100% stock dividend paid in June, 2001).
Class A, C and D Common Stock are{convertible on a share-for-share basis into Class B Common Stock.
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ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Operations and Financial Condition
Overview

Our principal business is owning and operating, through our subsidiaries acute care hospitals, behavioral
health centers and ambulatory surgery and radiation oncology centers. As of March 1, 2005, we operated 44
acute care hospitals and 49 behavioral health centers located in 23 states, Washington, DC, Puerto Rico and
France. As part of our ambulatory treatment centers division, we manage and own outright or in partnership with
physicians, 12 surgery and radiation oncology centers located in 7 states and Puerto Rico. Subsequent to
December 31, 2004, we executed a definitive agreement to sell two acute care hospitals located in Puerto Rico.

The divestitures, which are subject to customary regulatory approvals, are expected to be completed by March
31, 2005.

Net revenues from our acute care hospitals (including the facilities located in France) and our ambulatory
and radiation oncology centers accounted for 82%, 82% and 81% of consolidated net revenues in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Net revenues from our behavioral health care facilities accounted for 18%, 18% and 19%, of
consolidated net revenues in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Services provided by our hospitals include general surgery, internal medicine, obstetrics, emergency room
care, radiology, oncology, diagnostic care, coronary care, pediatric services and behavioral health services. We
provide capital resources as well as a variety of management services to our facilities, including central
purchasing, information services, finance and control systems, facilities planning, physician recruitment services,
administrative personnel management, marketing and public relations.

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

The matters discussed in this report as well as our news releases issued from time to time include certain
statements containing the words “believes”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “expects” and words of similar import,
which constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
that may cause industry results and/or our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different
from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

Such factors include, among other things, the following:

* possible unfavorable changes in the levels and terms of reimbursement for our charges by third party
payors or government programs, including Medicare or Medicaid;

+ industry capacity, demographic changes, existing laws and government regulations and changes in or
failure to comply with laws and governmental regulations;

+  our ability to enter into managed care provider agreements on acceptable terms;
*+ liability and other claims asserted against us;

* liabilities arising out of shareholders’ suits which have been commenced against us and certain of our
officers and directors;

+ the continuing high number of governmental inquiries, investigations and administrative and legal
actions being taken against health care providers, which, if directed at us or one of our facilities, could
significantly increase costs and expenses;

» competition from other healthcare providers, including physician owned facilities in certain markets,
including McAllen, Texas, the site of one of our largest acute care facilities, and/or the loss of
significant customers;

» technological and pharmaceutical improvements that increase the cost of providing, or reduce the
demand for healthcare;
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*  our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including nurses, and our ability to recruit physicians
to provide services at 01:1r facilities;

° our ability to successfully integrate our recent acquisitions;

 asignificant portion of our revenues are produced by a small number of our facilities;
° our ability to finance grbwth on favorable terms;
i
° many of our acute care facilities continue t6 experience decreasing inpatient admission trends;

o our acute care facilities Ec?ntinue to experience an increase in uninsured and self-pay patients which
unfavorably impacts the collectibility of our patient accounts;

¢ our financial statementsi raﬂe,ct large amounts due from various commercial and private payors
(including amounts duejfrom patients) and there can be no assurance that failure of the payors to remit

amounts due to us will not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations;

|

* we have experienced a éignificant increase in professional and general liability and property insurance
expense caused by unfa:vdrable pricing and availability trends of commercial insurance and as a result,
we have assumed a grea’tejr portion of our liability risk and consequently, there can be no assurance that
a continuation of these unfavorable trends, or a sharp increase in claims asserted against us, which are

self-insured, will not have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations, and;
x

*  other factors referenced herein or in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

‘ “ .
Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-

looking statements. We disclaim any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly announce the result of

any revisions to any of the forwafrd’—looking statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments.

|
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of ﬁnanmal stfitements in conformity with accountlng principles generally accepted in the
United States requires us to makq estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated

financial statements and accompanying notes.

A summary of our s1gmﬁcant accounting policies are outlined in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. We consider our crmcal accounting policies to be those that require us to make significant judgments
and estimates when we prepare opr consolidated financial statements, including the following:

Revenue Recognition: We record revenues and related receivables for health care services at the time the
services are provided. We have agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to us at amounts
different from our established rates! Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge,
reimbursed costs, discounted charge‘:s and per diem payments. We report net patient service revenue at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered. Medicare and
Medicaid revenues represented 40% 41% and 42% of our net patient revenues during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Revenues from managed care entities, including health maintenance organizations and managed
Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for 40% of our net patient revenues during each of the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Laws and regulations govermng the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to
interpretation and as a result, ther(e is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by
material amounts in the near term;. We estimated certain Medicare and Medicaid revenues using the latest
available financial information, patient utilization data, government provided data and in accordance with
applicable Medicare and Medicaid f:)ayment rules and regulations. Certain types of payments by the Medicare

program and state Medicaid progfaﬂns are subject to retroactive adjustrnent in future periods. We accrue for the
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estimated amount of these retroactive adjustments in the period when the services subject to retroactive
settlement are recorded. Such amounts are included in accounts receivable, net, on our consolidated balance
sheets. These revenues (e.g. Medicare Disproportionate Share Hospital, Medicare Allowable Bad Debts and
Inpatient Psychiatric Services) are subject to retrospective review and final settlement by the Medicare program.
Adjustments related to the final settlement of these retrospectively determined amounts did not materially impact
our operating results in 2004, 2003 and 2002. A 1% adjustment to our estimated net revenues recorded in
connection with Medicare revenues that are subject to retrospective review and settlement as of December 31,
2004, would change our after-tax net income by approximately $1.6 million. The large majority of the revenues
generated by the acute care hospitals owned by our France subsidiary are paid by the government based on
predetermined rates established in May of each year and consist of a per diem payment and per procedure rate
plus reimbursement for certain supplies.

We provide care to patients who meet certain financial or economic criteria without charge or at amounts
substantially less than our established rates. Because we do not pursue collection of amounts determined to
qualify as charity care, they are not reported in net revenues or in accounts receivable, net. Our acute care
hospitals located in the U.S. provided charity care, based on charges at established rates, amounting to $294.7
million, $241.2 million and $186.2 million during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At our acute care facilities located in the U.S., Medicaid Pending accounts comprise the large majority of
our receivables that are pending approval from third-party payors but we also have smaller amounts due from
other miscellaneous payors such as county indigent programs in certain states. Approximately 5% or $26.0
million as of December 31, 2004 and 4% or $20.7 million as of December 31, 2003 of our accounts receivable,
net, were comprised of Medicaid Pending accounts.

Our patient registration process includes an interview of the patient or the patient’s responsible party at the
time of registration. At that time, an insurance eligibility determination is made and an insurance plan code is
assigned. There are various pre-established insurance profiles in our patient accounting system which determine
the expected insurance reimbursement for each patient based on the insurance plan code assigned and the
services rendered. Certain patients may be classified as Medicaid Pending at registration if we are unable to
definitively determine if they are Medicaid eligible. When a patient is registered as Medicaid eligible or
Medicaid Pending, our patient accounting system records net revenues for services provided to that patient based
upon the established Medicaid reimbursement rates pending ultimate disposition of the patient’s Medicaid and
eligibility.

Based on historical information related to Medicaid Pending accounts, we estimate that approximately 63%
or $16.3 million of the $26.0 million Medicaid Pending accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 will
subsequently qualify for Medicaid Pending reimbursement. Approximately 60% or $12.5 million of the $20.7
million Medicaid Pending accounts receivable as of December 31, 2003, subsequently qualified for Medicaid
reimbursement and were therefore appropriately classified at the patient’s registration. The majority of the
remaining accounts that ultimately did not qualify for Medicaid reimbursement were subsequently reclassified as
self-pay or charity care accounts. Based on general factors as discussed below in Provision for Doubtful
Accounts, our facilities make estimates at each financial reporting period to reserve for amounts that are deemed
to be uncollectible. Such estimated uncollectible amounts related to Medicaid Pending, as well as other accounts
receivable payor classifications, are considered when the overall individual facility and company-wide reserves
are developed. Related specifically to accounts classified as Medicaid Pending, our facilities establish reserves
for such accounts based on agings of the receivables, historical collection experience and conversion rates (i.e.
the above mentioned percentages of Medicaid Pending amounts that ultimately qualify for Medicaid
reimbursement). Based on this methodology, our analyses indicated that we had adequate reserves established as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003 for accounts that will not/did not ultimately qualify for Medicaid reimbursement
(or county indigent program reimbursement) and were therefore reclassed to self-pay or charity care.
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i
Below are the Medicaid Pendmg receivable agings as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 (amounts in
thousands): !

F December 31, December 31,

5 2004 2003

i ’ : Amount % Amount %
Under 60 days I ................................ $ 9,125 352 $ 7,820 379
61-120days ............... ‘ ................................... 6,023 232 5455 264
121-180days .............. ........................... e 3,817 147 3,008 14.6
Over 180days ............. ................................... 6,999 269 4373  21.1
TOl oot $25,964 100.0 $20,656 100.0

Provision for Doubtful Accounts: Collection of receivables from third-party payors and patients is our
primary source of cash and is critical to our operating performance. Our primary collection risks relate to uninsured
patients and the portion of the bifll which is the patient’s responsibility, primarily co-payments and deductibles. We
estimate our provisions for doubtful accounts based on general factors such as payor mix, the agings of the
receivables and historical collecﬁo‘n éxperience We routinely review accounts receivable balances in conjunction
with these factors and other econormc conditions which might ultimately affect the collectibility of the patient
accounts and make ad_mstments;tq our allowances as warranted. At our acute care hospitals, third party liability
accounts are pursued at the hosp1ta1 level until all payment and adjustments are posted to the patient account. For
those accounts with a patient balance after third party liability is exhausted, the patient is sent at least two statements
followed by a series of three collelctlon letters. If the patient is deémed unwilling or unable to pay, the account is
written off as bad debt and transferred to an outside collection agency for additional collection effort. Self-pay
receivables are outsourced to seyel‘ral early out collection agencies under contract with the hospital. The collection
vendor must make at least three pa‘tient contacts and send three statements from the date of placement. If the patient

fails to respond or express a willingness to pay, the account is returned to the hospital and subsequently written off
as bad debt and transferred to an !odtside agency for additional collection effort.

During the collection process the hospital establishes a partial reserve in the allowance for doubtful accounts
for self-pay balances outstandmg for greater than 60 days from the date of discharge. All self-pay accounts at the
hospital level are fully reserved ;f they become outstanding for greater than 90 days from the date of discharge.
Third party liability accounts are fully reserved in the allowance for doubtful accounts when the balance ages
past 180 days from the date of discharge. On a consolidated basis, we monitor our total self-pay receivables to
ensure that the total allowance for|doubtful accounts provides adequate coverage based on historical collection
experience. Significant changeséin business office operations, payor mix, economic conditions or trends in
federal and state governmental lileélth coverage could affect our collection of accounts receivable, cash flow and
results of operations. At Decembe‘r 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable are recorded net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $71.4 millfon and $56.4 million, respectively.

B

Approximately 93% during 2004, 94% during 2003 and 91% during 2002, of our consolidated provision for
doubtful accounts, was 1ncurred5 by our acute care hospitals located in the U.S. Shown below is our payor mix
concentrations and related aging of accounts receivable for our acute care hospitals located in the U.S. as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003 (qxcludes facilities reflected as discontinued operations in our consolidated
financial statements): '

As of December 31, 2004:

(amounts in thousands) ‘ 0-60 days  61-120 days 121-180 days Over 180 days
Medicare ................. T $ 53,040 $ 6346 $2053  $ 5508
Medicaid ................. 0 PO 18,582 11,912 8,177 19,650
Commercial insurance and other ...................... 144,029 48,958 18,871 38,488
Privatepay ............... T 48,107 8,419 5,693 6,965
Total .................... | $263,758  $75,635 $34,794 $70,611




As of December 31, 2003:

(amounts in thousands) 0-60 days  61-120 days 121-180 days Over 180 days
Medicare ........ i $ 47,569 $ 5,765 $ 2,138 $ 4,234
Medicaid ... ... ... . . 18,149 10,037 5,684 8,058
Commercial insurance andother ...................... 118,168 42,668 14,782 25,088
Private pay ......... ... 36,240 15,922 10,230 4,456
Total ... e $220,126  $74,392 $32,834 $41,836

Self-Insured Risks: We provide for self-insured risks, primarily general and professional liability claims
and workers’ compensation claims, based on estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims
incurred but not reported. Estimated losses from asserted and incurred but not reported claims are accrued based
on our estimates of the ultimate costs of the claims, which includes costs associated with litigating or settling
claims, and the relationship of past reported incidents to eventual claims payments. All relevant information,
including our own historical experience, the nature and extent of existing asserted claims and reported incidents,
and independent actuarial analyses of this information, is used in estimating the expected amount of claims. We
also consider amounts that may be recovered from excess insurance carriers, state guaranty funds and other
sources in estimating our ultimate net liability for such risk. We also maintain a self-insured workers’
compensation program. Adjustments to our prior period, self-insured general and professional and workers’
compensation reserve estimates did not have a material impact on our financial statements during 2004, 2003 or
2002.

Below is a schedule showing the changes in our general and professional liability and workers’
compensation reserves during the three years ended December 31, 2004 (amount in thousands):

General and

Professional Workers’
Liability Compensation Total
Reserve balance at January 1,2002(a) ............. ... .. ... ... ... $105,591 $ 12,403 $117,994
Plus: accrued insurance expense, net of commercial premiums paid . . . .. 45,880 12,436 58,316
Less: payments made in settlement of self-insured claims ............. (22,302) (8,832) (31,134)
Balance at acquisition of acquired facility ......................... 2,015 1,672 3,687
Balance at January 1,2003(2) .. ...... .o 131,184 17,679 148,863
Plus: accrued insurance expense, net of commercial premiums paid . . . .. 48,154 18,590 66,744
Less: payments made in settlement of self-insured claims ............. (31,594) (11,808) (43,402)
Balance at January 1,2004(a) ....... ... i e 147,744 24,461 172,205
Plus: accrued insurance expense, net of commercial premiums paid . . ... 58,272 19,984 78,256
Less: payments made in settlement of self-insured claims .. ........... (33,482) (13,371) (46,853)
Balance at December 31,2004(a) ... $172,534 $ 31,074  $203,608

(a) Net of expected recoveries from various state guaranty funds, insurance companies and other sources in
connection with PHICO related professional and general liability claims payments.

In addition, we also maintain self-insured employee benefits programs for employee healthcare and dental
claims. The ultimate costs related to these programs include expenses for claims incurred and paid in addition to
an accrual for the estimated expenses incurred in connection with claims incurred but not yet reported.

Long-Lived Assets: In accordance with SFAS No.144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets”, we review our long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. The
assessment of possible impairment is based on our ability to recover the carrying value of our assets based on our
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estimate of its undiscounted future cash flow. If the analysis indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable
from future cash flows, the assetiis written down to its estimated fair value and an impairment loss is recognized.
Fair values are determined based on estimated future cash flows using appropriate discount rates.

T
Goodwill: In accordance Qwith SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, we ceased

amortizing goodwill as of January |1, 2002. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the reporting unit level as,
defined by SFAS No. 142, on an annual basis or sooner if the indicators of impairment arise. Our judgments
regarding the existence of 1mpan19ent indicators are based on market conditions and operational performance of
each reporting unit. We have designated September 1% as our annual impairment assessment date and performed
an impairment assessment as of Se‘ptember 1, 2004, which indicated no impairment of goodwill. Future changes
in the estimates used to conduct the impairment review, including profitability and market value projections,
could indicate 1mpa1rment in future periods potentially resulting in a write-off of a portion or all of our goodwill.

Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the amount of taxes payable or
deductible in future years as a result of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts in the consohdatxed financial statements. We believe that future income will enable us to realize
our deferred tax assets and therefor]e no valuation allowances have been recorded.

We operate in multiple jurisgdictions with varying tax laws. We are subject to audits by any of these taxing
authorities. Our tax returns have: been examined by the Internal Revenue Service through the year ended
December 31, 2002. We believe that adequate accruals have been provided for federal and state taxes.

Results of Operations

The following table summaxgiz‘es our results of operations, and is used in the discussion below, for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 Eand 2002 (dollar amounts in thousands):

| Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
% of % of % of
| Amount Revenues Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
Netrevenues ............... L. $3,938,320  100.0% -$3,391,506  100.0% $2,991,919 100.0%
Operating charges: ’
Salaries, wages & benefits t Jooooo 1,607,103 40.8% 1,355,047 40.0% 1,193,258 39.9%
Other operating expenses .| .. .... 916,542 23.2% 778,656 23.0% 717,805 24.0%
Supplies expense . ...... bl . 546,801  13.9% 449,225 13.2% 376,755 12.6%
Provision for doubtful Accofunts .. 307,163 7.8% 252,644 7.4% 218,947 7.3%
Depreciation & amortization |. . . .. 155,514 4.0% 130,039 3.8% 109,246 3.6%
Lease & rental expense ... .|..... 70,433 1.8% 59,479 1.8% 56,943 1.9%

3,603,556 91.5% 3,025,090 89.2% 2,672,954 89.3%

Income before interest expense,

minority interests & income ta:xes ce 334,764 8.5% 366,416 10.8% 318,965 10.7%
Interest expense, net . ............... 43,405 1.1% 37,855 1.1% 34,096 1.1%
Minority interests in earnings of

consolidated entities ....... ! ...... 20,216 0.5% 22,265 0.7% 19,716 0.7%
Income before income taxes ... .|..... 271,143 6.9% 306,296 9.0% 265,153 8.9%
Provision for income taxes .. .. ...... 101,137 2.6% 114,217 3.3% 97,306 3.3%
Income from continuing operations . . . . 170,006 4.3% 192,079 5.7% 167,847 5.6%
(Loss) Income from discontinued

operations, net of income taxes |..... (514) 0.0% 7,190 0.2% 7,514 0.3%
Netincome ................ithon.. $ 169,492 43% $ 199,269 59% $ 175,361 5.9%
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Year Ended December 31, 2004 as cdmpared to the Year Ended December 31, 2003: Net revenues
increased 16% to $3.94 billion in 2004 as compared to $3.39 billion in 2003. The $547 million increase during
2004, as compared to 2003, was primarily attributable to:

* 2 $153 million or 5% increase in net revenues generated at acute care hospitals (located in the U.S. and
France) and behavioral health care facilities owned during both years (which we refer to as “same
facility™), and,;

¢ $387 million of revenues generated at acute care hospitals acquired or opened in the U.S. and France
and behavioral health facilities acquired at various times during 2003 and 2004 (excludes revenues
generated at these facilities one year after the 2003 opening or acquisition).

Income before income taxes decreased $35 million to $271 million during 2004 as compared to $306
million during 2003. The decrease in income before income taxes during 2004, as compared to 2003, resulted
primarily from: (i) a $50 million decrease at our acute care facilities (as discussed below in Acute Care Hospital
Services); (i1) a $9 million increase at our behavioral health care facilities (as discussed below in Behavioral
Health Services); (iii) an $8 million increase at our acute care hospitals located in France (as discussed below in
International and Other Operating Results); (iv) a $6 million decrease due to an increase in interest expense (as
discussed below in Other Operating Results); (v) an $11 million increase due to a cumulative reduction to
compensation expense in 2004 resulting from the reversal of expense related to restricted shares granted to our
Chief Executive Officer that were contingent on an earnings threshold which was not achieved, and; (vi) a $7
million decrease resulting from other combined net unfavorable changes.

Net income decreased $30 million during 2004, as compared to 2003, due to: (i) the $35 million decrease in
income before income taxes, as discussed above; (ii) partially offset by a $13 million decrease in income taxes
resulting from the tax benefit on the decrease in income before income taxes, and; (iii) an $8 million unfavorable
change in income/loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (as discussed below in Discontinued
Operations).

Year Ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002: Net revenues
increased 13% to $3.39 billion in 2003 as compared to $2.99 billion in 2002. The $400 million increase during
2003, as compared to 2002, was primarily attributable to:

* a$234 million or 8% increase in net revenues generated at our same facility acute care hospitals
(located in the U.S. and France) and behavioral health care facilities;

+  $91 million of revenues generated at acute care hospitals acquired or opened in the U.S. and France and
behavioral health facilities acquired at various times during 2002 and 2003 (excludes revenues
generated at these facilities one year after opening or acquisition).

* $61 million of other increases in net revenues consisting primarily of $29 million from reclassifying
certain supply costs incurred by our French hospitals and a $20 million increase resulting from favorable
exchange rate changes. Beginning January 1, 2003, we began recording as revenues and supplies
expense, the cost of certain medical devices which are billed to patients of our French hospitals.
Previously, these amounts were recorded net in our consolidated financial statements. During the year
ended December 31, 2002, these amounts were approximately $15 million. The change in accounting
presentation had no impact on previously reported operating income or net income.

Income before income taxes increased $41 million to $306 million during 2003 as compared to $265 million
during 2002. The increase in income before income taxes during 2003, as compared to 2002, resulted primarily
from: (i) a $25 million increase at our acute care facilities (as discussed below in Acute Care Hospital Services);
(ii) a $27 million increase at our behavioral health care facilities (as discussed below in Behavioral Health
Services); (ii1) a $4 million decrease due to an increase in interest expense (as discussed below in Other
Operating Results), and; (iv) an $7 million decrease resulting from other combined net unfavorable changes.
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Net income increased $24 million during 2003, as compared to 2002, due to the $41 million increase in

income before income taxes, as discussed above, partially offset by a $17 million increase in income taxes

resulting primarily from the income tax expense on the increase in income before income taxes.

Acute Care Hospital Services ir

Year Ended December 315, 2‘004 as compared to the Year Ended December 31,2003: The following
table summarizes the results of dperations for our acute care facilities located in the U.S. on a same facility basis
and is used in the discussions below for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (dollar amounts in

thousands): :
| ’ Year Ended Year Ended
| December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
; % of % of
Acute Care Hospitals—Same Facility Basis Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
Netrevenues ..............! : D :$2,576,360  100.0% $2,499,549  100.0%
Operating charges:
Salaries, wages and beneﬁts L 941,721 36.5% 895,803 35.9%
Other operating expenses .. L - 601,800 23.3% 571,564 22.9%
Supplies expense . ....... L 1 ........................ 375,262 14.6% 347,760 13.9%
Provision for doubtful accoun{ts ..................... . 241,317 9.4% 238,075 9.5%
Depreciation and amortization ....................... 107,347 4.2% 100,047 4.0%
Lease and rental expense . R 41,376 1.6% 41,233 1.6%

2,308,823 89.6% 2,194,482 87.8%

Income before interest expense, Hll{I]OI'lty interests and income

TAXES . oot e 267,537 10.4% 305,067 12.2%
Interest expense, net .. ... ‘ ......................... 233 0.0% 248 0.0%
Minority interests in em1ngs of consolidated entities .. ... 15,939 0.6% 16,953 0.7%

Income before income taxes ....1...... ... .. $ 251,365 98% $ 287,866 11.5%

On a same facility basis durmg 2004, as compared to 2003, net revenues at our acute care hospitals located
in the U.S. increased $76.8 million or 3.1%. Income before income taxes decreased $36.5 million or 12.7% to
$251.4 million or 9.8% of net reve‘nues during 2004 as compared to $287.9 million or 11.5% of net revenues
during 2003. The factors contnbutmg to the decrease in income before income taxes at these facilities are
discussed below. Inpatient adnugsmns to these facilities decreased 0.9% during 2004, as compared to 2003, while
patient days decreased 1.6%. Thé average length of patient stay at these facilities was 4.5 days in both 2004 and
2003. The occupancy rate, based  on the average available beds at these facilities, was 65.5% during 2004, as
compared to 68.7% during 2003 Qur same facility net revenues were favorably impacted by an increase in prices
charged to private payors mcludlng health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. On a
same facility basis, net revenue per adjusted admission (adjusted for outpatient activity) at these facilities
increased 2.8% during 2004, as eompared to 2003, and net revenue per adjusted patient day increased 3.4%
during 2004, as compared to 2003.
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The following table summarizes the results of operations for all our acute care facilities located in the U.S.
(including newly acquired and built facilities) and is used in the discussion below for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003 (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
% of % of

All Acute Care Hospitals Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
NELTEVENUES . ottt e e e e $2,897,719  100.0% $2,499,550 100.0%
Operating charges:

Salaries, wages and benefits ....... ... ... ... .. ... 1,089,042 37.6% 895,803 35.8%

Other operating €Xpemnses .................vuvunon... 683,373 23.6% 571,611 22.9%

Supplies eXpense . ...t 412,751 14.2% 340,764 13.6%

Provision for doubtful accounts . ..................... 285,779 9.9% 238,074 9.5%

Depreciation and amortization ....................... 119,998 4.1% 100,047 4.0%

Lease and rental eXpense ... .........couiiiiiii., 47,856 1.7% 41,272 1.7%

2,638,799 91.1% 2,187,571 87.5%

Income before interest expense, minority interests and income

BAXES ottt e e 258,920 8.9% 311,979 12.5%
Interest eXpense, Net .. ...t 302 0.0% 248 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities . .. .. 13,463 0.4% 16,953 0.7%

Income before income taxes ............ ... $ 245,155 8.5% $ 294,778 11.8%

During 2004, as compared to 2003, net revenues at our acute care hospitals located in the U.S. (including
newly acquired and built facilities), increased $398.2 million or 15.9%. The increase in net revenues was
attributable to a $76.8 million increase in same facility revenues and $318.6 million of revenues generated at
facilities acquired or opened during 2003 and 2004 (excludes revenues generated at these facilities one year after
the 2003 opening or acquisition). Income before income taxes decreased $49.6 million or 16.8% to $245.2
million or 8.5% of net revenues during 2004 as compared to $294.8 million or 11.8% of net revenues during
2003. The $49.6 million decrease in income before income taxes at our acute care facilities (including newly
acquired and built facilities), resulted primarily from a $36.5 miltion decrease at our acute care facilities owned
for more than a year, including a $20.9 million decrease experienced at our acute care facility in McAllen, Texas,
as discussed below. Also contributing to the decrease were losses experienced at our newly opened Lakewood
Ranch Hospital in Florida (opened during the third quarter of 2004) and Methodist Hospital in Louisiana which
was acquired in January, 2004.

Unfavorably impacting the income before income taxes at our acute care hospitals located in the U.S. during
2004, as compared to 2003 (on a same facility and all facility basis), were the following factors:

* decreasing inpatient admission attributable in part to a slower economy which has induced lower health
care consumption trends in many of our markets. Unfavorable economic conditions are more prevalent
in certain markets such as Amarillo, Texas and Auburn, Washington;

* acontinuation of an increase in uninsured and self-pay patients which unfavorably impacts the
collectibility of our patient accounts thereby increasing our provision for doubtful accounts and charity
care provided;

» the emergence of recent trends indicating the erosion of some business, including surgeries and better
paying, higher acuity patients, in certain markets such as McAllen, Texas and Aiken, South Carolina as
a result of increased hospital and physician competition;

* an increase in salaries, wages and benefits expense as a percentage of net revenues partially due to
decreasing inpatient admission trends and severance payments related to reductions in staffing levels, and;
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* anincrease in supplies lexpense partially due to the higher costs for orthopedic implants and high cost
cardiology supplies.

As mentioned above, income before income taxes at our acute care facility located in McAllen, Texas
decreased $20.9 million during 2004, as compared to 2003. Admissions and patient days declined at this facility
during 2004, as compared to 2003 due to intense hospital and physician competition. We expect the competitive
pressures in the market to remai:n and potentially intensify. The physician-owned hospital in the market added
new inpatient capacity in late ZQOA‘l which has the potential to further erode our higher margin business, including
cardiac procedures. As competition in this market has increased, wage rates and physician recruiting costs have

risen, exacerbating the proﬁtabil;itgf decline.

We believe that the slowing economy has accelerated health benefit design changes in which employers
shift costs to employees in the fc:)rr‘n of higher cost sharing. Since these changes may continue to have a
noticeable effect on health care consumption going forward, we expect the unfavorable patient volume and
provision for doubtful accounts trends to continue to pressure future results of operations until there is a notable
strengthening of the overall labor market. In response to the market share erosion in certain of our markets, we
have undertaken a program of fécility renovation/expansion and physician recruitment in several markets.

i
i
i

Year Ended December 31, 20Q3 as compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002:

The following table summzirizes the results of operations for our acute care facilities located in the U.S. on a
same facility basis and is used in the discussions below for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (dollar
amounts in thousands):

: Year Ended Year Ended
§ December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
i % of % of
Acute Care Hospitals—Same Facility Basis Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
Netrevenues .............. ‘ ........................... $2,486,031 100.0% $2,287,780 100.0%
Operating charges: s : _
Salaries, wages and beneﬁts ......................... 889,611 35.8% 820,196 35.8%
Other operating eXpenses | .| .......c...oveevvurnon... 567,528 22.8% 537,480 23.5%
Supplies expense . ...... E. .......................... 345,472 13.9% 324,724 14.2%
Provision for doubtful accourlts ...................... 237,259 9.5% 196,280 8.6%
Depreciation and amortlzat;on ....................... 98,936 4.0% 84,847 3.7%
Lease and rental €Xpense .| .|.........covveeneennnn... 41,132 1.7% 41,086 - 1.8%

2,179,938 87.7% 2,004,613 87.6%

Income before interest expense,

BAKES « oo et 306,093 12.3% 283,167 12.4%
Interest expense, net ....0. ... ... i 248 0.0% 304 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities .. ... 17,262 0.7% 17,186 0.8%

Income before income taxes . . N P $ 288,583 11.6% $ 265,677 11.6%

On a same facility basis duﬁn g 2003, as compared to 2002, net revenues at our acute care hospitals located
in the U.S. increased $198.3 mi1;1i0n or 8.7%. Income before income taxes at these facilities increased $22.9
million or 8.6% to $288.6 million or 11.6% of net revenues during 2003 as compared to $265.7 million or 11.6%
of net revenues during 2002. Inpatlent admissions and patient days to these facilities increased 1.1% and 1.4%,
respectively, during 2003, as compared to 2002. The average length of patient stay at these facilities was 4.5 days

_in both 2003 and 2002. The occupancy rate, based on the average available beds at these facilities, was 68.7%
. during 2003, as compared to 70. 0% during 2002. Our same facility net revenues were favorably impacted by an
increase in prices charged to pnyate payors including health maintenance organizations and preferred provider

1
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organizations. On a same facility basis, net revenue per adjusted admission at these facilities increased 6.4%
during 2003, as compared to 2002, and net revenue per adjusted patient day increased 6.1% during 2003, as
compared to 2002.

The following table summarizes the results of operations for all our acute care facilities located in the U.S.
(including newly acquired and built facilities) and is used in the discussion below for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002 (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
% of % of

All Acute Care Hospitals Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
NEtIEVENUES ..\ttt et et e e e $2,499,550 100.0% $2,292.417 100.0%
Operating charges:

Salaries, wages and benefits .. ............ ... ... ... 895,803 35.8% 818,484 35.7%

Other operating eXpenses . ............oveuuiennenn.. 571,611 22.9% 537,669 23.5%

Supplies expense . ......... e 340,764 13.6% 324,728 14.2%

Provision for doubtful accounts ...................... 238,074 9.5% 198,278 8.6%

Depreciation and amortization ....................... 100,047 4.0% 84,847 3.7%

Lease andrentalexpense .. ........... ..., 41,272 1.7% 41,129 1.8%

2,187,571 87.5% 2,005,135 87.5%

Income before interest expense, minority interests and income

172 <1 J R DD 311,979 12.5% 287,282 12.5%
Interestexpense, net ......... .. ... ... 248 0.0% 304 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities . . ... 16,953 0.7% 17,016 0.7%

Income before income taxes .......... ...t $ 294,778 11.8% $ 269,962 11.8%

During 2003, as compared to 2002, net revenues at our acute care hospitals located in the U.S. (including
newly acquired and built facilities), increased $207.1 million or 9.0%. The increase in net revenues was primarily
attributable to a $198.3 million increase in same facility revenues, discussed above, and revenues generated at a
newly constructed facility which was opened in the fourth quarter of 2003. Income before income taxes increased
$24.8 million or 9.2% to $294.8 million or 11.8% of net revenues during 2003 as compared to $270.0 million or
11.8% of net revenues during 2002.

Favorably impacting the operating margins at our acute care hospitals located in the U.S. during 2003, as
compared to 2002, was a decrease in other operating expenses (to 22.9% of net revenues during 2003, as
compared to 23.5% in 2002) resulting primarily from decreased pharmacy costs resulting from a new outsourcing
agreement that commenced during the third quarter of 2002. Also during 2003, supplies expense at our acute care
facilities decreased to 13.6% of net revenues, as compared to 14.2% during 2002, due primarily to the
elimination of supply intensive, uneconomic service lines at several hospitals. Unfavorably impacting the
operating margins at our acute care hospitals was an increase in the provision for doubtful accounts which
increased to 9.5% during 2003 as compared to 8.6% during 2002.

Acute Care Hospital Services-General

The federal government makes payments to participating hospitals under its Medicare program based on
various formulas. For inpatient services, our general acute care hospitals are subject to a prospective payment
system (“PPS”) under which the hospitals are paid a predetermined amount per admission. The payment is based
upon a diagnostic related group (“DRG”), for which payment amounts are adjusted to account for geographic
wage differences. For outpatient services, both general acute and behavioral health hospitals are paid under an
outpatient prospective payment system (“OPPS”) according to ambulatory procedure codes (“APC”) that group
together services that are comparable both clinically and with respect to the use of resources, as adjusted to
account for certain geographic wage differences.
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A significant portion of the ?revenue generated at our acute care facilities located in the U.S. is derived from
‘federal and state healthcare progfams, including Medicare and Medicaid (excluding managed Medicare and
Medicaid programs), which accqur ted for 40%, 42% and 44% of our net patient revenues during 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Under the statutory framework of the Medicare and Medicaid programs, many of our
operations are subject to administrative rulings, interpretations and discretion that may affect payments made
under either or both of such progra‘ms as well as by other third party payors. Management believes that adequate

provision has been made for any| adJustment that might result therefrom.

l

Approximately 39% in 2004, 38% in 2003 and 38% in 2002, of the net patient revenues at our acute care
facilities located in the U.S. weré g’enerated from managed care companies, which include health maintenance
organizations, preferred provider organizations and managed Medicare and Medicaid programs. Typically, we
receive lower payments per patient from managed care payors than we do from traditional indemnity insurers,
however, during the past few yeafrs we have secured price increases from many of our commercial payors

including managed care companies,

Upon meeting certain condi‘tions and serving a disproportionately high share of Texas” and South
Carolina’s low income patients, f1vF: of our facilities located in Texas and one facility located in South Carolina
became eligible and received additional reimbursement from each state’s disproportionate share hospital
(“DSH”) fund. To qualify for DSH funds in Texas, the facility must have either a disproportionate total number
of inpatient days for Medicaid pdtients a disproportionate percentage of all inpatient days that are for Medicaid
patients, or a disproportionate percentage of all inpatient days that are for low-income patients. Included in our
financial results was an aggregate of $39.3 million in 2004, $27.8 million in 2003 and $33.0 million in 2002
related to DSH programs. In Febtuary 2003, the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office
of Inspector General (“01G™) pubhshed a report indicating that Texas Medicaid may have 0verpa1d Texas
hospitals for DSH payments. Durmg 2004, the Commission implemented rules which offset negative Medicaid
shortfalls in the hospital-specific ‘cap formula, and included third-party and upper payment limit payments in the
shortfall calculation. These changes: resulted in reduced payments to our hospitals located in Texas that have
significant Medicaid populations! T‘he Texas and South Carolina programs have been renewed for each state’s
2005 fiscal years and we expect the DSH reimbursements to be no less than the amounts received during each
state’s 2004 fiscal years. Failure to renew these DSH programs beyond their scheduled termination dates (June
30, 2005 for South Carolina and August 31, 2005 for Texas), failure of our hospitals that currently receive DSH
payments to qualify for future DSH funds under these programs, or reductions in reimbursements, could have a

material adverse effect on our futur‘e results of operations.

In May, 2004, the state of Texas submitted a Medicaid state plan amendment to the Centers for Medicaid
Services (“CMS”) requesting CMS s approval to expand the Texas supplemental inpatient reimbursement
methodology. In July, 2004, CMS approved the submitted state plan amendment retroactive to the May, 2004
submission date. With the CMS a‘pﬁro‘val, the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (“HHSC”)
published a proposed rule changef in the Texas Register in October, 2004 to incorporate the state plan amendment
changes in the Texas Administrativle: Code regulation. After expiration of the public comment period, the final
rule, with language identical to thfat contained in the proposed rule, was published in the Texas Register on
February 18, 2005. The general provisions of this supplemental payment methodology, which is governed by
federal statute and regulations, in%:ll!ldeSZ (i) matching federal dollars to the state for certain qualifying Medicaid

expenditures; (ii) the federal goveérnment permitting the state to use the inter-governmental transfer of funds

between state and local entities, afnd]; (iii) subjecting supplemental payments made to hospitals to federally
mandated limits. Included in-our 2004 financial results was $6.2 million of incremental revenue earned pursuant
to the provisions of this program. gAlthough we can provide no assurance that this program will remain in place,
we expect to earn on an. 1ncremental basis (assuming the program remains unchanged), approximately $12
million during 2005 in connectlon u‘qth this program. In Pennsylvania, several of our behavioral health hospitals
were notified that $2.6 million in State Medicaid DSH monies paid for the state fiscal year 2004 will require
repayment to the state. This repaym‘ent is the result of a change in the calculation of the hospital specific DSH

cap formula as it relates to the haqd ing of a hospital’s negative Medicaid payment shortfall. Our 2004 financial
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statements include a $2.6 million reserve established for the expected repayment of the Pennsylvania DSH funds.
We expect this change to the DSH calculation and the resulting adverse financial impact to remain in place in
2005 and beyond.

Behavioral Health Care Services
Year Ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2003:

The following table summarizes the results of operations for our behavioral health care facilities, on a same
facility basis, and is used in the discussions below for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (dollar
amounts in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
% of % of
Behavioral Health Care Facilities—Same Facility Basis Amount Revenues  Amount  Revenues
Nl TEVEMUES . oottt e et et $656,336  100.0% $612,404 100.0%
Operating charges:
Salaries, wages and benefits .................... ... .. ... 313,827 47.8% 288,555 47.1%
Other operating €Xpenses .. ........c.oeveevenenannvnnnn. 133,623 20.3% 129,400 21.1%
Supplies eXpense .. ... ... .. 40,391 6.2% 37,011 6.0%
Provision for doubtful accounts ......................... 20,573 3.1% 13,748 2.3%
Depreciation and amortization .......................... 14,919 23% 13,665 2.3%
Lease andrentalexpense . ........ ...t 8,496 1.3% 8,755 1.4%

531,829 81.0% 491,134 80.2%

Income before interest expense, minority interests and income

1220, €1 O 124,507 19.0% 121,270 19.8%
Interest eXpense, Net . ..ottt 12 0.0% 82 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities .. ...... 672 0.1% 668 0.1%

Income before inCOME TAXES ... ..o vt it $123,823 18.9% $120,520 19.7%

On a same facility basis during 2004, as compared to 2003, net revenues at our behavioral health care
facilities increased $43.9 million or 7.2%. Income before income taxes increased $3.3 million or 2.7% to $123.8
million or 18.9% of net revenues during 2004 as compared to $120.5 million or 19.7% of net revenues during
2003. Favorably impacting the income before income taxes at our behavioral health hospitals during 2003 was
the reversal of $4 million of previously established bad debt reserves which were reversed as a result of a certain
payor’s emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Inpatient admissions to these facilities increased
5.9% during 2004, as compared to 2003, while patient days increased 6.4%. The average length of patient stay at
these facilities was 12.3 days during 2004 and 12.2 days during 2003. The occupancy rate, based on the average
available beds at these facilities, was 80.4% during 2004, as compared to 77.7% during 2003. Our same facility
net revenues were favorably impacted by an increase in prices charged to private payors including health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. On a same facility basis, net revenue per
adjusted admission (adjusted for outpatient activity) at these facilities increased 2.4% during 2004, as compared
to 2003, and net revenue per adjusted patient day increased 1.5% during 2004, as compared to 2003.
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The following table summarizes the results of operations for all our behavioral health care facilities
(including newly acquired fac1ht1és) and is used in the discussion below for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003 (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
i December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
i % of % of
All Behavioral Health Care Facilities .| : Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
Netrevenues .............. ............................. $698,772 100.0% $612,404 100.0%
Operating charges: | ‘
Salaries, wages and bencflts ............................ 337,888 48.3% 288,555 47.1%
Other operating expenses i o 141,392 20.2% 129,400 21.1%
Supplies expense . ........ ‘ ............................ 42,940 6.1% 37,011 6.0%
Provision for doubtful accounts ......................... 20,664 3.0% 13,748 23%
Depreciation and amomzatlom .......................... 15,849 2.3% 13,665 2.3%
Lease and rental expense . .‘5 . 9,551 1.4% 8,755 1.4%

E l 568,284 81.3% 491,134 80.2%

Income before interest expense, ml]nonty interests and income

taXeS ..ot T .. 130,488 18.7% 121,270 19.8%
Interest expense, net .. ... ; ‘ ........................... 12 0.0% 82 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings |of consolidated entities ........ 672 0.1% 668 0.1%

Income before incometaxes .. .. ... ... ... . e $129,804 18.6% $120,520 19.7%

During 2004, as compared to 2003, net revenues at our behavioral health care facilities (including newly
acquired facilities), increased $86. 4 million or 14.1%. The increase in net revenues was attributable to a $43.9

million increase in same facility re\:/enues and $42.5 million of revenues generated at facilities acquired during
2004 or 2003. Income before i income taxes increased $9.3 million or 7.7% to $129.8 million or 18.6% of net

revenues during 2004, as compared to $120.5 million or 19.7% of net revenues during 2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002:

The following table summanzes the results of operations for our behavioral health care facilities, on a same
facility basis, and is used in the discussions below for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (dollar
amounts in thousands): |

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
% of % of
Behavioral Health Care Facllltles—-Same Facility Basis Amount  Revenues Amount  Revenues
Netrevenues ............... ............................ $591,562 100.0% $565,585 100.0%
Operating charges: L
Salaries, wages and beneﬂts ........................... 278,184 47.0% 266,111 47.1%
‘Other OPErating eXpenses . .| «...oveveuenrneerannnen... 126,793 21.4% 130,365 23.0%
Supplies expense . ....... il B 35,898 6.1% 34,010 6.0%
Provision for doubtful accounts ......................... 13,626 2.3% 20,113 3.6%
Depreciation and aJTlOI‘tIZEltIOIl .......................... 12,438 2.1% 12,173 2.2%
Leaseand rental expense .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ot 8,652 1.5% 8,718 1.5%

475,591  804% 471490  83.4%
Income before interest expense, mm ority interests and income

tAXES <o T 115,971 19.6% 94,095 16.6%
Interest expense, net ... .. I FE 32 0.0% 12 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities . ... .... 668 0.1% 490 0.1%

Income before income taxes ... | ......................... L $115,221 19.5% $ 93,593 16.5%




On a same facility basis during 2003, as compared to 2002, net revenues at our behavioral health care
facilities increased $26.0 million or 4.6%. Income before income taxes increased $21.6 million or 23.1% to
$115.2 million or 19.5% of net revenues during 2003 as compared to $93.6 million or 16.5% of net revenues
during 2002. Favorably impacting the income before income taxes at our behavioral health hospitals during 2003
was the reversal of $4 million of previously established bad debt reserves which were reversed as a result of a
certain payor’s emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Inpatient admissions to these facilities
increased 2.9% during 2003, as compared to 2002, while patient days increased 2.7%. The average length of
patient stay at these facilities was 11.9 days during 2003 and 2002. The occupancy rate, based on the average
available beds at these facilities, increased to 77.7% during 2003, as compared to 76.4% during 2002. On a same
facility basis, net revenue per adjusted admission and adjusted patient day at these facilities each increased 3.3%
during 2003, as compared to 2002.

The following table summarizes the results of operations for all our behavioral health care facilities
(including newly acquired facilities) and is used in the discussion below for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002 (amounts in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
% of % of
All Behavioral Health Care Facilities Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
NEtTEVENUES . . oottt e e e e e $612,404 100.0% $565,585 100.0%
Operating charges:
Salaries, wages and benefits ......... ... ... ... .. oL 288,555 47.1% 266,111 471%
Other operating eXpenses . ..............eeeerrneeennn.. 129,400 21.1% 130,365 23.0%
Supplies eXpense .. ... ... 37,011 60% 34,010 6.0%
Provision for doubtful accounts . ........................ 13,748 2.3% 20,113 3.6%
Depreciation and amortization .. ........................ 13,665 23% 12,173 2.2%
Lease andrentalexpense . ... ...........covrieunienn... 8,755 1.4% 8,718 1.5%

491,134 80.2% 471,490 83.4%

Income before interest expense, minority interests and Income

KBS &+ ottt e e e e e 121,270 19.8% 94,095 16.6%
Interestexpense, net ........... ...l 82 0.0% 12 0.0%
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities ........ 668 0.1% 490 0.1%

Income before inCOMe taXes . ... oot ot ie i e $120,520 19.7% $ 93,593 16.5%

During 2003, as compared to 2002, net revenues at our behavioral health care facilities (including newly
acquired facilities), increased $46.8 million or 8.3%. The increase in net revenues was attributable to a $26.0
million increase in same facility revenues and $20.8 million of revenues generated at facilities acquired during
2003. Income before income taxes increased $26.9 million or 28.8% to $120.5 million or 19.7% of net revenues
during 2003 as compared to $93.6 million or 16.5% of net revenues during 2002.

Behavioral Health Care Services-General

Prior to January 1, 2005, behavioral health facilities, which are generally excluded from the inpatient
services PPS, were reimbursed on a reasonable cost basis by the Medicare program (“TEFRA Payment”), but
were generally subject to a per discharge ceiling, calculated based on an annual allowable rate of increase over
the hospital’s base year amount under the Medicare law and regulations. Capital-related costs were exempt from
this limitation. The discharge ceiling is higher for those hospitals that were excluded from PPS before October 1,
1997. Congress required the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) to develop a per diem PPS
for inpatient services furnished by behavioral health hospitals under the Medicare program (“Psych PPS”). On
November 15, 2004, CMS published final regulations that implement Psych PPS, which is effective beginning on
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an inpatient psychiatric facility’ 's first cost reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2005. This new

. system will generally become effective for most of our hospitals on January 1, 2005. The federal prospective rate
is a base prospective per diem raté and is adjusted for individual hospital demographic factors including:
geographic location, resident tegchmg program status and licensed ernergency room department status. The base
per diem rate is also adjusted for patient specific demographic factors including: patient age, medical diagnosis
‘and the existence of certain co-x?no'rbid medical conditions. The base per diem rate is paid based on sliding scale
payment adjustment factors wherein a provider will receive an increased per diem for day one of the patient stay
and the per diem payment will deérease during the patient hospital stay based on a published CMS sliding scale.
Psych PPS will be implementedf oyer a four year period with Year 1 having a blended Medicare payment rate
based on seventy-five percent (751%) TEFRA payment and twenty-five percent (25%) Psych PPS payment. For
PPS transition Years 2, 3 and 4, the blended rate is 50% TEFRA and 50% Psych PPS, 25% TEFRA and 75%
Psych PPS, 0% TEFRA and 100% Psych PPS, respectively. We believe the implementation of behavioral health
impatient PPS will have a favorable affect on our future results of operations, however, due to the four-year
phase-in period, we do not beliejve‘ the favorable affect will have a material impact on our 2005 resuits of

operations. §

A significant portion of the; revenue generated at our behavioral health care facilities is derived from federal
and state healthcare programs, 1nclud1ng Medicare and Medicaid (excluding managed Medicare and Medicaid
programs), which accounted for'38% 36% and 35% of our net patient revenues during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. :

Approximately 48% in 20d4, 51% in 2003 and 48% in 2002, of the net patient revenues at our behavioral
health care facilities were generﬁted from managed care companies, which include health maintenance
organizations, preferred providegr organizations and managed Medicare and Medicaid programs. Typically, we
receive lower payments per paticfen‘t from managed care payors than we do from traditional indemnity insurers,
however, during the past few yefarls, we have secured price increases from many of our commercial payors

including managed care companies.

:
International and Other Operélting Results

Combined net revenues frofn our international and other operating entities including outpatient surgery
centers, radiation centers and an: 80% ownership interest in an operating company that owns fourteen hospitals in
France, increased to $332 mxlhon durmg 2004 as compared to $265 million during 2003 and $126 million during

.2002. The increases in combmed net revenues of $67 million during 2004, as compared to 2003, was primarily
attributable to an increase in the Esa‘me facility revenues generated at our French facilities, as discussed below, and
$26 million of revenues attributable to the acquisition of two additional hospitals by our France subsidiary during

the first quarter of 2004. The increases in combined net revenues of $139 million during 2003, as compared to

2002, was primarily attributable tto| $130 million of increased revenues from our French subsidiary consisting of:

(i) $54 million of revenues genefated‘at newly acquired facilities; (i) a $29 million increase from reclassifying

certain supply costs incurred by our French hospitals (change in accounting presentation that had no impact on
net income); (iii) a $20 million incresse resulting from a favorable change in the foreign currency exchange rate;

(iv) a $18 million increase resulting from an additional month of revenues recorded during 2003 to convert this
subsidiary to a December 315 yehr-end, and; (v) a $9 million increase in revenues on a same facility basis.

Combined income before i mcome taxes from the international and other operating entities was $17.0 million

during 2004, $10.0 million dunng 2003 and $8.7 million during 2002. The $7.0 million increase during 2004, as

|
compared to 2003, was due to 1ncreased income generated at the facﬂmes located in France.

On a same facility basis at our hospitals located in France (excluding the effects of changes in the foreign
currency exchange rate and the addmonal month of results recorded during 2003), net revenues increased $32
million or 14% during 2004, as compared to 2003, and 8% during 2003 (excluding the effects of changes in the
foreign currency exchange rate, the additional month of results recorded during 2003 and the supply cost reclass
mentioned above), as compared to 2002. Inpatient admissions to our facilities located in France increased 0.1%
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during 2004, as compared to 2003, and decreased 2.0% during 2003, as compared to 2002. Patient days at these
facilities decreased 0.8% during 2004, as compared to 2003, and decreased 0.7% during 2003, as compared to
2002. On a same facility basis, the average length of stay at these facilities decreased to 4.9 days during 2004, as
compared to 5.0 days during 2003. Also on a same facility basis, the average length of stay at our facilities
located in France was 5.1 days during 2003 as compared to 5.0 days during 2002. The occupancy rate, based on
the average available beds at these facilities, was 78% during both 2004 and 2003 and 81% during 2002. The
large majority of the revenues generated by our hospitals located in France are paid by the government based on
predetermined rates established in May of each year and consist of a per diem payment and per procedure rate
plus reimbursement for certain supplies.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2003, our French subsidiary was included on the basis of the year ended
November 30%. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we recorded an additional month of financial results to convert
this subsidiary to a December 31t year-end. The additional month of financial results increased net revenues by
approximately $18 million, or 0.5% of our consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. The
effect on our consolidated net income resulting from this adjustment was approximately $500,000 during the year
ended December 31, 2003.

During the third quarter of 2004, our 121-bed acute care hospital located in West Palm Beach, Florida
sustained property damage from a hurricane. As a result, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $2.3 million during the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 to reflect the impact of the property write-down which is not covered by our
insurance due to deductibles.

Interest expense was $43.4 million during 2004, $37.9 million during 2003 and $34.1 million during 2002.
The increase during 2004, as compared to 2003, was due primarily to the increased average borrowings incurred
to finance the acquisition, during the first quarter of 2004, of three acute care facilities located in the U.S. and
two located in France, the acquisition during the second quarter of 2004 of five behavioral health care facilities
and the construction costs related to the opening of two newly constructed acute care facilities which opened
during the fourth quarter of 2003 and the third quarter of 2004.

The effective tax rate was 37.3% during 2004, 37.3% during 2003 and 36.7% during 2002. The increase
during 2003, as compared to 2002, was due primarily to 2002 including a tax credit for which we are no longer
eligible.

Discontinued Operations

During 2004, in conjunction with our strategic plan to sell two recently acquired acute care hospitals in
California as well as certain other under-performing assets, we sold the operations and/or property of the
following acute care facilities and surgery and radiation therapy centers for combined cash proceeds of
approximately $81 million:

* a 112-bed hospital located in San Luis Obispo, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);
¢ a65-bed hospital located in Arroyo Grande, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a136-bed leased hospital in Shreveport, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* 2 106-bed hospital located in La Place, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a160-bed pediatric and surgery hospital located in Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico (sold in third quarter of
2004), and;

» ownership interests in five outpatient surgery centers located in Ponca City, Oklahoma (sold in second
quarter of 2004), New Albany, Indiana (sold in third quarter of 2004), Hammond, Louisiana (sold in
third quarter of 2004), Littleton, Colorado (sold in the first quarter of 2004) and St. George, Utah (sold
in the fourth quarter of 2004) and a radiation therapy center located in Madison, Indiana (sold in first
quarter of 2004).
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In addition, subsequent to Deqember 31, 2004, we completed and executed a definitive agreement to sell
two acute care hospitals located in Puerto Rico. The sales, which are subject to customary regulatory approvals,

are expected to be completed by M?rch 31,2005.

The operating results of all these‘ facilities, as well as gains, net of losses, resulting from the divestitures are
reflected as “Income/(loss) from ﬁiscontinued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statement of
Income for the year ended December 31, 2004. These transactions resulted in a combined pre-tax gain of
approximately $5.4 million ($3.4 nl]illion after-tax) which is included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The following table shows the results of operations, on a combined basis, for all facilities reflected as

discontinued operations for the yeals ¢nded December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

| Year Ended December 31,

3 2004 2003 2002

P (000s)
Netrevenues .............. e S $219.,553 $252,060 $266,979
Income (loss) from operations . O $ (6,191) $ 1,655 $ 9,736
Gains,net .................. x .................................... 5,382 14,623 —
Provision for asset impairment . . .l ... oo — (13,742) —
Recovery of provision for Judgmentl/closure COSES o vt vttt — 8,867 2,182
Income (loss) from discontinued gperatmns, pre-tax .. ...l (809) 11,403 11,918
Income tax (provision)/benefit . [ R 295 (4,213) (4,404)
Income (loss) from discontinued (i?perations,.net of income tax expense ..... $§ (514 % 7190 $ 7,514

Included in our results for thé y1ear ended December 31, 2003 were the following items: (i) the reversal of an
accrued liability amounting to $8. 9 million pre-tax ($5.6 million after-tax), including $1.9 million of accrued
interest, resulting from a favorable Texas Supreme Court decision which reversed an unfavorable 2000 jury
verdict and 2001 appellate court d§:01510n (ii) a combined pre-tax net gain of $14.6 million ($8.7 million after-tax
and after minority interest expensé) realized on the disposition of an investment in a health-care related company
and sales of radiation therapy centers medical office buildings and an cutpatient surgery center, and; (iii) a pre-
tax $13.7 million provision for asset impairment ($8.7 million after-tax) resulting from the write-down of the

carrying value of a 160-bed acute care pediatric hospital located in Puerto Rico to its estimated fair value.

Included in our results during the year ended December 31, 2002 was a $2.2 million pre-tax recovery of
provision for closure cost ($1.4 mi}lli’on after-tax) resulting from the sale of the real estate of a women’s hospital

that was written down to its estimeite‘d fair value during 2000.

Professional and General Liabilijtyl Claims

Due to unfavorable pricing an;d availability trends in the professional and general liability insurance
markets, our subsidiaries have assumed a greater portion of the hospital professional and general liability risk as
the cost of commercial professmnal and general liability insurance coverage has risen significantly. As a result,
effective January 1, 2002, most of pdr subsidiaries were self-insured for malpractice exposure up to $25 million
per occurrence. We purchased uml:)rélla excess policies for our subsidiaries through several commercial
insurance carriers for coverage in éxgeés of $25 million per occurrence with a $75 million aggregate limitation.
Given these insurance market Conditions, there can be no assurance that a continuation of these unfavorable
trends, or a sharp increase in clmms Asserted against us, will not have a material adverse effect on our future

results of operations. :

Our estimated liability for pr&fessional and general liability claims is based on a number of factors
including, among other things, the number of asserted claims and reported incidents, estimates of losses for these
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claims based on recent and historical settlement amounts, estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on
historical experience, and estimates of amounts recoverable under our commercial insurance policies. While we
continuously monitor these factors, our ultimate liability for professional and general liability claims could
change materially from our current estimates due to inherent uncertainties involved in making this estimate.

For the period from January 1, 1998 through December 31, 2001, most of our subsidiaries were covered
under commercial insurance policies with PHICO, a Pennsylvania based insurance company that was placed into
liquidation during the first quarter of 2002. As a result of PHICO’s liquidation, we recorded a $40 million pre-tax
charge during 2001 to reserve for PHICO claims that could become our liability, however, we are entitled to
receive reimbursement from state insurance guaranty funds, other commercial insurers and/or PHICO’s estate for
a portion of certain claims ultimately paid by us.

As of December 31, 2004, the total accrual for our professional and general liability claims was $204.1
million ($172.5 million net of expected recoveries), of which $28.0 million is included in other current liabilities.
As of December 31, 2003, the total accrual for our professional and general liability claims, was $190.8 million
($147.7 million net of expected recoveries), of which $35.0 million is included in other current liabilities.
Included in other assets was $31.5 million as of December 31, 2004 and $43.0 million as of December 31, 2003,
related to estimated expected recoveries from various state guaranty funds, insurance companies and other
sources in connection with PHICO related professional and general liability claims payments.

Effects of Inflation and Seasonality

Seasonality — Our business is typically seasonal, with higher patient volumes and net patient service
revenue in the first and fourth quarters of the year. This seasonality occurs because, generally, more people
become ill during the winter months, which results in significant increases in the number of patients treated in
our hospitals during those months.

Inflation — Although inflation has not had a material impact on our results of operations over the last three
years, the healthcare industry is very labor intensive and salaries and benefits are subject to inflationary pressures
as are rising supply costs which tend to escalate as vendors pass on the rising costs through price increases. Our
acute care and behavioral health care facilities are experiencing the effects of a shortage of skilled nursing staff
nationwide, which has caused and may continue to cause an increase in salaries, wages and benefits expense in
excess of the inflation rate. In addition, due to unfavorable pricing and availability trends in the professional and
general liability insurance markets, the cost of commercial professional and general liability insurance coverage
has risen significantly. As a result, our subsidiaries have assumed a greater portion of the hospital professional
and general liability risk. Given these insurance market conditions, there can be no assurance that a continuation
of these unfavorable trends, or a sharp increase in claims asserted against our subsidiaries, will not have a
material adverse effect on our future results of operations.

Although we cannot predict our ability to continue to cover future cost increases, we believe that through
adherence to cost containment policies, labor management and reasonable price increases, the effects of inflation
on future operating margins should be manageable. However, our ability to pass on these increased costs
associated with providing healthcare to Medicare and Medicaid patients is limited due to various federal, state
and local laws which have been enacted that, in certain cases, limit our ability to increase prices. In addition, as a
result of increasing regulatory and competitive pressures and a continuing industry wide shift of patients into
managed care plans, our ability to maintain margins through price increases to non-Medicare patients is limited.
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Liquidity
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Year ended December 31, 20()4 as compalred to December 31, 2003:
Net cash provided by operatlng activities

Net cash provided by operatmg activities was $393 miilion during 2004 as compared to $377 million during
2003. The 4% or $16 million i mcrease was primarily attributable to:

+ afavorable change of $37 million in other working capital accounts due primarily to timing of accrued
payroll, other accrued cpj(pensés and accounts payable disbursements;

* anunfavorable change of $11 million due to a decrease in net income plus or minus the adjustments to
recorncile net income to inet cash provided by operating activities (depreciation and amortization,
accretion of discount oni convertible debentures, gains on sales of assets and businesses, property write-
down due to hurricane, reversal of restricted stock grant amortization, provision for asset impairment
and recovery of provxsxon for judgment);

e an unfavorable change qf $19 million in accounts receivable, partially due to an $8 million increase in
accounts receivable at an dcute care facility acquired during 2004, due in part to billing delays for
Medicaid claims, and a $6 million increase in accounts receivable due to the revenues recorded during
2004 in connection w1th|the Texas Medicaid supplemental payment methodology, as discussed above in
Acute Care Hospital Serv1ces-General

N

e $9 million of other net f%lvorable changes.

Our annual days sales outstafnding, or DSO, are calculated by dividing our annual net revenue by the number
of days in the year. The result is c}i\llided into the accounts receivable balance at the end of the year to obtain the
DSO. Our DSO were 52 days in %004; 50 days in 2003 and 52 daysin 2002.

{
b
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Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing acEtivities was $320 million during 2004 as compared to $480 million during
2003. During 2004, we spent $231 rinillion to finance capital expenditures and an additional $170 million on the
acquisition of newly acquired businesses and real estate assets, including the following:

2004 capital expenditunies

|

* Construction costs related to the new Lakewood Ranch Hospital, a 120-bed acute care facility located in
Manatee County, Flonda Wthh opened during the third quarter of 2004;

*  Purchase of land for potenmal future construction of a new acute care facility located in Las Vegas,
Nevada; ‘

|

« Capital expenditures for equipment, renovations and new projects at various existing facilities.

2004 Acquisitions of bu?sinesses and real estate assets
I

° a90% controlling ownerish]ip interest in a 54-bed acute care hospital located in New Orleans, Louisiana,
(operations subsequentlygmerged with the operations of a 306-bed acute care hospital located in East
New Orleans, Louisiana);

¢

° a 50-bed acute care facﬂlty, a'20-bed acute care facility and a the remaining 65% ownership interest
(35% previously acqu1red) in the real estate assets of a 198-bed acute care facility located in France, all
of which were acquired by an operating company in which we own an 80% controlling ownership
interest; s

° a63-bed behavioral health hospital, partial services, a school, group homes and detox services located in
Stonington, Connecticut; l
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* a112-bed behavioral health facility in Savannah, Georgia;

* a77-bed behavioral facility in Benton, Arkansas;

» the operations of an 82-bed behavioral health facility in Las Vegas, Nevada;
* a72-bed behavioral health facility in Bowling Green, Kentucky, and;

* an outpatient surgery center in Edinburg, Texas and an outpatient surgery center located in New
Orleans, Louisiana.

In addition, in late December, 2003, we funded $230 million (which was included in other assets on our
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003) for the combined purchase price of the following acute care
facilities which we acquired effective January 1, 2004:

* a2 90% controlling ownership interest in a 306-bed facility located in East New Orleans, Louisiana;
* a228-bed facility located in Corona, California;

» a112-bed facility located in San Luis Obispo, California (this facility was sold during the second
quarter of 2004), and;

* a65-bed facility located in Arroyo Grande, California (this facility was sold during the second quarter
of 2004).

During 2005, we expect to spend approximately $275 million on capital expenditures, including
expenditures for capital equipment, renovations and new projects at existing hospitals and completion of major
construction projects in progress at December 31, 2004. We believe that our capital expenditure program is
adequate to expand, improve and equip our existing hospitals. We expect to finance all capital expenditures and
acquisitions with internally generated funds and borrowed funds. Additional funds may be obtained either
through refinancing the existing revolving credit agreement and/or the commercial paper facility and/or the
issuance of equity or long-term debt.

During 2004, in conjunction with our strategic plan to sell two recently acquired acute care hospitals in
California as well as certain other under-performing assets, we sold the operations and/or property of the
following acute care facilities and surgery and radiation therapy centers for combined cash proceeds of
approximately $81 million:

* a 112-bed hospital located in San Luis Obispo, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);
* a65-bed hospital located in Arroyo Grande, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a 136-bed leased hospital in Shreveport, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a 106-bed hospital located in La Place, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a 160-bed pediatric and surgery hospital located in Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico (sold in third quarter of
2004), and,;

» ownership interests in five outpatient surgery centers located in Ponca City, Oklahoma (sold in second
quarter of 2004), New Albany, Indiana (sold in third quarter of 2004), Hammond, Louisiana (sold in
third quarter of 2004), Littleton, Colorado (sold in the first quarter of 2004) and St. George, Utah (sold
in the fourth quarter of 2004) and a radiation therapy center located in Madison, Indiana (sold in first
quarter of 2004).

The operating results of all these facilities, as well as gains, net of losses, resulting from the divestitures are
reflected as “Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statement of
Income for the year ended December 31, 2004. These transactions resulted in a combined pre-tax gain of
approximately $5 million ($3 million after-tax) which is included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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During 2003, we spent $22§4 gﬂllion to finance capital expenditures and an additional $281 million on the
acquisition of newly acquired facilities, including the following:
2003 Capital Expendi%ures

°  Completion of the newiy ]constructed Spring Valley Hospital;

«  Construction costs related to the new Lakewood Ranch Hospital, a 120-bed acute care facility located in
Manatee County, Flonda]

°  Completion of a 90-bed addition to our Northwest Texas Hospital,

e Capital expenditures fo‘; equipment, renovations and new projects at various existing facilities.
i
2003 Acquisitions '

e The North Star Hospital and related treatment centers;

e Three acute care facilitiés located in France;

e Three acute care facilitifes in California, Corona Regional Medical Center, French Medical Center and
Arroyo Grande Community Hospital, all of which are ownership effective as of January 1, 2004;

¢ The acquisition of a 90% controlling ownership interest in Pendleton Methodist Hospital in Louisiana,
which is ownership effebtive January 1, 2004, and;

*  The acquisition of a behav10ra1 health facility located in Alaska and an outpatient surgery center located
in Oklahoma. ;

During 2003, we received tc%tql cash proceeds of $25 million for the sale of five radiation therapy centers,
two medical office buildings (which were sold to limited liability companies that are majority owned by
Universal Health Realty Income ?Fmst), an outpatient surgery center and the disposition of our investment in a
healthcare related company. Th_esie transactions resulted in a combined pre-tax gain of $15 million (39 million
after minority interest expense and income taxes) which is included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income tax” in Ethe Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Net cash provided by/used in ﬁélancing activities

During 2004, net cash used in financing activities amounted to $75 million as compared to $121 million of
net cash provided by financing aétivities during 2003. The $75 million of net cash used in financing activities
during 2004 consisted of the followmg (i) $108 million of debt repayments, $100 million of which were used to
repay borrowings under the terms qf our commercial paper credit facility which expired on its scheduled maturity
date in October of 2004; (ii) $72 puylhon of additional borrowings, $58 million of which were borrowed under
our revolving credit facility; (iii) $24 million spent during 2004 to repurchase 559,481 shares of our Class B
Common Stock on the open market (iv) $19 million spent during 2004 to pay cash dividends of $.08 per share

(8.32 for the year), and; (v) $4 m1111on of other net cash provided by financing activities.

The $121 million of net cash provided by financing activities during 2003 consisted of the following: (i)
$175 million of additional borrov&’{in‘gs, borrowed primarily under our revolving credit facility, to finance the
acquisitions mentioned above; (11) $154 million spent during 2003 to repurchase 1.4 million shares of our Class B
Common Stock on the open market (iii) $5 million spent during the fourth quarter of 2003 to pay an $.08 per

share quarterly cash dividend, and (1V) $5 million of other net cash provided by financing activities.

Year ended December 31, 2003 "as compared to December 31, 2002;

Net cash provided by operatinggac{tivities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $377 million during 2003 as compared to $331 million during
2002. The 14% or $46 million inc;re‘ase was primarily attributable to:

o a favorable change of $34 million due to an increase in net income plus or minus the adjustments to
reconcile net income t(:) net cash provided by operating activities (depreciation and amortization,
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accretion of discount on convertible debentures, losses on foreign exchange and debt extinguishment,
gains on sales of assets and businesses and recovery of provision for judgment);

+ afavorable change of $28 million in accrued and deferred income taxes due primarily to the timing of
income tax payments and the favorable effect of “bonus” depreciation and tax benefits on increased
capital expenditures;

« afavorable change of $24 million in accounts receivable (partially due to the prior year containing
unfavorable changes due to the timing of Medicare settlements and the increased patient volume and
revenue at the George Washington University Hospital which opened during the third quarter of 2002);

+ an unfavorable change of $44 million in other working capital accounts due primarily to timing of
accrued compensation payments and accounts payable disbursements;

» %4 million of other net favorable changes in working capital.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased to $480 million during 2003 as compared to $202 million
during 2002. As mentioned above, during 2003, we spent $224 million to finance capital expenditures and an
additional $281 million on the acquisition of newly acquired facilities. During 2002, we spent $3 million to
acquire a majority interest in an outpatient surgery center located in Puerto Rico and $207 million to finance
capital expenditures, including the following:

* Construction costs related to the completion of the new George Washington University Hospital located
in Washington, D.C. which opened in August, 2002;

* Construction costs related to a 56-bed patient tower at Auburn Regional Medical Center located in
Auburn, Washington which opened in January, 2003;

+ Construction costs related to the first phase of the newly constructed Spring Valley Hospital located in
Las Vegas, Nevada;

» Capital expenditures for equipment, renovations and new projects at various existing facilities.

During 2002, we received total cash proceeds of $8 million resulting from the sale of real estate related to a
women’s hospital and radiation oncology center both of which were closed in a prior year and written down to their
estimated net realizable values. The sale of the real property of the women’s hospital resulted in a $2 million
recovery of closure costs, which is included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in
the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2002, as is the net gain on the sale of the
assets of the radiation therapy center which did not have a material impact on the 2002 results of operations.

Net cash provided by/used in financing activities

During 2003, net cash provided by financing activities amounted to $121 million (as mentioned above) as
compared to $135 million of net cash used in financing activities during 2002. The $135 million of net cash used
in financing activities during 2002 consisted of the following: (i) $67 million of net repayments of debt ($106
million of repayments, the majority of which reduced outstanding borrowings under our Revolver, less $39
million of additional borrowings consisting primarily of new borrowings pursuant to the terms of our France
subsidiary’s debt facility); (ii) $77 million spent during 2002 to repurchase 1.7 million shares of our Class B
Common Stock, and; (iii) partially offset by $9 million of other net cash provided by financing activities.

Capital Resources
Credit Facilities and Qutstanding Debt Securities
During 2004 the Company was a party to a $400 million unsecured non-amortizing revolving credit

agreement with a scheduled maturity date of December 13, 2006. The agreement included a $50 million sub-limit
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for letters of credit of which $2 m;illl[ion was available at December 31, 2004. The interest rate on borrowings was
determined at our option at the prime rate, certificate of deposit rate plus.925% to 1.275%, Euro-dollar plus .80%
to 1.150% or a money market rate. A facility fee ranging from .20% to .35% is required on the total commitment.
The applicable margins over the Certlﬁcate of deposit, the Euro-dollar rates and the facility fee are based upon
the leverage ratio. At December 31 2004, the applicable margins over the certificate of deposit and the Euro-
dollar rate were 1.125% and 1. 00% respectively, and the commitment fee was .25%. There are no compensating
balance requirements. At December 31, 2004, we had $91 million of unused borrowing capacity available under

this Credit Agreement. 5
l
H
!

Subsequent to year-end, on March 4, 2005, we terminated the $400 million revolving credit agreement
described above and replaced it w;ith a $500 million unsecured non-amortizing revolving credit agreement, which
expires on March 4, 2010. The ag:re]ement includes a $75 million sub-limit for letters of credit. The interest rate
on borrowings is determined at our option at the prime rate, LIBOR plus a spread of .32% to .80% or a money
market rate. A facility fee ranging from .08% to .20% is required on the total commitment. The applicable
margins over LIBOR and the faci:lity fee are based upon our debt ratings by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group
and Moody’s Investor Services Inc.|At December 31, 2004, the applicable margins over the LIBOR rate would
have been .50% and the commitment fee would have been .125%. There are no compensating balance
requirements. |
l

During 2003, our majority-owned subsidiary in France entered into a senior credit agreement denominated
in Euros, which provides for a tot:al commitment of 90 million Euros. The loan, which is non-recourse to us,
matures on December 4, 2009. The committed amount available under this credit agreement amortizes to zero

over the life of the agreement and decreased by 5 million Euros to 85 million Euros on December 31, 2004.

Interest on the loan is determmediatw our option and can be based on the one, two, three and six month EURIBOR
plus a spread of 2.00% to 2.50%. T he spread in effect at December 31, 2004 was 2.25%. As of December 31,
2004, the interest rate was 4.48% (1IJ1c1ud1ng the spread of 2.25%) and the effective interest rate including the
effects of the designated interest rate swaps and the spread of 2.25% was 4.42%. As of December 31, 2004, there
were 55.6 million Euros ($75.2 rmlhon) of debt outstanding, and 29.4 million Euros ($39.8 million) of unused

borrowing capacity, pursuant to the 'terms of this agreement.

During 2004, the $100 nﬂllidn ‘commercial paper credit facility, which was fully collateralized by a portion
of our acute care patient accountsgreceivable, expired on its scheduled maturity date of October 20, 2004 and we
elected not to renew the program.%

During 2001, we issued $200 million of Senior Notes which have a 6.75% coupon rate and which mature on
November 15, 2011. (“Notes”). The1 interest on the Notes is paid semiannually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 of each year. The Niotes can be redeemed in whole at any time and in part from time to time.

We issued discounted Convértible Debentures in 2000, which are due in 2020 (“Debentures”). The
aggregate issue price of the Debeiltdres was $250 million or $587 million aggregate principal amount at maturity.
The Debentures were issued at a pn‘ce of $425.90 per $1,000 principal amount of Debenture. The Debentures’
yleld to maturity is- 5% per annum, ‘426% of which is cash interest. The interest on the bonds is paid
semiannually in arrears on June 23 z‘md December 23 of each year. The Debentures are convertible at the option
of the holders into 11.2048 shares of the our common stock per $1,000 of Debentures, however, we have the
right to redeem the Debenture any time on or after June 23, 2006 at a price equal to the issue price of the

Debentures plus accrued original issue discount and accrued cash interest to the date of redemption.

Our total debt as a percentage ?f total capitalization was 42% at December 31, 2004 and 45% at December
31, 2003. Covenants relating to lohg-term debt require maintenance of a minimum net worth, specified debt to
total capital and fixed charge coverage ratios. We are in compliance with all required covenants as of December

31, 2004. . i
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The average amounts outstanding during 2004, 2003 and 2002 under the revolving credit and demand notes
and commercial paper program were $272.1 million, $116.5 million and $140.3 million respectively, with
corresponding effective interest rates of 2.6%, 3.3% and 5.1% including commitment and facility fees. The
maximum amounts outstanding at any month-end were $370 million in 2004, $304.8 million in 2003 and $170
million in 2002.

The effective interest rate on our revolving credit, demand notes and commercial paper program, including
the respective interest expense and income incurred on designated interest rate swaps which are now expired, was
4.1%, 6.6% and 6.3% during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Additional interest expense recorded as a result
of our U.S. dollar denominated hedging activity was $4.1million in 2004, $4.6 million in 2003 and $4.2 million
in 2002. There are no longer any domestic interest rate swaps outstanding.

Covenants relating to long-term debt require specified leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. We are in
compliance with all required covenants as of December 31, 2004,

The fair value of our long-term debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $932 million and
$1.00 billion, respectively.

We expect to finance all capital expenditures and acquisitions with internally generated funds and additional
funds. Additional funds may be obtained either through (i) the issuance of equity; (ii) additional borrowings
under our existing revolving credit facility or through refinancing the existing revolving credit agreement, and/or;
(iii) the issuance of other long-term debt.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2004, we were party to certain off balance sheet arrangements consisting of operating
leases and standby letters of credit and surety bonds. Our outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds, as of
December 31, 2004, totaled $58 million consisting of: (1) $45 million related to our self-insurance programs, and;
(ii) $7 million consisting primarily of collateral for outstanding bonds of an unaffiliated third party and public
utility, and; (iii) $6 million of debt guarantees related to entities in which we own a minority interest.

Obligations under operating leases for real property, real property master leases and equipment amount to
$96.5 million as of December 31, 2004, as disclosed in Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements. The real
property master leases are leases for buildings on or near hospital property for which we guarantee a certain level
of rental income. We sublease space in these buildings and any amounts received from these subleases are offset
against the expense. In addition, we lease five hospital facilities from Universal Health Realty Income Trust with
terms expiring in 2006 through 2009. These leases contain up to five 5-year renewal options.

The following represents the scheduled maturities of our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004:

Payments Due by Period (dollars in thousands)

Less than 2.3 4-5 After

Contractual Obligation Total 1 year years years 5 years
Long-term debt—fixed(a) ....................... $ 597,660 $16,718 $ 46,952 $27,390 $506,600(b)
Long-term debt—variable .. .......... ... ... ... 271,535 250 261,085 — 10,200
Accruedinterest . ...... ... 2,645 2,645 — — —_
Construction commitments(c) .. .................. 40,000 —_ 40,000 — —_
Purchase obligation(d) ......................... 155,891 19,463 40,519 40,543 55,366
Operatingleases ............ ... ... 96,452 38,003 40,270 9,844 8,335
Total contractual cash obligations . ................ $1,164,183 $77,079 $428,826 §77,777 3$580,501

(a) Includes capital lease obligations
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(b) Amount is presented net of dlSCOUIlt on Convertible Debentures of $287,031

(c) Estimated cost-of compleuon on the construction of a new 100-bed acute care facility in Eagle Pass, Texas.

(d) Consists of $135.8 million minimum obligation pursuant to a contract that expires in 2012, that provides for
certain data processing servifces at our acute care and behavioral health facilities, and a $20.0 million

commitment payable over a :ﬁ\l/e-year period for a clinical application license fee.
!

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qt;talitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our interest expense is sensiiive to changes in the general level of interest rates. To mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in domestic interest rates, a portion of our debt is fixed rate accomplished by either borrowing on a
long-term basis at fixed rates or by enteﬁng into interest rate swap transactions. Our interest rate swap
agreements are contracts that requue us to pay fixed and receive floating interest rates or to pay floating and
receive fixed interest rates over the life of the agreements. The floating-rates are based on LIBOR and the fixed-

rate is determined at the time the swap agreement is consummated.

As of December 31, 2004 wé h‘ald no U.S. dollar denominated interest rate swaps. During the fourth quarter

of 2004, we terminated three interest rate swaps. We terminated one fixed rate swap with a notional principal
amount of $125 million, which Wé}s “scheduled to expire in August 2005. Under the terms of the swap, we paid a
fixed rate of 6.76% and received a ﬂoating rate equal to three month LIBOR. We also terminated two floating
rate interest rate swaps having a notional principal amount of $60 million in which we received a fixed rate of
6.75% and paid a floating rate equialito 6 month LIBOR plus a spread. The initial term of these swaps was ten
years and they were both schedulefd to expire on November 15, 2011. For the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, we received weigﬁ[éd average rates of 3.2%, 3.1% and 3.5%, respectively, and paid a weighted
average rate on its domestic intere:st rate swap agreements of 5.5% in 2004, 5.5% in 2003 and 5.7% in 2002.

As of December 31, 2004, a ﬁlajoﬁty-owned subsidiary of ours had two interest rate swaps and two interest
rate caps denominated in Euros. The]total notional amount of the two interest rate swaps is 27.5 million Euros
($37.2 million based on the end of period currency exchange rate) and will mature on June 30, 2005. Our
subsidiary pays an average fixed rate of 4.35% and receives six month EURIBOR. The effective floating rate for
these swaps as of December 31, 2004 was 1.45%. The notional amount of the interest rate cap currently
outstanding is 17.5 million Euros ($%3 .7 million), the strike price is 3.5% and the cap matures on June 30, 2005.
The other interest rate cap is a forward starting cap that takes effect on June 30, 2005 upon the expiration of the
currently outstanding interest rate $Waps and caps. The notional amount of the cap begins at 45.0 million Euros
($60.9 million) and reduces to 38.0 million Euros ($51.4 million) on December 30, 2005. The strike price is
3.3625% and the cap matures on Dfec‘ember 29, 2006.

l

The interest rate swap and cap agreements do not constitute positions independent of the underlying
exposures. We do not hold or issue denvatwe instruments for trading purposes and are not a party to any
instruments with leverage features.i Il"l the event of nonperformance by the counter-parties to these financial
instruments, we are exposed to credit losses. The counter-parties are creditworthy financial institutions, rated A
or better by Moody’s Investor Services and we anticipate that the counter-parties will be able to fully satisfy their

obligations under the contracts.




The table below presents information about our derivative financial instruments and other financial
instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, including long-term debt and interest rate swaps as of
December 31, 2004. For debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average
interest rates by contractual maturity dates. For interest rate swap agreements, the table presents notional
amounts by maturity date and weighted average interest rates based on rates in effect at December 31, 2004. The
fair values of long-term debt and interest rate swaps were determined based on market prices quoted at December
31, 2004, for the same or similar debt issues.

Maturity Date, Fiscal Year Ending December 31
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt:
Fixed rate—Fair value ......... $ 16,718 § 25,065 $21,887 $20,889 $6,501  $568,979(a) $660,039
Fixed rate—Carrying value .. ... $ 16,718 $ 25065 $21,887 $20,889 $6,501  $506,600 $597,660
Average interestrates .. ............ 5.4% 5.6% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 5.7% 5.6%
Variable rate long-term debt ........ $ 250 $261,085 $ 0 3 0 $ 0 §10200 $271,535
Interest rate swaps:
Euro denominated Swaps and Cap:
Pay fixed/receive variable notional
AMOUNE .« vttt e e $ 37,200 $ 37,200
Fairvalue ....................... $ (397)
Averagepayrate ................. 4.35%
Averagereceiverate . .............. 6 Month
EURIBOR
Interestratecaps .. ................ $ 23,700 i $ 23,700
Forward starting interest rate cap .. . . . $51,437 $ 51,437
Average strike price .. ............. 3.5% 3.36%
FairValue . ...................... $ 1§ (524

(a) The fair value of our 5% Convertible Debentures (“Debentures”) at December 31, 2004 is $343.5 million,
however, we have the right to redeem the Debentures any time on or after June 23, 2006 at a price equal to
the issue price of the Debentures plus accrued original issue discount and accrued cash interest to the date of
redemption. On June 23, 2006 the amount necessary to redeem all Debentures would be $319 million. If the
Debentures could be redeemed at the same basis at December 31, 2004 the redemption amount would be
$300 million. The holders of the Debentures may convert the Debentures to our Class B stock at any time. If
all Debentures were converted, the result would be the issuance of 6.6 million shares of our Class B
Common Stock.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Qur Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Income, Consolidated Statements of
Common Stockholders” Equity, and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, together with the report of KPMG
LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, are included elsewhere herein. Reference is made to the
“Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.”

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures.

As of December 31, 2004, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ”), an evaluation of the effectiveness of our
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disclosure controls and procedurés was performed. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that material information is recorded,
processed, surnmarized and reported by management on a timely basis in order to comply with our disclosure
obligations under the Securities an(? Exchange Act of 1934 and the SEC rules thereunder. There have been no
significant changes in our 1nternal ?OHUOIS or in other factors during the fourth quarter of 2004 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls.

Management’s Report on Inter;nal Centrol over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible 1!Cor establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over
financial reporting for the Company In order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, management has conducted an assessment,
including testing, using the criteria 1n Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Ir‘eadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s system of internal control
over financial reporting is designed|to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation andéfair presentation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not preveht or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
of internal control over financial reportmg to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in| condrtrons or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. g :

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of Decfen]lber 31, 2004, based on criteria in Internal Control—Integrated Framework,
issued by the COSO. Facilities ac:qu]ired during 2004, as identified in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, have been excluded ffom management’s assessment. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control o]ver financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, has been audited by KPMG
LLP, an independent registered pub ic accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Universal Health Services Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Universal Health Services Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Controi—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS80). Universal Health Service Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Universal Health Services Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). Also, in our opinion, Universal Health Services Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Facilities acquired during 2004, as identified in Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, have been excluded from management’s assessment. Qur audit of internal control over financial
reporting of Universal Health Services Inc. also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial
reporting of those facilities acquired during 2004.
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We also have audited, in accfordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated ibalance sheets of Universal Health Services Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, common stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the yeéiro in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated
March 14, 2005, expressed an unhu alified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

e ' /s/ KPMG LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania .
March 14, 2005
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PART IIT

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

There is hereby incorporated by reference the information to appear under the caption “Election of
Directors” in our Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days
after December 31, 2004. See also “Executive Officers of the Registrant” appearing in Part I hereof.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

There is hereby incorporated by reference the information to appear under the caption “Executive
Compensation” in our Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120
days after December 31, 2004.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

There is hereby incorporated by reference the information to appear under the caption “Security Ownership
of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after December 31, 2004.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

There is hereby incorporated by reference the information to appear under the caption “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions™ in our Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days after December 31, 2004.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Financial Services.

There is hereby incorporated by reference the information to appear under the caption “Relationship with
Independent Auditor” in our Proxy Statement, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after December 31, 2004,

PART 1V

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) 1. and 2. Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.

See Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

1)  Report on Form 8-K dated October 22, 2004, furnished under Item 2.02, Results of Operations and
Financial Condition, reporting that we issued a press release announcing our financial resuits for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004.

2) Report on Form 8-K dated November 29, 2004, filed under Item 1.02, Termination of a Material
Agreement, announcing that we had terminated an interest rate swap agreement with JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. and Bank of America, N.A.

3) Report on Form 8-K dated December 22, 2004, filed under Item 1.01, Entry into a Material Definitive
Agreement and Item 1.02, Termination of a Material Definitive Agreement, announcing that our board
of directors voted to freeze our Deferred Compensation Plan for UHS Board of Directors and to
terminate our 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

4) Report on Form 8-K dated December 28, 2004, filed under [tem 8.01, Other Events, announcing an
expected earnings shortfall for the quarter ended December 31, 2004.
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(¢) Exhibits [

3.1 Company’s Restated Certifi

3.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Repor’u
by reference.

3.2 Bylaws of Registrant as ian
Form 10-K for the year ended De:ce

;
3.3 Amendment to the Compa

cate of Incorporation, and Amendments thereto, previously filed as Exhibit
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997, are incorporated herein

nended, previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on.
mber 31, 1987, is incorporated herein by reference.

ny’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to

Registrant’s Current Report on FOI‘II‘l 8-K dated July 3, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 Indenture dated as of Jlirile
Company, N.A., previously filed as
ended June 30, 2000, is incorporaied

23, 2000 between Universal Health Services, Inc. and Bank One Trust
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

herein by reference.

4.2 Form of Indenture dateng anuary 20, 2000, between Universal Health Services, Inc. and Bank One Trust
Company, N.A., Trustee previously j{filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3/A
(File No. 333-85781), dated February 1, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference.

4.3 Form of 6%4% Notes due 2011, previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form

|

8-K dated November 13, 2001, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.1 Amended and Restated !Employment Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2001, by and between
Universal Health Services, Inc. and Alan B. Miller, previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year Een
|

10.2 Advisory Agreement, déte
and UHS of Delaware, Inc., previo;uL
December 24, 1986, is incorporated

i

ded December 31, 2002, is incorperated herein by reference.

d as of December 24, 1986, between Universal Health Realty Income Trust
ly filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
herein by reference.

10.3 Agreement, effective Janu

ary 1, 2005, to renew Advisory Agreement, dated as of December 24, 1986,

between Universal Health Realty fncome Trust and UHS of Delaware, Inc.

10.4 Form of Leases, 1nclud1ng

Form of Master Lease Document for Leases, between certain subsidiaries of

the Registrant and Universal Health Realty Income Trust, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Amendment No. 3 of the
Registration Statemént on Form S- 111 and Form S-2 of Registrant and Universal Health Realty Income Trust
(Registration No. 33-7872), is mcorporated herein by reference.

10.5 Share Option Agreement

dated as of December 24, 1986, between Universal Health Realty Income

Trust and Registrant, previously ﬁled as Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 24, 1986, is 1ncorporated herein by reference.

10.6 Corporate Guaranty of lel gations of Subsidiaries Pursuant to Leases and Contract of Acquisition,

dated December 24, 1986, issued by

filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Reglstrant s C

herein by reference.

10.7 Universal Health Serv1ces

‘Registrant in favor of Universal Health Realty Income Trust, previously

Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 24, 1986, is incorporated

Inc. Executive Retirement Income Plan dated January 1, 1993, previously

filed as Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’ § Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, is

incorporated herein by reference.
i

i

10.8 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of November 16, 1993 between Certain Hospitals and UHS
Receivables Corp., previously filed as Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1993, is mcorp&rated herein by reference.
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10.9 Amendment No. 2 dated as of August 31, 1998, to Sale and Servicing Agreements dated as of various
dates between each hospital company and UHS Receivables Corp., previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, is incorporated herein by
reference.

10.10 Servicing Agreement dated as of November 16, 1993, among UHS Receivables Corp., UHS of
Delaware, Inc. and Continental Bank, National Association, previously filed as Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.11 Pooling Agreement dated as of November 16, 1993, among UHS Receivables Corp., Sheffield
Receivables Corporation and Continental Bank, National Association, previously filed as Exhibit 10.18 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, is incorporated herein by
reference. ’

10.12 Amendment No. 1 to the Pooling Agreement dated as of September 30, 1994, among UHS
Receivables Corp., Sheffield Receivables Corporation and Bank of America Illinois (as successor to Continental
Bank N.A.) as Trustee, previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1994, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.13 Amendment No. 2, dated as of April 17, 1997 to Pooling Agreement dated as of November 16, 1993,
among UHS Receivables Corp., a Delaware corporation, Sheffield Receivables Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and First Bank National Association, a national banking association, as trustee, previously filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 1997, is
incorporated herein by reference.

10.14 Form of Amendment No. 3, dated as of August 31, 1998, to Pooling Agreement dated as of
November 16, 1993, among UHS Receivables Corp., Sheffield Receivables Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association (successor to First Bank National Association and Continental Bank, National Association)
previously filed as Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1998 is incorporated herein by reference.

10.15 Agreement, dated as of August 31, 1998, by and among each hospital company signatory hereto,
UHS Receivables Corp., a Delaware Corporation, Sheffield Receivables Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee, previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1998, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.16 Guarantee dated as of November 16, 1993, by Universal Health Services, Inc. in favor of UHS
Receivables Corp., previously filed as Exhibit 10.19 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1993, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.17 2002 Executive Incentive Plan, previously filed as Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.18 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of February 6, 1996, among Amarillo Hospital District, UHS of
Amarillo, Inc. and Universal Health Services, Inc., previously filed as Exhibit 10.28 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.19 Agreement of Limited Partnership of District Hospital Partners, L.P. (a District of Columbia limited
partnership) by and among UHS of D.C., Inc. and The George Washington University, previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 30, 1997, and June 30,
1997, is incorporated herein by reference.
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- 10.20 Contribution Agreenflel
institution in the District of Colum

partnership), previously filed as E ‘

|

nt between The George Washington University (a congressionally chartered
bia) and District Hospital Partners, L.P. (a District of Columbia limited
xhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended June 30, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.21 Deferred Compensatio
thereto, previously filed as Exhibit
December 31, 2002, is incorporate

|
10.22 Valley/Desert Contribu
Medical Center, Inc. and NC—DSH
10-K for the year ended Decemb;er
‘ i

10.23 Summerlin Contributio

Medical Center, L.P. and NC-DSH
Form 10-K for the year ended Dece

10.24  Amended and Restatéd

n Plan for Universal Health Services Board of Directors and Amendment

10.22 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
d herein by reference.

tion Agreement dated January 30, 1998, by and among Valley Hospital
Inc. previously filed as Exhibit 10.30 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
31, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference.

n Agreement dated January 30, 1998, by and among Summerlin Hospital
[ Inc., previously filed as Exhibit 10.31 to Registrant’s Annual Report on

>mber 31, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference.

1992 Stock Option Plan, previously filed as Exhibit 10.33 to Registrant’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K forE the year ended December 31, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.25 Credit Agreement da:tec]l as of March 4, 2005, by and among Universal Health Services, Inc.,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Bank of America, N.A., as Syndication Agent and ABN
Amro Bank N.V._, Suntrust Bank Ear‘}d Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Co-Documentation Agents,
previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K on March 8, 2005, is incorporated herein

by reference.

10.26 Employee’s Restricteid

Quarterly Report on Form10-Q f50r

10.27 Amendment No. 1 tolth

Plan, previously filed as Exhibit 10

Stock Purchase Plan, previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 on Registrant’s
the quarter ended March 31, 2001, is incorporated herein by reference.

e Universal Health Services, Inc. 2001 Employees’ Restricted Stock Purchase
|1 on Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30, 2002, is incorporajted herein by reference.

10.28 . Amended and Restatei:d
dated as of January 1, 2002, previ’o

Uﬁiversal Health Services, Inc. Supplemental Deferred Compensation Plan

usly filed as Exhibit 10.29 to Registrant’s Annual Report on 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2002, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.29 Amended and Restatéd

2001 Employees’ Restricted Stock Purchase Plan, previously filed as Exhibit

4.1 to Registrant’s Registration S:tatement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-119143), dated September 21, 2004.

10.30 Universal Health Ser{/ices, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to
Registrant’s Registration Stateme;nt{ on Form S-8 (File No. 333-12218§), dated January 21, 2003, is incorporated

herein by reference. !
|
11. Statement re computatio:n
Consolidated Financial Statements.
i
22 Subsidiaries of Registrarit.
i

of per share earnings is set forth in Note 1 of the Notes to the Condensed

23.1 Consent of Independenft Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1 Certification from the Company’s Chief Exeéutive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 19:3

4.
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31.2 Certification from the Company’s Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

32.1 Certification from the Company’s Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification from the Company’s Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibits, other than those incorperated by reference, have been included in copies of this Report filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission. Stockholders of the Company will be provided with copies of those
exhibits upon written request to the Company.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requiremeints of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. |

UNIVERSAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/  ALAN B. MILLER

Alan B. Miller
President

March 14, 2005 ;

Pursuant to the requiremefnﬁs of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons ‘on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures ! Title Date
/s/  ALAN B. MILLER : Chairman of the Board, President March 14, 2005
Alan B. Miller | and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ ANTHONY PANTALEONI Director March 14, 2005
Anthony Pantaleoni
/s/ ROBERT H. HotZ Director March 14, 2005
Robert H. Hotz |
fs/ JounN H. HERRELL | Director March 14, 2005
John H. Herrell E
/s/  JoHN F. WILLIAMS, JR., M.D. , Director : March 14, 2005
John F. Williams, Jr., M.D;. ‘
/s/ LEATRICE DUCAT | Director March 14, 2005
Leatrice Ducat ‘
/s/ ROBERT A. MEISTERE Director March 14, 2005
Robert A. Meister
/s/ STEVE FILTON Senior Vice President, Chief Financial March 14, 2005
Steve Filton Officer and Secretary
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UNIVERSAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Consolidated Financial Statements and
Schedule ...
Consolidated Statements of Income for the three years ended December 31,2004 ..................
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2004 and 2003 . ... ... ... i,
Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equity for the three years ended December 31,
200 L
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31,2004 ..............
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ... ... ... i
Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule 1I: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ................
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
!

The Board of Directors and Stock}:aolders
Universal Health Services Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Universal Health Services Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as listed in the acczor}lpanying index. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial
statements, we also have audited tlhe financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index. These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility i 1s té) express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audlts
l

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standa‘rds require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amfounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentanon We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion. |

In our opinion, the consohdated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Universal Health Services Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2004, in conformity with U.S: generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectivenessiof Universal Health Services Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzahons of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 14,
2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal

control over financial reporting. | /

5 /s/ KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 14, 2005
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UNIVERSAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
NELTEVENUES . . .ottt i e e e e e $3,938,320 $3,391,506 $2,991,919
Operating charges:
Salaries, wages and benefits ........... ... ... ... L 1,607,103 1,355,047 1,193,258
Other operating eXpenses ...........c..ovuneiiiinnnenneen.. 916,542 778,656 717,805
Supplies eXPense . .. ... 546,801 449,225 376,755
Provision for doubtful accounts . ............. ... .. ... .. ... 307,163 252,644 218,947
Depreciation and amortization ........... ... . ... ... oL, 155,514 130,039 109,246
Lease andrentalexpense . ...........coiiurennnninnn.. . 70,433 59,479 56,943
3,603,556 3,025,090 2,672,954
Income before interest expense, minority interests and income taxes .. . 334,764 366,416 318,965
Interest eXpense, Net . ... ... ittt 43,405 37,855 34,096
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities ............... 20,216 22,265 19,716
Income before income taxes . ..........co i 271,143 306,296 265,153
Provision for InCOMe taxes . ... oottt 101,137 114,217 97,306
Income from continuing Operations ..............c...ceuiuennan.. 170,006 192,079 167,847
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income tax (benefit)
expense of ($295) during 2004, $4.2 million during 2003 and $4.4
million during 2002 . ... .. . (514) 7,190 7,514
NEetInCOME . ..ottt $ 169,492 $ 199,269 $ 175,361
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
From continuing operations ............coeviivriiinunn.... $ 295 % 333 § 2.81
From discontinued operations ... ............. .. ... .o ..., 0.01) 0.12 0.13
Total basic earnings pershare . ............... ... .... $ 294 % 345 % 294
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
From continuing operations . ............. ... .. ..., $ 276 % 3.09 % 2.63
From discontinued operations ............ ... ... . ..., (0.01) 0.11 0.11
Total diluted earnings pershare ........................ $ 2.75 320 3 2.74
Weighted average number of common shares—basic ............... 57,653 57,688 59,730
Add: Shares for conversion of convertible debentures ............... 6,577 6,577 6,577
Weighted average number of common share equivalents . . ... .. .. 635 824 768
Weighted average number of common shares and
equivalents—diluted ....... ... ... . 64,865 65,089 67,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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) Assets
Current assets: i
Cash and cash equivalents .......... 0. d . . . i $ 33,125 § 34,863
Accounts receivable, et . . ... ... b 552,538 503,929
Supplies .. ... 60,729 61,736
Deferred iNCOME tAXES . . ... .. ooo i e — 25,271
Other CUITENE ASSEES « .+« v e e e e b e e e 29,663 19,992
Assets of facilities held for sale . ..., 1. o o 132,870 —
Total CUITENt ASSELS . .. .. ... . o 808,925 645,791
Property and Equipment Co
Land ... 204,733 169,285
Buildings and improvements . .......;. R 1,236,081 1,120,313
EQUIDIIENE . ... oo e 706,111 658,932
Property under capital lease ......... O 51,075 44,540
; 2,198,000 1,993,070
Accumulated depreciation .......... N (819,218) (774,938)
{ 1,378,782 1,218,132
Construction-in-progress . . . ......... U 69,284 86,209
: 1,448,066 1,304,341
Qther assets:
Goodwill .......0 0. O 619,064 442,504
Deferred charges .................. O 14,416 15,832
Other, including deposits on acquisitions of $230 millionin 2003 .......... ... ... ... ... ool 132,372 364,262
E 765,852 822,598
! $3,022,843  $2,772,730
}
} . Liabiliti
Current liabilities: . !
Current maturities of long-term debt . ... L. o e e $ 16968 $ . 10,871
Accounts payable ................. O 190,181 178,824
Accrued liabilities :
Compensation and related BENETIES L. bov e oo ot e e e e 93,524 78,060
Interest . ............c......... U 2,645 2,508
Taxes other than income ........ [ L et e e e e 19,202 25,268
Other . ...ovvviiin i S PN 113,564 85,599
Current federal and state MCOME LAXES - .. e ettt et et e e e e e e e 12,455 14,623
Deferred income taxes ............. L L 10,001 —
Liabilities of facilities held for sale . .. .5 . b o oo o oo 11,116 —_—
Total current liabilities .. ..., . ‘ ......................................................... 469,656 395,753
Other noncurrent liabilities .. ... ... P PP 243,617 216,094
Minority interests ................ T PP 186,543 159,554
Long-termdebt .................. R A P 852,229 868,566
Deferred income taxes ............ P S 50,212 41,841
Commitments and contingencies
Common stockholders’ equity:
Class A Common Stock, voting, $.01 par alue; anthorized 12,000,000 shares:
issued and outstanding 3,328,404 shares|in 2004 and 3,328,404 shares in 2003 ... ..o, 33 33
Class B Common Stock, limited votmg,.$ 1 par value; authorized 150,000,000 shares: issued and outstanding
54,058,695 shares in 2004 and 54, 376 706 shares in 2003 . .. o 541 544
Class C Common Stock, voting, $.01 par value; authorized 1,200,000 shares: issued and outstanding 335,800
shares in 2004 and 335,800 shares in 2003 ....................................................... 3 3
Class D Common Stock, limited voting, |$ 01 par value; authorized 5,000,000 shares: issued and outstanding
27,401 shares in 2004 and 31,259 shares 02003 .. e e — —
Capltal in excess of par, net of deferred | compensauon of $1,659 in 2004 and $9,456in2003 ................. 21,231 42,480
Cumulative dividends .............. P (23,272) (4.644)
Retained earnings ................. e e e e e e e 1,220,186 1,050,694
Accumulated other comprehensive i mcome ........................................................ 1,864 1,812
| 1,220,586 1,090,922

UNIVERSAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC:. AND SUBSIDIARIES
| |CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2004

2003

(dollar amounts
in thousands)

$3,022,843  $2,772,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNIVERSAL HEALTH SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002

Balance, January 1, 2002
Common Stock
Issued/(converted) including tax benefits
from exercise of stock options
Repurchased
Amortization of deferred
compensation
Stock option expense ........... ...
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Adjustment for settlement amounts
reclassified into income (net of
income tax effect of $2,387)
Unrealized derivative losses on cash
flow hedges (net of income tax effect
of $4,783) ...
Minimum pension liability (net of
income tax effect of $4,525)

Subteotal—comprehensive income

Balance, January 1, 2003
Comimon Stock
Issued/(converted) including tax benefits
from exercise of stock options
Repurchased ......................
Amortization of deferred compensation
Dividends paid ($.08 per share)
Comprehensive income:
Nert income
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Adjustment for settlement amounts
reclassified into income (net of
income tax effect of $2,901)
Unrealized derivative losses on cash
flow hedges (net of income tax effect
of $935) oo
Minimum pension liability (net of
income tax effect of $873)

Subtotal-—comprehensive income

Balance, January 1, 2004
Common Stock
Issued/(converted) including tax benefits
from exercise of stock options
Repurchased
Amortization of deferred compensation
Reversal of amortization of deferred
compensation
Dividends paid (3.08 per share)
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustments
(net of tax effect of $7,761)
Adjustment for settlement amounts
reclassified into income (net of
income tax effect of $3,168)
Unrealized derivative losses on cash
flow hedges (net of income tax effect
of $504) ...
Minimum pension liability (net of
income tax effect of $1,662)

Subtotal—comprehensive income
Balance, December 31, 2004

{(in thousands)

Accumulated
Capital in Other
Class A ClassB  ClassC  ClassD  Excessof Cumulative Retained Comprehensive
Common Common Common Common Par Value Dividends Earnings Income (Loss)  Total
$ 38 $556 $ 4 — $137,400 — $ 676,064 $ (6,162) $ 807,900
5) 14 m — 6,558 —_ - — 6.566
- (17) — - (76,598) — — — (76,615)
— — — — 15,396 — — — 15,396
— — — — 1,379 — — — 1,379
— —_ — — — — 175,361 - 175,361
_ _ — — — — — (719y (719)
— — —_ — — — —_— 4,073 4,073
— — — — — — — (8,161) (8,161)
— — - - — - — (2,721) (1,721
— — — — — — 175,361 (12,528) 162,833
33 553 3 —_ 84,135 — 851,425 (18,650) 917.45%
— 5 — — 8,998 — — — 9,003
— (14) — — (54,304) — — - (54,318)
_ _ — 3,651 — — — 3,651
_ — — — — (4,644) — — (4,644)
— — — — — — 199,269 — 199,269
— —_ — — — — — 15,660 15,660
— —_ — — — — — 4,950 4,950
— —_ — — — — — (1,596) (1,596)
_ — — —_ — — — 1,488 1.488
- — — — — — 199,269 20,502 219,771
33 544 3 — 42,480 (4,644) 1,050,694 1,812 1,090,922
— 3 — — 11,730 — — — 11,733
- (6) - - (23,528) — — — (23,534)
— — — — 1,153 — — — 1,153
(10,604) (10,604)
_ — — - — (18.628) — - (18,628)
— _ _ _ — — 169,492 — 169,492
— — — — — — — (1,558) (1,558)
— — — — — — — 5,529 5,529
— — — — _ — — 879 (879)
— —_ —_ — —_ — — (3,040) (3,040)
— — — — — — 169,492 52 169,544
$ 33 $541 $ 3 — $ 21231 $(23,272) $1,220,186 $ 1,864 $1,220,586

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNWERSA'L HEALTH SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

|

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

f
Cash Flows from Operating Actmvmes '
Netincome .................5. 4 ................................
Adjustments to reconcile net 1ncome to net cash provided by operating
activities: :
Depreciation & amortization .{.| ......... ... ..o e
Accretion of discount on convertible debentures . ...................
Gains on sales of assets and busfin‘]esses, netoflosses .......... e
Property write-down due to hurricane damage .....................
. Reversal of restricted stock grant amortization .....................
Provision for asset irnpairrnent PO
Recovery of provision for Judgment .............................
Changes in assets & liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and
dispositions: |
Accounts receivable ........ L
Accrued interest ........... S O
 Accrued and deferred income taxes ..............................
Other working capital accounts .. ......... ... ... ... ...
Other assets and deferred charges ...............................
Other ................... ... 1 ................................
Minority interest in earnings of consolidated entities, net of
distributions .............. ( ................................
Accrued insurance expense, ne; of commercial premiums paid ........
Payments made in settlement o:f self-insurance claims ...............

Net cash provided by ope'rating activities ...................

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Property and equipment additiénl‘s net ...
Proceeds received from merger, sales or dispositions of assets and
busmesses.........‘....‘.f ................................
Acquisition of businesses and depos1ts on acquisitions . ..............
Purchase of assets previously leased .............................

Net cash used in investing activities .................. e

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Additional borrowings .......L....... e
Reduction of long-termdebt- .| ... ... ... .. .. .. L.
Capital contributions from mmority member ........... ... ...
Issuance of common stock .. 1. ... .. i
Repurchase of common shares ..................................
Dividendspaid ........ .. .0 i

Net cash received for termmatlo‘n of interest rate swaps ..............

Net cash (used in) pr0v1ded by financing activities . ...........

(Decrease) Increase in cash and cash equivalents ...................
Cash and cash equivalents, begmnmg ofperiod ....................

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofperiod .........................
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Interest paid . ... ... ... e
Income taxes paid, net of refunds .............................

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands}

$ 169,492 $ 199,269 $ 175,361

166,677 144,466 124,794
12,088 11,408 10,903
(5,382) (14,623) —

2,318 — —
(10,604) — —
— 13,742 —
— (8.867) —
(29,552)  (10,530) (34,987)
(388) (1,182) 640
37,857 35,189 7,347
16,452 (20,490) 23,679
6,576 11,517 (5,113)

(15,853) (6,810) (5,972)
11,796 344 7,425
78,256 66,744 58,316

(46,853)  (43,402) (31,134)

392,880 376,775 331,259

(230,760) (224,370) (206,838)
81,291 25,376 8,369
(162,930) (281,268) (3,000)
(7,320 — —
(319,719) (480,262) (201,469)
72,629 175,033 39,311
(108,860)  (13,164) (106,439)
— 14,541 5,908
3,072 3,152 2,947
(23,534)  (54,318)  (76,615)
(18,628) (4,644) —
422 — —

(74,899) 120,600  (134,888)
(1,738) 17,113 (5,098)
34,863 17,750 22,848

$ 33125 $ 34863 $ 17,750
$ 31,180 $ 27,576 $ 23,203
$ 63,542 $§ 81919 §$ 94412

The accompanymg; notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our principal business is owning and operating, through our subsidiaries acute care hospitals, behavioral
health centers and ambulatory surgery and radiation oncology centers. As of March 1, 2005, we operated 44
acute care hospitals and 49 behavioral health centers located in 23 states, Washington, DC, Puerto Rico and
France. As part of our ambulatory treatment centers division, we manage and own outright or in partnership with
physicians, 12 surgery and radiation oncology centers located in 7 states and Puerto Rico. Subsequent to
December 31, 2004, we executed a definitive agreement to sell two acute care hospitals located in Puerto Rico.
The sales, which are subject to customary regulatory approvals, are expected to be completed by March 31, 2005.

Net revenues from our acute care hospitals (including the facilities located in France) and our ambulatory
and radiation oncology centers accounted for 82%, 82% and 81% of consolidated net revenues in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Net revenues from our behavioral health care facilities accounted for 18%, 18% and 19%, of
consolidated net revenues in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Services provided by our hospitals include general surgery, internal medicine, obstetrics, emergency room
care, radiology, oncology, diagnostic care, coronary care, pediatric services and behavioral health services. We
provide capital resources as well as a variety of management services to our facilities, including central
purchasing, information services, finance and control systems, facilities planning, physician recruitment services,
administrative personnel management, marketing and public relations.

The more significant accounting policies follow:

A) Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our
majority-owned subsidiaries and partnerships controlled by us or our subsidiaries as the managing general
partner. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

B) Revenue Recognition: We record revenues and related receivables for health care services at the time
the services are provided. We have agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to us at
amounts different from our established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges and per diem payments. We report net patient service revenue at
the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered. Medicare
and Medicaid revenues represented 40%, 41% and 42% of our net patient revenues during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Revenues from managed care entities, including health maintenance organizations and managed
Medicare and Medicaid programs, accounted for 40% of our net patient revenues during each of the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to
interpretation and as a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by material
amounts in the near term. We estimated certain Medicare and Medicaid revenues using the latest available financial
information, patient utilization data, government provided data and in accordance with applicable Medicare and
Medicaid payment rules and regulations. Certain types of payments by the Medicare program and state Medicaid
programs are subject to retroactive adjustment in future periods. We accrue for the estimated amount of these
retroactive adjustments in the period when the services subject to retroactive settlement are recorded. Such amounts
are included in accounts receivable, net, on our consolidated balance sheets. These revenues (e.g.; Medicare
Disproportionate Share Hospital, Medicare Allowable Bad Debts and Inpatient Psychiatric Services) are subject to
retrospective review and final settlement by the Medicare program. Adjustments related to the final settlement of
these retrospectively determined amounts did not materially impact our operating results in 2004, 2003 and 2002.
The large majority of the revenues generated by the acute care hospitals owned by our France subsidiary are paid by
the government based on predetermined rates established in May of each year and consist of a per diem payment
and per procedure rate plus reimbursement for certain supplies.
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We provide care to patlents who meet certain financial or econormnic criteria without charge or at amounts
substantially less than our establxsﬁed rates. Because we do not pursue collection of amounts determined to
qualify as charity care, they are no‘t reported in net revenues or in accounts receivable, net. Our acute care
hospitals located in the U.S. prov1ded charity care, based on charges at established rates, amounting to $294.7

million, $241 2 million and $186 2 million during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

C) Provision for Doubtful Afccounts: Collection of receivables from third-party payors and patients is
our primary source of cash and is critical to our operating performance. Our primary collection risks relate to

uninsured patients and the port1on Bf the bill which is the patient’s responsibility, primarily co-payments and

deductibles. We estimate our prov1‘51ons for doubtful accounts based on general factors such as payor mix, the -
agings of the receivables and historical collection experience. We routinely review accounts receivable balances
in conjunction with these factors; arlld other economic conditions which might ultimately affect the collectibility
of the patient accounts and make adjustments to our allowances as warranted. Patient accounts receivable are
written-off when reasonable colléction efforts have been exhausted and the account is deemed uncollectible, as
defined by our policies and procedhres Significant changes in business office operations, payor mix, economic
conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health coverage could affect our collection of accounts
receivable, cash flow and results of operations. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable are
recorded net of allowance for doub{tful accounts of $71.4 million and $56.3 million, respectively.

D) Concentration of Revenues Our four majority-owned facilities operating in the Las Vegas market
contributed on a combined basis | 171%, 16% and 17% of our consolidated net revenues during 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Two facilities located in the McAllen/Edmburg, Texas market contributed, on a combined

basis, 9%, 11% and 12% of our coﬁsolldated net revenues during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
I

E) Cash and Cash Equ1valents We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with maturities of
three months or less to be cash equlvalents

1 i
F) Property and Equlpment ‘Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for renewals and
improvements are charged to the property accounts. Replacements, maintenance and repairs which do not
improve or extend the life of the respectlve asset are expensed as incurred. We remove the cost and the related
accumulated depreciation from tﬁe accounts for assets sold or retired and the resulting gains or losses are
included in the results of operatiohs.

We capitalize interest expense on major construction projects while in process. We capitalized $1.5 million,
$3.6 million and $4.6 million of i 1nterest related to major construcnon in projects in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Depreciation is provided on fthe straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of buildings and
improvements (twenty to forty yefaré) and equipment (three to fifteen years). Depreciation on capital leases is
provided on a straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the buildings and
equipment. Depreciation expense]w‘as $143 1 million, $119.2 million and $99.4 miltion in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectlvely ‘

’ i
" G) Long-Lived Assets: Ini a’ccordance with SFAS No.144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets”; we review our long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, for impairment
whenever events or circumstances ifxdicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. The
assessment of possible impairment ifs based on our ability to recover the carrying value of our assets based on our
estimate of its undiscounted future cash flow. If our analysis indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable
from future cash flows, we recogmze an impairment loss and write the long-lived asset down to its estimated fair

value. We determine the fair values based on estimated future cash flows using appropriate discount rates.

H) Goodwill: In accordanc;e Wlth SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, we ceased
amortizing goodwill as of J anuary% 1} 2002. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the reporting unit level, as
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defined by SFAS No. 142, on an annual basis or sooner if the indicators of impairment arise. Our judgments
regarding the existence of impairment indicators are based on market conditions and operational performance of
each reporting unit. We have designated September 1% as our annual impairment assessment date and performed
an impairment assessment as of September 1, 2004, which indicated no impairment of goodwill. Future changes
in the estimates used to conduct the impairment review, including profitability and market value projections,
could indicate impairment in future periods potentially resulting in a write-off of a portion or all of our goodwill.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the two years ended December 31, 2004 were as follows (in
thousands):

Acute Care  Behavioral
Hospital Health Total

Services Services Other Consolidated
Balance, Janvary 1,2003 ... ... .. ... ... ... . o $307,938 $ 54,450 $ 47,932  $410,320
Goodwill acquired during the period . ..................... 942 2,386 16,768 20,096
Goodwill divested during the period . ..................... — — (860) (860)
Adjustments to goodwill(a) .............. ... i, — — 12,948 12,948
Balance, January 1,2004 . ..... ... ... .. .. oL 308,880 56,836 76,788 442 504
Goodwill acquired during the period . ..................... 122,500 79,955 20,399 222,854
Goodwill divested during the period . ..................... (14,968) — (1,286) (16,254)
Goodwill of facilities held forsale ....................... (37,010) — — (37,010}
Adjustments to goodwill(a) ........... ... ... L — — 6,970 6,970
Balance, December 31,2004 .. ........ .. .. ... .. $379,402 $136,791 $102,871 $619,064

(a) Consists of the foreign currency translation adjustment on goodwill recorded in connection with our 80%
ownership interest in an operating company that owns acute care facilities in France.

I) Other Assets: Included in other assets are estimates of expected recoveries from various state guaranty
funds, insurers and other sources in connection with PHICO related professional and general liability claims
payments amounting to $31.5 million and $43.0 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively
(see Note 8). Actual recoveries may vary from these estimates due to the inherent uncertainties involved in
making such estimates. Other assets at December 31, 2003 also include $230 million of deposits on acquisitions,
which were consummated on January 1, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, were not
material.

J) Self-Insured Risks: We provide for self-insured risks, primarily general and professional liability
claims and workers’ compensation claims, based on estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and
claims incurred but not reported. Estimated losses from asserted and incurred but not reported claims are accrued
based on our estimates of the ultimate costs of the claims, which includes costs associated with litigating or
settling claims, and the relationship of past reported incidents to eventual claims payments. All relevant
information, including our own historical experience, the nature and extent of existing asserted claims and
reported incidents, and independent actuarial analyses of this information, is used in estimating the ultimate cost
to settle claims. We also consider amounts that may be recovered from excess insurance carriers, state guaranty
funds and other sources in estimating our ultimate net liability for such risks.

In addition, we also maintain self-insured employee benefits programs for workers’ compensation and
employee healthcare and dental claims. The ultimate costs related to these programs includes expenses for claims
incurred and reported in addition to an accrual for the estimated expenses incurred in connection with claims
incurred but not yet reported.

Our estimated self-insured reserves are reviewed and changed, if necessary, at each reporting date. The
amounts of the changes are recognized currently as additional expense or as a reduction of expense.
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K) Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the amount of taxes payable or
deductible in future years as a resnlt of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements. We believe that future income will enable us to realize

e ] .
our deferred tax assets and therefore no valuation allowances have been recorded.

We operate in multiple juri?sdictions with varying tax laws. We are subject to audits by any of these taxing
authorities. Our tax returns have! been examined by the Internal Revenue Service and various state authorities
through the year ended December 31,2002 w1th no material adjustments. We believe that adequate accruals have
been provided for federal and state taxes.

L) Other Noncurrent Llabl]llt]est Other noncurrent liabilities include the long-term portion of our
professional and general liability'., workers’ compensation reserves and pension liability.

M) Minority Interest: As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the $186.5 million and $159.6 million,
respectively, minority interest hablhty consists primarily of: (i) a 27.5% outside ownership interest in four acute
care facilities located in Las Vegas‘ Nevada; (ii) a 20% outside ownership in an acute care facility located in
Washington D.C.; (iii) a 20% outside ownership interest in an operating company that owns fourteen hospitals in
France, and; (iv) a 10% outside anershlp in two acute care facilities located in Louisiana.

In connection with the four :_acute care facilities located in Las Vegas, the outside owners have certain “put
rights” that may require the respective limited liabilities companies (“ILLCs”) to purchase the minority member’s
interests upon the occurrence of: E(i)‘ certain specified financial conditions falling below established thresholds;
(ii) breach of the management contract by the managing member (a subsidiary of ours), or; (iii) if the minority

member’s ownership percentage is reduced to less than certain thresholds.

In connection with the fourteen hospitals located in France, the minority owners have certain “put rights”
that, if exercised, would require us to purchase up to 100% of the shares, through March 31, 2009, at a multiple
of the subsidiary’s earnings before 1nterest taxes, depreciation and amortization, as defined. We also have certain
“call rights” that would allow us to purchase all the minority owners’ shares pursuant to this formula at any time
through December 31, 2009. ?

With respect to the first quar‘;te’r‘of 2004 acquisitions of two acute care facilities located in Louisiana by a
LLC, in which we own a 90% coﬁtrolling interest, the minority member has certain “put rights” which can be
exercised at any time within 180 days of the third, fifth, tenth or fifteenth anniversary of the closing dates, or at
any time if certain determmatlons are made as specified in the agreement. These put rights, if exercised, would
require the LLC to purchase the nnnonty member’s interest at a price that is the greater of: (i) a fixed amount as
stipulated in the agreement that agproximates the minority member’s interest in each facility, or; (ii) the minority
member’s interest multiplied by the|annualized net revenue of each facility for the 12 month period ending on the
date of exercise of the put right. We|also have certain “call rights” that would allow the LLC to purchase the
minority member’s shares which ¢an be exercised at any time within 180 days of the third, fifth, tenth or fifteenth
anniversary of the closing dates, or at any time if certain determinations are made as specified in the agreement.
These call rights allow the LLC toi purchase the minority member’s interest at a price that is the greater of: (i) a
fixed amount as stipulated in the alfgneement that approximates the minority member’s interest in each facility,
plus a premium, or; (ii) the minoritymember’s percentage interest multiplied by the annualized net revenue of

each facility plus a premium for tlie 12 month period ending on the date of exercise of the call right.

N) Comprehensive Incomei Comprehensive income or loss is recorded in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No.130, “Reportmg Comprehensive Income”. SFAS No.130 establishes standards for
reporting comprehensive income and its components in financial statements. Comprehensive income (loss), is
comprised of net income, changes ,m unrealized gains or losses on derivative financial instruments, foreign

\
currency translation adjustments and the minimum pension liability.

O) Accounting for Derwauye Fmancnal Investments and Hedging Activities: We manage our ratio of
fixed to floating rate debt with the objective of achieving a mix that management believes is appropriate. To

i

2 70




manage this risk in a cost-effective manner, we, from time to time, enters into interest rate swap agreements, in
which we agree to exchange various combinations of fixed and/or variable interest rates based on agreed upon
notional amounts.

We account for our derivative and hedging activities using SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 149, which requires all derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, to be carried at fair value on the balance
sheet. For derivative transactions designated as hedges, we formally document all relationships between the
hedging instrument and the related hedged item, as well as its risk-management objective and strategy for
undertaking each hedge transaction.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. Cash flow hedges
are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument on the balance sheet as either an asset
or liability, with a corresponding amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (“*AOCI”) within
shareholders’ equity. Amounts are reclassified from AOCI to the income statement in the period or periods the
hedged transaction affects earnings.

We use interest rate swaps in our cash flow hedge transactions. The interest rate swaps are designed to be
highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows related to the hedged liability. For derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges, the ineffective portion of the change in expected cash flows of the hedged item
are recognized currently in the income statement.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value
of an asset, liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered
fair value hedges under SFAS 133. Fair value hedges are accounted for by recording the changes in the fair value
of both the derivative instrument and the hedged item in the income statement.

For hedge transactions that do not qualify for the short-cut method, at the hedge’s inception and on a regular
basis thereafter, a formal assessment is performed to determine whether changes in the fair values or cash flows
of the derivative instruments have been highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items
and whether they are expected to be highly effective in the future.

P) Foreign Currency: One of our subsidiaries operates in France, whose currency is denominated in
Euros. Our French subsidiary translates its assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars at the current exchange rates in
effect at the end of the fiscal period. Any resulting gains or losses are recorded, net of the income tax effect, in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The revenue and expense accounts of the France subsidiary are translated into U.S. dollars at the average
exchange rate that prevailed during the period. Therefore, the U.S. dollar value of the French subsidiary’s
operating results may fluctuate from period to period due to changes in exchange rates.

Q) Stock-Based Compensation: At December 31, 2004, we have a number of stock-based employee
compensation plans, which are more fully described in Note 5. We account for these plans under the recognition
and measurement principles of APB Opinion No.25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
Interpretations. No compensation cost is reflected in net income for most stock option grants, as all options
granted under the plan had an original exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common shares
on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No.123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation. We recognize compensation cost related to restricted
share awards over the respective vesting periods, using an accelerated method.
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Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
Income from continuing OPerations | . . .........o.veuiiuernrnnran ... $170,006 $192,079 $167,847

Add/(deduct): total stock-based compensation expenses included in net

income, net of tax (prov151on)/beneﬁt of ($3.4) million, $1.4 million

and $6.3 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.(@) .......... (5,779) 2,412 10,691
Deduct: total stock-based emplt‘ayee compensation expenses deterrnined

under fair value based methCJ]ds for all awards, net of tax of $24,000,

$5.2 million and $11.0 mxlllon in 2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.(a) ........ L e 41) (8,916) (18,894)

Pro forma net income from continhipg‘ operations .............. . 164,186 185,575 159,644
Income from discontinued operatijons, net of income tax .. ... RET (514) 7,190 7,514
Pro forma net income ......... .................. EEREIT PR $163,672 $192,765 $167,158
Basic earnings (loss) per share, aséreported:

From continuing operations & .| .........ccoouiiunneennn.. P $ 295 3 333 § 281

From discontinued operation's .................................. (0.01) 0.12 0.13
Total basic earnings per share, as repoﬂed .................... T $ 294 5 345 § 294
Basic earnings (loss) per share, pro 10rma

From continuing operations | .. ..........ouiviiieennnee... $ 285 $ 322 $§ 267

From discontinued operationfs ................. P 001 012 0.13
Total basic earnings per share, pro forma ..................coovieeon... $ 284 35 334 $§ 280
Diluted earnings (loss) per share, ‘;as reported: ‘ ’

From continuing operations L .| .. o........ooiiiii i $ 276 $ 309 $§ 263

From discontinued Operations |. .. ...........ovuvinmiiinnnnenen... (0.01) 0.11 0.11
Total diluted earnings per share, afs reported. .. ... $ 275§ 320 $ 274
Diluted earnings (loss) per share, ipro forma

From continuing operations | ............... S $ 267 $ 299 § 251

From discontinued operations |................. e (0.01) 0.11 0.11
Total diluted earnings per share, proforma ............................ $ 266 $ 310 $§ 262

(a) The 2004 “total stock-based éompensatlon expense included in net income, net of tax (provision)/benefit”,

. and “total stock-based employee compensation expenses determined under fair value based methods for all
awards, net of tax”, include a $6. 7 million after-tax ($10.6 million pre-tax) reversal of compensation
expense recorded in prior years in connection with a restricted stock grant that was cancelled.

]

In December, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires all
companies to' measure compensatiorjl cost for all share-based payments, including employee stock options,
restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights and employee share purchase plans at
fair value. Statement 123R replac;es FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
which was originally issued in 1995‘ and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees. SFAS 123R will be effective for public companies for interim periods beginning after June 15, 2005.
Retroactive application of the requ&emems of SFAS 123 (not SFAS 123R) to the beginning of the fiscal year that
includes the effective date or all penods presented would be permitted, but not required. We will be required to

72




apply SFAS 123R beginning on July 1, 2005, which will be reflected in our financial statements for the quarter
ending September 30, 2005. Although we have not yet determined our valuation methodology, beginning on July
1, 2005, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, we expect to record expense related to currently
outstanding stock options (assuming no cancellations) of $1.7 million for the period of July 1, 2005 through
December 31, 2005 ($3.6 million for the entire year of 2005), $2.1 million during 2006, $739,000 during 2007
and $51,000 during 2008. The stock-based compensation expense determined under a fair value method,
specifically related to stock options, was $9.2 million and $10.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. These pro forma amounts may not be representative of future expense amounts since the
estimated fair value of the stock options is amortized to expense over the vesting period, and additional options
may be granted in future years.

R) Earnings per Share: Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year adjusted to give effect to common stock equivalents.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share, for the periods
indicated:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
Basic:
Income from continuing Operations ... ............oovernernnnn.. $170,006 $192,079 $167,847
Less: Dividends on unvested restricted stock, net of taxes ............ (111) (28) —
Income from continuing operations—basic ........................ $169,895 $192,051 $167,847
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ....................... (514) 7,190 7.514
Net InCOmME—basiC ... ..ottt $169,381 $199,241 $175,361
Weighted average number of common shares—basic ................ 57,653 57,688 59,730
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
From continuing Operations . ... ..........uueeiniieernannieen.. $ 295 § 333 § 281
From discontinued operations . ............. ... .. i $ OO S 012 $ 013
Total basic earnings pershare .............. ..., $ 294 $§ 345 § 294
Diluted:
Income from continuUing OPerations .. .................ceevenvenons $170,006 $192,079 $167,847
Less: Dividends on unvested restricted stock, netof taxes ............ 1in (28) —
Add: Debenture interest, net of taxes . ..., i 9,240 8,799 8,451
Income from continuing operations—diluted ...................... $179,135 $200,850 $176,298
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . ...................... (519) 7,190 7,514
Netincome—diluted ...... ... .. .. .. . i $178,621 $208,040 $183,812
Weighted average number of common shares . ..................... 57,653 57,688 59,730
Assumed conversion of discounted convertible debentures ........... 6,577 6,577 6,577
Net effect of dilutive stock options and grants based on the treasury
stockmethod ........ ... .. . . . . . . 635 824 768
Weighted average number of common shares and
equivalents—diluted . . . ... ... ... 64,865 65,089 67,075
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
From continuing operations .. ..........c.oeirrreeinnnernnnnernn.. $ 276 $ 309 $ 263
From discontinued operations .. .............ueiiiiinriinaea. $ (o1 $ 011 $ 011
Total diluted earnings pershare ................... ... ... ..... $ 275§ 320 %8 274
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S) Fair Value of Financi‘al’t Instruments: The fair values. of our registered debt, interest rate swap
agreements and investments are based on quoted market prices. The fair values of other long-term debt, including
capital lease obligations, are esti&‘tated by discounting cash flows using period-end interest rates and market
conditions for instruments with’; similar maturities and credit quality. The carrying amounts reported in the
consolidated balance sheets foricash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and short-term borrowings
approximates their fair values dué to the short-term nature of these instruments. Accordingly, these items have
been excluded from the fair valftle1 disclosures included elsewhere in these notes to consolidated financial

statements. - = . . o

T) Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of 'c&ntingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. . o

‘U) Reclassifications: Cénain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
period presentation. . '

_ V) Recent Accounting Pronouncements‘ On September 30, 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) affirmed its previous, coﬁsensus regarding Issue 04-8, “The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on
Diluted Earnings Per Share”. The gmdance in this Issue requires that contingently convertible instruments be
inciuded in diluted earnings per share computations (if dilutive) regardless of whether the market price trigger
has been met. The effective date of this consensus is for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2004.
Retroactive restatement of eammg’s per share amounts is required for contingent convertible debt issuances that
are outstanding at the effective dhte. This pronouncement had no effect on our financial statements.

On December 15, 2003, the §FASB issued an Exposure Draft, “Earnings Per Share, an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 128” (the “Amendrtllent”). The proposed Amendment requires, in part, that for contracts that can
be settled in either cash or shares, issuing entities should assume share settlement for purposes of computing
diluted earnings per share. The FASB subsequently decided that retroactive restatement of earnings per share is
not required for those contracts that are appropriately modified prior to the effective date of the Amendment.
This Amendment was effective for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2004. This pronouncement had

no effect on our financial statements

N

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatlon No. 46 (revised December 2003), “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities,” whxch addresses how a business enterprise should evaluate whether it has a
controlling financial interest in an entity through means other than voting rights and accordingly should
consolidate the entity. FIN 46R repﬂaces FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,
which was issued in January 2003. We were required to apply FIN 46R to variable interests in variable interest
entities (“VIEs”) created after Decel\’nber 31, 2003. For variable interests in VIEs created before January 1, 2004,
the Interpretation will be applied begmmng on January 1, 2005. As of December 31, 2004, we do not have any
interests in entities that would be ¢onsidered variable interest entities.

)
H

2) ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
2005: . Z |

Subsequent to December 31, 2004 we signed a definitive agreement to sell two acute care facilities in
Puerto Rico: Hospital San Pablo, a 430-bed acute care hospital located in Bayamon and Hogpital San Pablo del
Este, a 180-bed acute care hospital in Fajardo. The sale proceeds will be approximately $120 million in cash plus
the value of certain comppnentspﬁ v\‘/orking capital. The sale is subject to customary regulatory approvals and we
expect the closing to occur by March 31, 2005. The operating results of these facilities are reflected as “Income/
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 ahd 2002. '

i
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Year ended December 31, 2004:

During 2004, we spent approximately $163 million on acquisitions to acquire the following:

a 90% controlling ownership interest in a 54-bed acute care hospital located in New Orleans, Louisiana,
(operations subsequently merged with the operations of a 306-bed acute care hospital located in East
New Orleans, Louisiana);

a 50-bed acute care facility, a 20-bed acute care facility and a the remaining 65% ownership interest
(35% previously acquired) in the real estate assets of a 198-bed acute care facility located in France, all
of which were acquired by an operating company in which we own an 80% controlling ownership
interest;

a 63-bed behavioral health hospital, partial services, a school, group homes and detox services located in
Stonington, Connecticut;

a 112-bed behavioral health facility in Savannah, Georgia;

a 77-bed behavioral health facility in Benton, Arkansas;

the operations of an 82-bed behavioral health facility in Las Vegas, Nevada;
a 72-bed behavioral health facility in Bowling Green, Kentucky, and;

an outpatient surgery center in Edinburg, Texas and an outpatient surgery center located in New
Orleans, Louisiana.

In addition, in late December, 2003, we funded $230 million (which was included in other assets on our
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003) for the combined purchase price of the following acute care
facilities which we acquired effective January 1, 2004:

a 90% controlling ownership interest in a 306-bed facility located in East New Orleans, Louisiana;
a 228-bed facility located in Corona, California;

a 112-bed facility located in San Luis Obispo, California (this facility was sold during the second
quarter of 2004), and;

a 65-bed facility located in Arroyo Grande, California (this facility was sold during the second quarter
of 2004).

The aggregate net purchase price of the facilities was allocated on a preliminary basis to assets and
liabilities based on their estimated fair values as follows:

Amount

UL
Working capital,net .............. ... ... $ 31,000
Property, plant & equipment . . .. ....... ... ... ..o 165,000
Goodwill .. ... . 223,000
Other assets . ... i i e e 5,000
Debt .. (10,000)
Other liabilities ... ......... .. ... ... . .. . .. (21,000)
Cash purchase price for 2004 acquisitions . ........................... 393,000
Less: Cash deposits madein2003 ................................... (230,000)
Cash paid in 2004 for acquisitions . . . . ........ ... ... .. ... ... ... $ 163,000

Assuming these acquisitions occurred on January 1, 2004, proforma net revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2004 would have been $3.96 billion and the proforma effect on our income from continuing
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operations, income from continuirig operations per basic and diluted share, net income and net income per basic
and diluted share was immaterial. A>suming these acquisitions occurred on January 1, 2003, our 2003 proforma
net revenues would have been approx1mately $3.67 billion and our proforma income from continuing operations
would have been $197.1 million and proforma income from continuing operations per basic and diluted share
would have been $3.42 and $3.16, respectlvely, and proforma net income would have been $204.3 million and
proforma net income per basic an(ii diluted share would have been $3.54 and $3.27, respectively.

During 2004, in conjunction :with our strategic plan to sell two fecently acquired acute care hospitals in
California as well as certain other Pr}der-perfornljng assets, we sold the operations and/or property of the
following acute care facilities and surgery and radiation therapy centers for combined cash proceeds of

approximately $81 million:

* a112-bed hospital locatecgi in San Luis Obispo, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);

o

* a65-bed hospital located in Arroyo Grande, California (sold in second quarter of 2004);
e a136-bed leased hospital%in Shreveport, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);
e a 106-bed hospital locatecil in La Place, Louisiana (sold in second quarter of 2004);

* a 160-bed pediatric and surgery hospital located in Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico (sold in third quarter of
2004), and; g

e ownership interests in five outpatient surgery centers located in Ponca City, Oklahoma (sold in second
quarter of 2004), New AJba‘ny, Indiana (sold in third quarter of 2004), Hammond, Louisiana (sold in
third quarter of 2004), thtler,ton Colorado (sold in the first quarter of 2004) and St. George, Utah (sold
in the fourth quarter of 2004) and a radiation therapy center located in Madison, Indiana (sold in first
quarter of 2004).

t

The operating results of all these facilities, as well as gains, net of losses, resulting from the divestitures are
reflected as “Income/(loss) from dlsc]:ontmued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated Statements of

Income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. These transactions resulted in a combined pre-

tax gain of approximately $5 milli(j)n'($3 million after-tax) which is included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued

operations, net of income tax” in tl§1e Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Shown below is a schedule of results of operations, on a combined basis, for all facilities reflected as

discontinued operations for the yea:s1 ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Year Ended December 31, 2003

During 2003, we spent $281 million to acquire the assets and operations of: (i) a 108-bed behavioral health
system in Anchorage and Palmer, Alaska; (ii) three acute care facilities located in France which were acquired by
an operating company that is 80% Eov‘vned by us; (iii) three acute care facilities located in California, all of which
were ownership effective January 1 2004, as discussed above; (iv) the acquisition, which was also ownership
effective January 1, 2004, of a 90% controlling ownership interest in a 306-bed acute care facility located in East
New Orleans, Louisiana, and; (v) t.hei acquisition of a behavioral health facility located in Alaska and an
outpatient surgery center located in Qklahoma.
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The aggregate net purchase price of the facilities was allocated to assets and liabilities based on their
estimated fair values as follows:

Amount
(000s)
Working capital,net .. ................ B e $ (2,000
Property, plant & equipment . ........ ... ... . ... ... ... ... 38,000
Goodwill . ... . e 20,000
Other assets .. ... .. 6,000
Debt . {(6.000)
Other liabilities .. .......... . ... .. ... . . . . (5,000)
Cash purchase for 2003 acquisitions ................... ... ... . .... 51,000
Cash deposits made for 2004 acquisitions ............................. 230,000
Total cash paid in 2003 for acquisitions .. . ......................... ... $281,000

The pro forma effect of these acquisitions (excluding the acquisitions that were ownership effective January
1, 2004) on our net revenues, net income and basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002 were immaterial.

During 2003, we received total cash proceeds of $25 million for the sale of five radiation therapy centers,
two medical office buildings (which were sold to limited liability companies that are majority owned by
Universal Health Realty Income Trust), an outpatient surgery center and the disposition of our investment in a
healthcare related company. The operating results of these facilities, as well as gains, net of losses, resulting from
the divestitures are reflected as “Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2003. These transactions resulted in a
combined pre-tax gain of approximately $15 million (§9 million after minority interest expense and income
taxes) which is included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated
Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2002:

During 2002, we spent $3 million to acquire a majority ownership interest in the assets and operations of a
surgery center located in Puerto Rico. In addition, effective January 1, 2002, we acquired the assets and
operations of: (i) a 150-bed acute care facility located in Lansdale, Pennsylvania, and; (ii) a 117-bed acute care
facility located in Lancaster, California. Included in other assets at December 31, 2001 were $70 million of
deposits related to the acquisition of these two facilities.

The aggregate net purchase price of the facilities was allocated to assets and liabilities based on their
estimated fair values as follows:

Amount
(000s)

Working capital,net . ...... ... . ... ... $ 14,000
Property and equipment . .......... ... ... .. ... i 32,000
Goodwill .. ... . . e 34,000
Debt . (3,000)
Other liabilities .......... ... ... ... . (4,000)

Total cash purchaseprice . . ........... ... ... ... ... ... 73,000

Less: cash deposits made in2001 . ................................ (70,000)

Cash paid for 2002 acquisitions ............... ... ... ... . ..., $ 3,000



§
{

The pro forma effect of these a}cquisitions on our net revenues, net income and basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year ended December 31, 2002 was immaterial.

During 2002, the we'receive:d net proceeds of $8 million resulting from the sale of real estate related to a
women’s hospital and a radiationioncology center, both of which were closed in a prior year and written down to
their estimated net realizable values. The sale of the real estate of the women’s hospital resulted in a $2.2 million

|
gain which is  included in “Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income tax” in the Consolidated

Statement of Income for the year ¢ ended December 31, 2002. The gain on the sale of the radiation center was not

material. |
g
The goodwill acquired during the last three years as presented above, is expected to be fully deductible for
income tax purposes. |

i
i

The following table shows the results of operations, on a combined basis, for all facilities reﬂected as
discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

i Year Ended December 31,

Ll ‘ 2004 2003 2002

: (000s)
Netrevenues ................ P $219,553  $252,060 $266,979
Income (loss) from operations . . A R $ (6,191) $ 1,655 $ 9,736
Gains, et .................. A A PR 5382 14,623 -
Provision for asset impairment . §. ...... e e — (13,742) —
Recovery of provision for Judgment/closure COSES vt — 8,867 2,182
Income (loss) from discontinued qperatlons Pre-tax .....ouiiiii e (809) 11,403 11,918
Income tax (provision)/benefit-. .. .| ............ ... ...l e 295 (4,213) (4,404)
Income (loss) from discontinued dpe rations, net of income tax expense ... .. $ 14 $ 7,190 % 7514 ‘

3) FINANCIAL KNSTRUMEN[TS

Fair Value Hedges: As of December 31, 2004, we had no fair value hedges outstanding. During
November 2004 we terminated two fair value hedges. They were floating rate swaps with a notional principal
amount of $60 million in'which we received a fixed rate of 6.75% and paid a floating rate equal to 6 month
LIBOR plus a spread. The term of these swaps were ten years and were scheduled to expire on November 15,
2011. We received a termination payment of $4.3 million. As a result of the termination, during 2004, we
recorded a decrease of $4.3 millioﬁ in other assets. The basis adjustment of $4.3 million on the hedged interest-
bearing instrument will be treated fas‘a premium and amortized as interest income over the expected remaining

life of the interest bearing instrumént using the effective-yield method.

N

Cash Flow Hedges: As of December 31, 2004, we had no domestic cash flow hedges outstanding. During
November 2004 we terminated one ﬁxed rate swap with a notional principal amount of $125 million, which was
scheduled to expire in August 2005. We paid a termination amount of $3.8 million. As the previously hedged
forecasted transactions are still probable of occurring, the net loss of $3.8 million remained in accumulated other
comprehensive income as of the date of the termination, and is being reclassified into earnings in the same period
during which the hedged transaction was forecasted to occur. We paid a fixed rate of 6.76% and received a
floating rate equal to three month LIBOR

As of December 31, 2004, one of our majority-owned subsidiaries had two interest rate swaps denominated
in Euros. The total notional amount of these two interest rate swaps is 27.5 million Euros ($37.2 million based on
the end of period currency exchange rate) and the swaps mature on June 30, 2005. We pay an average fixed rate
of 4.35% and receive six month EURIBOR. The effective floating rate for these swaps as of December 31, 2004
was 1.45%. This same majority ow_néd subsidiary also had two interest 1ate caps, one that was effective as of
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December 31, 2004 and another that becomes effective at a future date. The notional amount of the interest rate
cap currently outstanding is 17.5 million Euros ($23.7 million), the strike price is 3.5% and the cap matures on
June 30, 2005. The other interest rate cap is a forward starting cap that takes effect on June 30, 2005 upon the
expiration of the currently outstanding interest rate swaps and caps. The notional amount of the cap begins at
45.0 million Euros ($60.9 million) and reduces to 38.0 million Euros ($51.4 million) on December 30, 2005. The
strike price is 3.3625% and the cap matures on December 29, 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income
(“AQCI"), pre-tax losses of $4.5 million ($2.9 million after-tax) to recognize the change in fair value of all
derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. The gains or losses are reclassified into
earnings as the underlying hedged item affects earnings, such as when the forecasted interest payment occurs.
During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, we also recorded charges to earnings of $525,000
($334,000 after-tax), $431,000 (272,000 after-tax), and $169,000 ($107,000 after-tax) respectively, to recognize
the ineffective portion of its cash flow hedging instruments.

4) LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of long-term debt follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
(000s)
Long-term debt:
Notes payable and Mortgages payable (including obligations under capitalized
leases of $14,613 in 2004 and $13,943 in 2003) and term loans with varying
maturities through 2009; weighted average interest at 6.0% in 2004 and 6.2%
in 2003 (see Note 7 regarding capitalized leases) ........................... $ 18,560 $ 19,861
Non-recourse term loan (denominated in Euros) ................. ... ... .. ... 75,242 51,876
Revolving creditand demandnotes ........ ... .. ..o i 261,085 204,830
Commercial Paper . ... ...t 0 100,000
Revenue bonds:
Interest at floating rates of 1.98% and 1.122% at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, with varying maturities through 2015 ................... .. ... 10,200 10,200
5.00% Convertible Debentures due 2020, net of the unamortized discount of
$287,031in 2004 and $299,119in2003 ....... ... .. .. i 299961 287,873
6.75% Senior Notes due 2011, net of the unamortized discount of $68 in 2004 and
$82 in 2003, and fair market value adjustment of $4,217 in 2004 and $4,879 in
2003, 204,149 204,797
869,197 879,437
Less-Amounts due within On€ year ... .......... ittt (16,968) (10,871)

$852,229 $868,566

During 2004 the Company was a party to a $400 million unsecured non-amortizing revolving credit
agreement with a scheduled maturity date of December 13, 2006. The agreement included a $50 million sub-limit
for letters of credit of which $2 million was available at December 31, 2004. The interest rate on borrowings was
determined at our option at the prime rate, certificate of deposit rate plus .925% to 1.275%, Euro-dollar plus
.80% to 1.150% or a money market rate. A facility fee ranging from .20% to .35% is required on the total
commitment. The applicable margins over the certificate of deposit, the Euro-dollar rates and the facility fee are
based upon the leverage ratio. At December 31, 2004, the applicable margins over the certificate of deposit and
the Euro-dollar rate were 1.125% and 1.00% respectively, and the commitment fee was .25%. There are no
compensating balance requirements. At December 31, 2004, we had $91 million of unused borrowing capacity
available under this Credit Agreement.
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Subsequent to year-end, on March 4, 2005, we terminated the $400 million revolving credit agreement
described above and replaced it !with a $500 million unsecured non-amortizing revolving credit agreement, which
expires on March 4, 2010. The éﬁeement includes a $75 million sub-limit for letters of credit. The interest rate on
borrowings is determined at our optlon at the prime rate, LIBOR plus a spread of .32% to .80% or a money market
rate. A facility fee ranging from 08% to .20% is required on the total commitment. The applicable margins over
LIBOR and the facility fee are ba{sed upon our debt ratings by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group and Moody’s
Investor Services, Inc. At December 31, 2004, the applicable margins over the LIBOR rate would have been .50%
and the commitment fee would hav‘e been .125%. There are no compensating balance requirements.

During 2003, our majority-bvyned subsidiary in France entered into a senior credit agreement denominated
"in Euros, which provides for a td;tall commitment of 90 million Euros. The loan, which is non-recourse to us,
matures on December 4, 2009. The committed amount available under this credit agreement amortizes to zero
over the life of the agreement and decreased by 5 million Euros to 85 million Euros on December 31, 2004.
Interest on the loan is at our optlon and can be based on the one, two, three and six month EURIBOR plus a
spread of 2.00% to 2.50%. The spr[ead in effect at December 31, 2004 was 2.25%. As of December 31, 2004, the
interest rate was 4.48% (1nclud1ng ]the spread of 2.25%) and the effective interest rate including the effects of the
designated interest rate swaps and the spread of 2.25% was 4.42%. As of December 31, 2004, there were 55.6
million Euros ($75.2 million) of debt outstanding, and 29.4 million Euros ($39.8 million) of unused borrowing
capacity, pursuant to the terms of thlS agreement.

During 2004, the $100 nullgon commercial paper credit facility, which was fully collateralized by a portion
of our acute care patient account$ receivable, expired and we elected not to renew the program.

K
During 2001, we issued $200 million of Senior Notes which have a 6.75% coupon rate and which mature on

November 15, 2011. (“Notes”). Th:e ihterest on the Notes is paid semiannually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 of each year. The notes can be redeemed in whole at any time and in part from time to time.

We issued discounted Conv;’ertible Debentures in 2000, which are due in 2020 (“Debentures”). The
aggregate issue price of the Debdnthres was $250 million or $587 million aggregate principal amount at maturity.
The Debentures were issued at a price of $425.90 per $1,000 principal amount of Debenture. The Debentures’
yield to maturity is 5% per annur, |426% of which is cash interest. The interest on the bonds is paid
semiannually in arrears on June 23 and December 23 of each year. The Debentures are convertible at the option
of the holders into 11.2048 shares of the our common stock per $1,000 of Debentures, however, we have the
right to redeem the Debenture any time on or after June 23, 2006 at a price equal to the issue price of the

Debentures plus accrued original ;isgue discount and accrued cash interest to the date of redemption.

The average amounts outstaﬁding during 2004, 2003 and 2002 under the revolving credit and demand notes
and commercial paper program w;er\‘e $272.1 million, $116.5 million and $140.3 million respectively, with
corresponding effective interest rates of 2.6%, 3.3% and 5.1% including commitment and facility fees. The
maximum amounts outstanding a:t zfny month-end were $370 million in 2004, $304.8 million in 2003 and $170
million in 2002. |

The effective interest rate on our revolving credit, demand notes and commercial paper program, including
the respective interest expense and mcome incurred on designated interest rate swaps which are now expired, was
4.1%, 6.6% and 6.3% during 2004 2003 and 2002, respectively. Additional interest expense recorded as a result
of our U.S. dollar denominated hedgmg activity was $4.1million in 2004, $4.6 million in 2003 and $4.2 million

in 2002. There are no longer any domestlc interest rate swaps outstanding.

Covenants related to Iong-ter;m debt require specified leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. We are in
compliance with all required covenants as of December 31, 2004.

The fair value of our long-telém debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $932 million and
$1 billion respectively. ’

t
\
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Aggregate maturities follow:

(000s)
20005 L $ 16968
2000 . e 286,150
2007 e e 21,887
2008 e 20,889
2000 L e e 6,501
Later . 803,831
Total L $1,156,226
Less: Discount on Convertible Debentures .. ........................... (287,031)
Net Total ..o e $ 869,195

Included in the aggfegate maturities shown above, are maturities related to the Euro denominated debt
($75.2 million in the aggregate) which mature as follows: $10.9 million in 2005; $16.7 million in 2006; $20.4
million in 2007; $20.8 million in 2008 and $6.4 million in 2009.

5) COMMON STOCK

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we announced the initiation of quarterly cash dividends, commencing with
the fourth quarter of 2003. Cash dividends of $.32 per share ($18.6 million in the aggregate) were declared and paid
during 2004, Cash dividends of $.08 per share ($4.6 million in the aggregate) were declared and paid during 2003.

During 1998, 1999 and 2004, our Board of Directors approved stock purchase programs authorizing us to
purchase up to fourteen million shares of our outstanding Class B Common Stock on the open market at
prevailing market prices or in negotiated transactions off the market. Pursuant to the terms of these programs, we
purchased 1,713,787 shares at an average purchase price of $44.71 per share ($76.6 million in the aggregate)
during 2002, 1,360,321 shares at an average purchase price of $39.93 ($54.3 million in the aggregate) during
2003 and 559,481 shares at an average purchase price of $42.07 ($23.5 million in the aggregate) during 2004.
Since inception of the stock purchase program in 1998 through December 31, 2004, we have purchased a total of
11,437,404 shares at an average purchase price of $25.76 per share ($294.6 million in the aggregate).

At December 31, 2004, 15,227,849 shares of Class B Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon
conversion of shares of Class A, C and D Common Stock outstanding, for issuance upon exercise of options to
purchase Class B Common Stock, for issuance upon conversion of our discounted Convertible Debentures and
for issuance of stock under other incentive plans. Class A, C and D Common Stock are convertible on a share for
share basis into Class B Common Stock.

As discussed in Note 1, we account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method in APB
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following range of assumptions used for the
sixteen option grants that occurred in 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Volatility . ... .. 46%-48%  50%-53%  53%-57%
Interestrate ..........oviiniriinirian. 3%-4% 2%-3% 3%-4%
Expected life (years) ...............oiiiiinn 3.8 3.8 3.7
Forfeiturerate . ............. ... ..ccviionin. 6% 5% 4%
Dividendyield ........ .. ... ... .. ... ... 7% — —

Stock options to purchase Class B Common Stock have been granted to our officers, key employees and
directors under various plans.
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Information with respect to fhe se options is summarized as follows:
i
. Average
Number Option Range
Outstanding Options of Shares Price (High-Low)
Balance, January 1, 2002 ................... 3’,817,969 $31.14  $42.65-$11.85
Granted ........ ! .................... 320,500 $41.76  $51.40-$39.96
Exercised ...... R (470,385) $24.34 $42.41-$11.85
Cancelled ......0.0............ ... .... (74,000) $35.02  $43.50- $20.22
Balance, January 1, 2003 e 3,594,084  $32.890 $51.40-$11.85
Granted ........ T 461,900  $40.72  $50.70 - $38.50
Exercised ...... ‘ ................... (685,749) $25.11  $43.50-$11.85
Cancelled ....... ‘ e e (188,250) $36.86  $44.00-$11.85
Balance, January 1, 2004 e 3,181,985  $3547 $51.40-9%11.85
Granted ........0.01.0......... ... 51,200 $45.72  $54.88 - $43.08
Exercised ... .. A (839,087) $1820  $43.63- $11.85
Cancelled ..... .. 1 ................... (77,813) $41.18  $50.70 - $22.28
Balance, December 31, {2604 ................ 2,316,285  $41.66  $54.88 - $22.28
Outstanding options at Deceﬁnber 31, 2004:
Range Contractual
Number of Shares ! | Average Option Price (High-Low) Life
59,360 $29.70 $34.00-$22.28 0.4
2,131,025 : $41.62 $44.00-$37.80 1.5
125,900 $49.75 $54.88-$45.14 3.7
2,316,285 ;
-
All stock options were grantéd with an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of the grant.

Options are exercisable ratably ov;er a four-year period beginning one year after the date of the grant. The options
expire five years after the date of t:he] grant. The outstanding stock opticns at December 31, 2004 have an average
remaining contractual life of 1.63 years. At December 31, 2004, options for 1,807,577 shares were available for
grant. At December 31, 2004, optijons for 1,432,110 shares of Class B Common Stock with an aggregate
purchase price of $59.7 million (a;ye]rage of $41.66 per share) were exercisable.

During the third quarter of ZQO?, we restructured certain elements of our long-term incentive compensation
plans in response to changes in regulations relating to such plans. Prior to the third quarter of 2002, we loaned
employees funds (“Loan Program ) ‘to pay the income tax liabilities incurred upon the exercise of their stock
options. Advances pursuant to the: L?an Program were secured by full recourse promissory notes that were

forgiven after three years, if the bqrqower remained employed by us. If the forgiveness criteria were not met, the

employee was required to repay the loan at the time of separation.

During the third quarter of 2002 this Loan Program was terminated. As a replacement long-term incentive
plan, the Compensation Comm1ttee of the Board of Directors approved the issuance of 217,510 shares (net of
cancellations) of restricted stock at %51 15 per share ($11.1 million in the aggregate) to various officers and
employees pursuant to the Company § 2001 Employees’ Restricted Stock Purchase Plan (“Restricted Stock”).
The number of shares and the current value of the Restricted Stock issued to each employee were based on the
estimated benefits lost by that empléyee as a result of the termination of the Loan Program. The Restricted Stock
is scheduled to vest ratably on the th‘lrd fourth and fifth anniversary dates of the award. Included in the

Restricted Stock granted was 319 490 restricted shares issued to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) which

were also scheduled to vest ratablyi o‘n the third, fourth and fifth anniversary dates of the award if we achieved a
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14% cumulative increase in our diluted earnings per share during the two-year period ended December 31, 2004,
as compared to December 31, 2002. Since the earnings contingency threshold was not achieved, these shares of
restricted stock have been cancelled and the previously recorded compensation expense related to this restricted
stock grant through December 31, 2003, amounting to $10.6 million ($6.7 million after-tax), was reversed during
2004.

In connection with the Loan Program, it was our policy to charge compensation expense for the loan
forgiveness over the employees’ estimated service period or approximately six years on average. As of
December 31, 2004, we had approximately $1.7 million of loans outstanding in connection with the Loan
Program (approximately $688,000 of which was loaned to officers), all of which was charged to compensation
expense through that date. In addition, as of July 1, 2002, we had recorded an additional accrual of approximately
$16.0 million related to the estimated benefits earned under the Loan Program for which loans had not yet been
extended. As a result of the termination of the Loan Program, this accrued liability was adjusted by reducing
compensation expense by $16.0 million during 2002 (the majority of which was recorded during the third quarter
of 2002) since we do not have any future obligations related to the benefits that employees might have been
entitled to if the Loan Program had continued.

Since the Restricted Stock awards were primarily intended to replace the benefits that had been earned
under the Loan Program, a portion of the awards was attributable to services rendered by employees in prior
periods. Accordingly, in connection with the issuance of the Restricted Stock awards during 2002, during the
third quarter of 2002 we recorded approximately $14.1 million of compensation expense which represented the
prior service portion of the expense related to the Restricted Stock awards. During the fourth quarter of 2002, an
additional $1.2 million of compensation expense was recorded related to the Restricted Stock awards. The
remaining expense associated with the Restricted Stock awards (estimated at $1.7 million, net of cancellations, as
of December 31, 2004) will be recorded over the vesting periods of the awards (through the third quarter of
2007), assuming the recipients remain employed by us.

In addition to the stock option plan we have the following stock incentive and purchase plans: (i) a Stock
Ownership Plan whereby eligible employees (officers of the Company are no longer eligible) may purchase
shares of Class B Common Stock directly from the Company at current market value and the Company will loan
each eligible employee 90% of the purchase price for the shares, subject to certain limitations, (loans are partially
recourse to the employees), and; (i) a 2001 Restricted Stock Purchase Plan which allows eligible participants to
purchase shares of Class B Common Stock at par value, subject to certain restrictions (no shares issued during
2004 and 6,081 shares issued during 2003). The reserve for this plan was increased by 600,000 shares during
2004. We have reserved 2.1 million shares of Class B Common Stock for issuance under these various plans
(excluding terminated plans) and have issued 1.3 million shares pursuant to the terms of these plans (excluding
terminated plans) as of December 31, 2004, none of which became fully vested during 2004 or 2003 and 38,432
of which became fully vested during 2002.

Subject to shareholder approval, a 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan has been established, which will
allow eligible employees to purchase shares of Class B Common Stock at a ten percent discount. The plan has 1
million shares of Class B Common Stock reserved for issuance.

In connection with the long-term incentive plans described above, we recorded net compensation expense of
$1.2 million in 2004, (excluding the $10.6 million pre-tax reduction to compensation expense resulting from the
reversal of expense associated with the cancellation of a restricted stock grant, as discussed above), $4.8 million
in 2003 and $3.6 million in 2002.
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6) INCOME TAXES

o
|
!

Components of income tax Ee)ipense/(benefit) from continuing operations are as follows:

Currently payable
Federal
Foreign
State

Deferred i
Federal and foreign
State )

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(000s)

....................... ©$ 42,702  $ 79,835 $ 90,336
....................... 19,396 2,838 2,688
....................... 4,843 7,055 8,026

66,941 89,728 101,050
....................... 32,131 22,501 (3,440)
....................... 2,065 1,988 (304)

34,196 24,489 (3,744)
....................... $101,137 $114,217 $ 97,306

We account for income taxeis under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” (SFAS 109). Under SFAS 109, deferred taxes are required to be classified based

on the financial statement classiﬁjca‘t
differences. Deferred taxes resultifr

ion of the related assets and liabilities which give rise to temporary

om temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts

and the tax bases of assets and liaibilities. The components of deferred taxes are as follows:

|

i
. |
Deferred income tax asse

j
Less: Valuation Allowance
Net deferred income ta){ assets

Deferred income tax liabil
Doubtful accounts ;an‘
Repatriation of foréi )

withholding taxezs

Depreciable and amortizable assets

Net deferred income tax§ liability

g
A reconciliation between the ‘ife

i
i
i

Federal statutory rate . ..

December 31,
2004 2003
(000s)

ts:
Self-insurance reserves
Compensation acc;ru?ls
Other deferred tax iassets

- $ 67,628
22,469

3,844
93,941

93,941

$62,210
23,523
7,044

$ 92,777

92,777

$

ities:

d other reserves (26,531) (19,069)

gn earnings, including foreign

(90,278)
$(16,570)

(10,400)
(117,223)

$ (60,213)

deral statutory rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 2002

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit

Otheritems .......... L

Effective tax rate

14 20 1.9
09 03 (02

37.3% 31.3% 36.1%




The net deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
(000s)
Current deferred taxes
ASSETS . $ 34,691 $ 48,544
Liabilities .. ... (44,692)  (23,273)
Net deferred taxes-current . ....................... (10,001) 25,271
Noncurrent deferred taxes
ASSELS L i e 67,011 48,437
Liabilities .. ... ... .. (117,223)  (90,278)
Net deferred taxes-noncurrent . .................... (50,212 (41,841
Total deferred taxes ... ....... oot $ (60,213) $(16,570)

The assets and liabilities classified as current relate primarily to the allowance for uncollectible patient
accounts and the current portion of the temporary differences related to self-insurance reserves. Under SFAS 109,
a valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Realization is dependent on generating sufficient future taxable income. Although realization is
not assured, we believe it is more likely than not that all the deferred tax assets will be realized. Accordingly, we
have not provided a valuation allowance. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however,
could be reduced if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

The American Jobs Creation Act (AJCA) was signed into law on October 22, 2004. AJCA provides for a
deduction of 85% of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated in accordance with the requirements of AJCA.
The Company may elect to apply this provision to qualifying repatriations during the year ending December 31,
2005. The Company is in the process of evaluating the amount of foreign earnings that could be repatriated along
with the related amount of deferred tax liability associated with this repatriation arising from the American Jobs
Creation Act. The range of potential repatriation that the Company is considering is between $0 and $25 million
with the resultant tax impact to be between $0 and a $7.5 million benefit. Although the Company expects to
complete its repatriation review during 2003, if a decision is made to repatriate foreign earnings subsequent to
the date of the financial statements but prior to their issuance, the effect of such a decision would be consistent
with the resultant tax impact mentioned above.

7) LEASE COMMITMENTS

Certain of our hospital and medical office facilities and equipment are held under operating or capital leases
which expire through 2009 (See Note 9). Certain of these leases also contain provisions allowing us to purchase
the leased assets during the term or at the expiration of the lease at fair market value.

A sdmmary of property under capital lease follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2004 2003
(000s)
Land, buildings and equipment .................. ..., $ 51,075  $ 44,540
Less: accumulated amortization ..................... . 0., (28,409) (25,695)

$ 22,666 % 18,845
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Future minimum rental payments under lease commitments with a term of more than one year as of
December 31, 2004, are as follos}vs‘:

Capital Operating
XE’I Leases Leases
(000s)
2005 L e $ 5879  $38,003
2006 ... S G 6,286 30,149
2007 ...l e 1,324 10,121
2008 ...l S U 277 6,530
2009 ... e 254 3,314
Later Years ........ L PP 5,445 8,335
l
Total MinIMumM rental . . ... ..ot ve vt $19,465  $96,452
Less: Amount represeﬁting interest ... i 4,851
Present value of rr?lil}imum rental commitments ............. 14,614
Less: Current portion of capital lease obligations ................ 5,181
Long-term portidri o‘f capital lease obligations .............. $ 9,433

|-

‘ Capital lease obligations of $41 .7 million in 2004, $100,000 in 2003 and $9.5 mllhon in 2002 were incurred
when we entered into capital leases for new equipment or assumed capital lease obligations upon the acquisition
of facilities.

8) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
|

Due to unfavorable pricing and availability trends in the professional and general liability insurance
markets, our subsidiaries have asisumed a greater portion of the hospital professional and general liability risk as
the cost of commercial professional and general liability insurance coverage has risen significantly. As a result,
effective January 1, 2002, most oif our subsidiaries were self-insured for malpractice exposure up to $25 million
per occurrence. We purchased umb]rella excess policies for our subsidiaries through several commercial
insurance carriers for coverage in excess of $25 million per occurrence with a $75 million aggregate limitation.
Given these insurance market condmons there can be no assurance that a continuation of these unfavorable
trends, or a sharp increase in clau:ns1 asserted against us, will not have 2 material adverse effect on our future
results of operations. ;

Our estimated liability for professional and general liability claims is based on a number of factors
including, among other things, the r‘mmber of asserted claims and reported incidents, estimates of losses for these
claims based on recent and hlstoncz]il settlement amounts, estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on
historical experience, and esumates of amounts recoverable under our commercial insurance policies. While we
continuously monitor these factors our ultimate liability for professional and general liability claims could

change materially from our current estimates due to inherent uncertainties involved in making this estimate.
i

For the period from January :1 1998 through December 31, 2001, most of our subsidiaries were covered
under commercial insurance policfies with PHICO, a Pennsylvania based insurance company that was placed into
liquidation during the first quarter of 2002. As a result of PHICO’s liquidation, we recorded a $40 million pre-tax
charge during 2001 to reserve for| PHICO claims that could become our liability, however, we are entitled to
receive reimbursement from stategnsurance guaranty funds, other commercial insurers and/or PHICO’s estate for
a portion of certain claims ultimatﬁe]‘y paid by us.

As of December 31, 2004, thie fotal accrual for our professional and general liability claims was $204.1
million ($172.5 million net of expected recoveries), of which $28.0 million is included in other current liabilities.
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As of December 31, 2003, the total accrual for our professional and general liability claims, was $190.8 million
($147.7 million net of expected recoveries), of which $35.0 million is included in other current liabilities.
Included in other assets was $31.6 million as of December 31, 2004 and $43.0 million as of December 31, 2003,
related to estimated expected recoveries from various state guaranty funds, insurance companies and other
sources in connection with PHICO related professional and general liability claims payments.

As of December 31, 2004, we had outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds totaling $58 million
consisting of: (i) $45 million related to our self-insurance programs; (ii) $7 million consisting primarily of
collateral for outstanding bonds of an unaffiliated third party and public utility, and; (iii) $6 million of debt
guarantees related to entities in which we own a minority interest.

We have a long-term contract with a third party that expires in 2012, to provide certain data processing
services for our acute care and behavioral health facilities.

In December 2003, one of our subsidiaries, McAllen Hospitals, L.P., was named as a defendant in a case
filed in the District Court of Hidalgo County, Texas, 275t Judicial District, under the caption Rio OB-Gyn
Partners Ltd. v. McAllen Hospitals, L.P., Cause No. C-3128-03-E. The plaintiff is a physician group which
claims that McAllen and its agents committed fraud or negligent misrepresentation in promising to build an OB-
Gyn hospital and inducing the plaintiff to cancel an agreement with another party to build a competing OB-Gyn
hospital.

On or about March 22 through March 26, 2004 two purported class action Complaints were filed against us
and certain of our officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania alleging that defendants violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder by disclosing materially false and misleading information or failing to disclose material information
necessary to make other disclosure not misleading or to correct prior disclosure with respect to our financial
condition and operations. A claim is asserted against the individual defendants under section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act alleging that because they controlled the Company, they should be held liable for damages caused
by the Company’s violation of section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 thereunder. Plaintiffs seek, on behalf of a purported
class of purchasers of our common stock during a class period from July 21, 2003 through February 27, 2004,
unspecified money damages, restitution, attorneys’ fees and reimbursement of expenses.

Pursuant to an Order of the Court, these two cases were consolidated into one action captioned: /n re
Universal Health Services, Inc. Securities Litigation, Case No. CV-04-01233-JP. Subsequently, the plaintiffs
filed an Amended Consolidated Class Action Complaint. The defendants have moved to dismiss that complaint.
The motion to dismiss has been fully briefed and oral argument was held on March 9, 2005.

On July 6, 2004, we were served with a complaint filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania captioned “Eastside Investors LLP, derivatively and on behalf of nominal defendant,
Universal Health Services, Inc., v. Alan B. Miller, Robert Hotz, Anthony Pantaleoni and Steve G. Filton.”
Plaintiff subsequently filed an amended complaint which dropped Messrs Hotz and Pantaleoni as defendants.
Plaintiff purports to assert claims derivatively on behalf of the Company against our officers and directors
seeking to recover on behalf of the Company unspecified damages to redress alleged breaches of fiduciary duty,
abuses of control and gross mismanagement by the individual defendants. The complaint also seeks equitable
relief and attorneys’ fees. We are named as a nominal defendant in that action. The Court has granted the parties’
joint motion in the derivative action asking that the Defendants’ time to respond to the complaint be extended
until after the decision on the motion to dismiss the class action complaint. That motion is pending.

On August 5, 2004, we were named, together with our subsidiary Valley Hospital Medical Center, Inc., as
defendants in a lawsuit filed in Clark County, Nevada, under the caption Deborah Louise Poblocki v. Universal
Health Services, Inc., et al., No. 04-A-489927-C. The plaintiff alleges that we overcharged her and other
similarly situated patients who lacked health insurance. The complaint seeks class action treatment.
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The complaint, filed by plamuff individually and on behalf of other unnamed class members, alleges that
Valley Hospital Medical Center: ctllarged her “unconscionable rates” because it charged her, an uninsured
outpatient, more than it charged;_msured patients and more than the cost of the services provided. She claims that
this alleged conduct violates staie civil RICO laws as well as other state statutory and common law. We filed a
notice of removal to federal court and plaintiff filed a motion to remand back to state court. The court has not yet
ruled on plaintiff’s motion. ;

In October, 2004 one of our subs1d1ar1es Aiken Regional Medical Centers, Inc., received a complaint filed
in state court in South Carolina (Case No. 04-CP-02-1275). The complaint, filed by the plaintiff individually and
on behalf of other unnamed, putative class members, alleges that Aiken breached its contract with the plaintiff
(and other putative plaintiffs), ot in the alternative Aiken was unjustly enriched, by virtue of billing and

collecting full hospital charges ‘f"ro}m the plaintiff and other putative class members.

We believe that the claims assened against us in the proceedings described above are without merit and we
deny all allegations of violations of law and any liability to the above named plaintiffs. The individual defendants
also believe that the claims asserted against them in these proceedings are without merit. There can be no
assurance, however, as to the outcome or timing of the resolution of these proceedings. We therefore are unable
to estimate the amount or potential/range of any loss that may arise out of these proceedings. The range of
possible resolutions could include determinations and judgments against us or settlements that could require
substantial payments by us that could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of

operations and cash flows. ;

In addition, various suits am?i claims arising against us in the ordinary course of business are pending. In the
opinion of management, the outcome of such claims and litigation will not materially affect our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

We have maintained for sevéral years the Universal Health Services, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan {the “Plan’)
which is designed to encourage stock ownership among our employees. While the Plan has, since its adoption,
exclusively used shares purchased on the open market through our third party administrator, the offering of
shares under the Plan may have fallted to comply with the registration requirements of federal securities laws. We
filed a registration statement on SEC Form S-8 registering 1,087,726 of our Class B Common Stock on October
25, 2004, covering the remaining; 'shares in the Plan. As a result, certain participants who purchased shares under
the Plan prior to registration may be entitled to rescission rights or other remedies under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. We cannot pre‘,dict the extent to which any such rescission rights may be exercised or the
impact of any possible regulatoryiaction pertaining to such sales under the Plan. We do not believe, however, that
any consequences arising from such sales under the Plan will have a material adverse effect on our financial
position or results of operations. ;

|

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations which include, among other things,
matters such as government healtﬁcare participation requirements, various licensure and accreditations,
reimbursement for patient services and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Government action has
increased with respect to mvestlgaucns and/or allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse and
false claims statutes and/or regulatldns by healthcare providers. Providers that are found to have violated these
laws and regulations may be excluded from participating in government healthcare programs, subjected to fines
or penalties or required to repay arinéunts received from government for previously billed patient services. While
management believes its policies, procedures and practices comply with governmental regulations, no assurance

can be given that we will not be subjected to governmental inquiries or actions.

9) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTEONS

At December 31, 2004, we hefld approximately 6.7% of the outstanding shares of Universal Health Realty
Income Trust (the “Trust”). We sefve as Advisor to the Trust under an annually renewable advisory agreement.
Pursuant to the terms of this advisory .agreement, we conduct the Trust’s day-to-day affairs, provide
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administrative services and presents investment opportunities. In addition, certain of our officers and directors
are also officers and/or directors of the Trust. Management believes that it has the ability to exercise significant
influence over the Trust, therefore we account for our investment in the Trust using the equity method of
accounting. Our pre-tax share of income from the Trust was $1.6 million in 2004, $1.6 million during 2003 and
$1.4 million during 2002, and is included in net revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. The carrying value of this investment was $9.5 million and $9.4 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, and is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The market value
of this investment was $25.2 million at December 31, 2004 and $23.4 million at December 31, 2003.

As of December 31, 2004, we leased five hospital facilities from the Trust with terms expiring in 2006
through 2009. These leases contain up to five S-year renewal options. In addition, certain of our subsidiaries are
tenants in several medical office buildings owned by limited liability companies in which the Trust holds non-
controlling ownership interest.

On December 31, 2004, we completed the purchase of the real estate assets of the Virtue Street Pavilion,
located in Chalmette, Louisiana, from the Trust. The purchase was completed pursuant to the exercise of an
option granted to us, under the previous lease for the facility. The purchase price for the facility was $7.3 million
and was determined, in accordance with the terms of the lease, based upon independent appraisals obtained by
both us and the Trust. ‘

During the third quarter of 2004, we exercised the five-year renewal option on a behavioral health hospital
leased from the Trust which was scheduled to expire in December, 2004. The lease was renewed at the same
lease terms. During 2002, we exercised the five-year renewal option on an acute care hospital leased from the
Trust which was scheduled to expire in March, 2003. The renewal rate on this facility was based upon the five-
year Treasury rate on March 29, 2003 plus a spread.

During 2003, we sold four medical office buildings located in Las Vegas, Nevada, for combined cash
proceeds of $12.8 million, to limited liability companies, in which the Trust holds non-controlling majority
ownership interests. The sale of these medical office buildings resulted in a pre-minority interest and pre-tax gain
of $3.1 million ($1.4 million after minority interest expense and after-tax) which is included in our 2003 results
of operations. Tenants of these buildings include certain of our subsidiaries.

Future minimum lease payments to the Trust are included in Note 7. Total rent expense under these
operating leases was $17.4 million in 2004, $17.4 million in 2003 and $17.2 million in 2002. As of December 31,
2004, the aggregate fair market value of our facilities leased from the Trust is not known, however, the aggregate
original purchase price paid by the Trust for these properties was $101.3 million (excluding the Virtue Street
Pavilion). Pursuant to the terms of the leases with the Trust, we have the option to purchase the respective leased
facilities at the end of the lease terms or any renewal terms at the appraised market value. In addition, we have
rights of first refusal to: (1) purchase the respective leased facilities during and for 180 days after the lease terms
at the same price, terms and conditions of any third-party offer, or; (ii) renew the lease on the respective leased
facility at the end of, and for 180 days after, the lease term at the same terms and conditions pursuant to any
third-party offer. The terms of the leases also provide that in the event we discontinue operations at the leased
facility for more than one year, or elect to terminate a lease prior to the expiration of its term for prudent business
reasons, we are obligated to offer a substitution property. If the Trust does not accept the substitution property
offered, we are obligated to purchase the leased facility back from the Trust at a price equal to the greater of its
then fair market value or the original purchase price paid by the Trust.

We received an advisory fee from the Trust of $1.5 million in 2004, $1.5 million in 2003 and $1.4 million in
2002 for investment and administrative services provided under a contractual agreement which is included in net
revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

In connection with a long-term incentive compensation plan that was terminated during the third quarter of
2002, we had $1.7 million as of December 31, 2004 and $4.6 million as of December 31, 2003, of gross loans
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outstanding to various employee§ of which $1.7 million as of December 31, 2004 and $3.6 million as of
December 31, 2003 were chargeq to compensation expense through that date. Included in the amounts

outstanding were gross loans to our
of December 31, 2003 (see Note 5).
!

officers amounting to $688,000 as of December 31, 2004 and $2.8 million as

Our Chairman and Chief Exti:c utive Officer is member of the Board of Directors of Broadlane, Inc. In
addition, the Company and certain members of executive management own approximately 6% of the outstanding
shares of Broadlane, Inc. as of December 31, 2004. Broadlane, Inc. provides contracting and other supply chain

|

services to us and various other healthcare organizations.
i

A member of our Board of ljichtors and member of the Executive Committee is Of Counsel to the law firm
used by us as our principal outside counsel. This Board member is also the trustee of certain trusts for the benefit
of the Chief Executive Officer and his family. This law firm also provides personal legal services to our Chief

Executive Officer. o
|

We invested $3.3 million for a
Iaboratory information system and ¢
2004, we also committed to pay this

10) PENSION PLAN

We maintain contributory anfd
to the contributory plan amounted t
respectively. The non-contributory
subsidiaries. The benefits are baséd

25% ownership interest in an information technology company that provides
rder management technology to many of our acute care hospitals. During
company a license fee totaling $25.3 million over a five-year period.

noﬁ-contm’butory retirement plans for eligible employees. Our contributions
$13.3 million, $11.6 million and $7.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
vlan is a defined benefit pension plan which covers employees of one of our
on years of service and the employee’s highest compensation for any five

years of employment. Our funding policy is to contribute annually at least the minimum amount that should be

funded in accordance with the provi

|
§
i
i
i
i
1

i
|
'
i
i

\sions of ERISA.
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The following table shows the reconciliation of the defined benefit pension plan as of December 31, 2004

and 2003:

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ................. .. ... ...
SEIVICE COSt ..ttt e
Interest COSt ..ot
Benefits paid ....... ... .
Actuarial loss ... .. L

Benefit obligation atend of year .......... ... . ... ...,

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginningof year .........................
Actual return on plan assets . ... ... e
Benefits paid ... i
Administrative eXPensSes . . ...ttt e

Fair value of plan assetsatendof year ................. .. ..... ... ..

Reconciliation of funded status

Fundedstatusof theplan ......... .. .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... . ....
Unrecognized actuarial 1oss .. ... ...

Net amount recognized ........... ...

Total amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

Accrued benefit liability ...... ... ..
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome ........... ... ... ... .. ...

Net amount recogmized ... ..ottt e

Accumulated other comprehensive (income)/loss attributable to change in

additional minimum liability recognition ............. .. .. ... ...

Additional year end information for Pension Plan

Projected benefitobligation . ........... ... . Lo
Accumulated benefit obligation ... ....... ... L oo
Fairvalue of planassets ... ...

Components of net periodic cost (benefit)
SEIVICE COSL . oLttt
Interest oSt . .. oo
Expected returnon planassets . ........ ... ... i,
Recognized actuarial 10Ss . ... .. i i

Net periodic COSt .. ..ot e

Measurement Dates

Benefit obligations . ........ ... . .
Fair value of planassets . ... ... ... ... . ...

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31

DiIscountrate ... .ot
Expected long-term rate of return on planassets . ......................
Rate of compensationincrease .. ......... o o i i

Weighted-average assumptions for net periodic benefit cost calculations

DISCOURtIate . ... ...
Expected long-term rate atreturn on planassets .......................
Rate of compensationinerease .. ...

2004 2003
(000s)
...... $ 70,030  $ 61,627
...... 1,041 1,072
...... 4,302 4,092
...... 4,996)  (2,163)
...... 5,573 5402
...... $ 75950 $ 70,030
...... $ 50,540  $ 42918
...... 4,293 10,114
...... @4,996)  (2,163)
...... (555) (329)
...... $49,282  $ 50,540
...... $(26,668)  $(19,490)
...... 19,469 14,753
...... (7,199)  (4,737)
...... $(21,786)  $(14,622)
...... 14,587 9,885
...... $ (7,199) $ (4,737)
...... $ (4,702) $ (2,361)
...... $75950  $ 70,030
...... 71,068 65,162
...... 49,282 50,540
2004 2003 2002
(060s)

$1,041 $1071 $ 986
4,302 4,092 3,856

(3,948)  (3,353) (4,459)

1,068 1,506

$2463 $3316 $ 383
2004 2003
.. 1273172004 12/31/2003
.. 12/31/2004  12/31/2003
2004 2003
. 5.75% 6.25%
. 8.00% 8.00%
.. 4.00% 4.00%
.. 6.25% 6.75%
.. 8.00% 8.00%
.. 4.00% 4.00%



The accumulated benefit obhganon was $71,068 and $65,162 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The accumulated beneﬁt obligations of the plan exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003. In 12004 and 2003, the accrued pension cost is included in non-current liabilities in
the accompanying consolidated b@l ance sheets.

|
l

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption, we considered the historical
returns and the future expectatlons for returns for each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the
pension portfolio. g

Information with respect to éstimated future benefit payments and plan assets follows:

Estimated Future Benefit Pa yments (000s)

2005 ... O $ 3,138
2006 ... T 3,371
2007 ... PO 3,608
2008 ...l G 3,845
2009 ... A 4,080
2010-2014 .......... P 24,427
Plan Assets
2004 2003
Asset Category i
Equity securities .. ... S O 74% 74%
Fixed income SeCUrities] .|. . .. ...ttt e 26% 26%
Total .......... I 100% 100%

Investment Policy, Guidelines and Objectives have been established for the defined benefit pension plan.
The investment policy is in keepinig with the fiduciary requirements under existing federal laws and managed in
accordance with the Prudent Inves:to‘r Rule. Total portfolio risk is regularly evaluated and compared to that of the
plan’s policy target allocation and;judged on a relative basis over a market cycle. The following asset allocation

policy and ranges have been established in accordance with the overall risk and return objectives of the portfolio:

i Policy As of 12/31/04 Permitted Range

Total EQUILY ...l 0% 74% 50-80%
Total Fixed Income . . .....c.p oo . 30% 26% 20-50%

. In accordance with the investiment policy, the portfolio will invest in high quality, large and small
capitalization companies traded on national exchanges, and investment grade securities. The investment
managers will not write or buy opt?io‘ns for speculative purposes; securities may not be margined or sold short.
The manager may employ futures :or options for the purpose of hedging exposure, will not purchase unregistered

sectors, private placements, partne;rships or commodities.
1

11) SEGMENT REPORTING |

Our reportable operating segrﬁents consist of acute care hospital services (includes hospitals located in the
U.S. and excludes hospitals reported jas discontinued operations), behavioral health care services and
international acute care hospital se'rv1ces consisting of fourteen hospitals located in France. The “Other” segment
column below includes centrahzedx services including information services, purchasing, reimbursement,
accounting, taxation, legal, advertlsu‘lg, design and construction, and patient accounting as well as the operating
results for our other operating entil:éies including outpatient surgery and radiation centers. Also included in the
. Other segment column for all periofds presented are the combined assets of $132.9 million, $200.0 million and
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$210.2 million as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to the acute care facilities reflected
as discontinued operations on our Consolidated Statements of Income. The chief operating decision making
group for our acute care hospital services, behavioral health care services and international acute care hospital
services is comprised of the President and Chief Executive Officer, and the lead executives of each operating
segment. The lead executive for each operating segment also manages the profitability of each respective
segment’s various facilities. The operating segments are managed separately because each operating segment
represents a business unit that offers different types of healthcare services or operates in different healthcare
environments. The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary
of significant accounting policies included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004.

Acute Care Behavioral
Hospital Health Total

2004 Services Services International Other Consolidated

- (Dollar amounts in thousands)
Gross inpatient revenues .. ............... $6,732,660 $1,238,131 3217402 $ —  $8,188,193
Gross outpatient revenues . . .............. $2,544891 § 177,360 $ 58,139 § 100,536 $2,880,926
Total NELTEVENUES . . .« .o v e $2,807,719 $ 698,772 $291,396 $ 350,433 $3,938,320
Income/(loss) before income taxes ......... $ 245,155 $ 129,804 $ 15,185 $(119,001) $ 271,143
Total @SSt .. ..\ v $1,961,252 $§ 417,331 $319,807 $ 324,453 $3,022,843
Licensedbeds ......................... 5,645 4,225 1,588 — 11,458
Availablebeds ........... ... o L 4,860 4,145 1,588 — 10,593
Patientdays ............. ... Lt 1,150,882 1,234,152 442,825 — 2,827,859
AAMISSIONS ..o 251,655 94,743 94,536 — 440,934
Average lengthofstay .................. 4.6 13.0 4.7 — 6.4

Acute Care Behavioral
Hospital Health Total

2003 Services Services International Other Consolidated

— (Dollar amounts in thousands)
Gross inpatient revenues .. ............... $5,658,490 $1,091,885 $191,659 §$ — 36,942,034
Gross outpatient revenues .. .............. $1,985,040 $ 156,115 $ 24,502 $ 108,716 $2,274,373
Total netrevenues ...............cvov.n. $2,499,550 $ 612,404 $228,231 $ 51,321 $3,391,506
Income/(loss) before income taxes ......... $ 294778 $§ 120,520 $ 7,094 $(116,096) $ 306,296
Totalassets ..., $1,608,345 $ 302,694 $234,594 $ 627,097 $2,772,730
Licensedbeds ......................... 4,792 3,894 1,433 — 10,119
Availablebeds . ............... .. ... ..., 4,119 3,762 1.433 — 9,314
Patientdays ..., 1,032,348 1,067,200 409,860 — 2,509,408
Admissions ...... .o 227,932 87,688 82,364 — 397,984
Average lengthofstay .................. 4.5 12.2 5.0 — 6.3

Acute Care Behavioral
Hospital Health Total

2002 Services Services International Other Consolidated

- (Dollar amounts in thousands)
Gross inpatient revenues .. ............... $4.8903198 § 979,824 $ 82,166 $ —  $5,955,188
Gross outpatient revenues . ............... $1,657,418 $ 149,604 $ 10,230 $ 74,803 $1,892,055
Total NELTEVENUES . . oo oo ee e ean s $2.292417 $ 565,585 $ 97,937 $ 35980 $2,991,919
Income/(loss) before income taxes ......... $ 269962 $ 93593 $ 7,331 $(105,733) $ 265,153
Total @ssets ... ......viiiiiennnenen. $1,237.368 § 259,010 $150,276 $ 682,483 $2,329,137
Licensedbeds ............ ... .. ... .. 4,801 3,752 1,083 —_ 9,636
Availablebeds ... ..... ... .. ... ... 3,966 3,608 1,083 — 8,657
Patientdays ............. ... .l 1,013,395 1,005,882 319,100 — 2,338,377
AdmISSIONS ...t e 224,286 84,348 63,781 — 372,415
Average lengthofstay .................. 4.5 11.9 5.0 — 6.3
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12) QUARTERLY RESULi‘S (unaudited)

The following tables summarizei: the quarterly financial data for the two years ended December 31, 2004:

i First Second Third Fourth

2004 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

—V_ (000s, except per share amounts)
Netrevenues .............. ........................... $982,576 $982,560 $978,348 $994,836
Income before INCOME taXes . . L.l ouv v, $ 72,395 $ 74731 $ 62,165 $ 61,852
Income from continuing operat1é)ns ........................ $ 45582 $ 47,068 $ 39,237 $ 38,119
NEtinCOMe . ..o b $ 46,183 $ 48280 $ 37,846 $ 37,174
Earnings per share—basic . . . . . ;I ......................... $ 08 $ 084 $ 065 3 0.64
Earnings per share—diluted 1 ......... e $ 074 $ 078 $ 062 $ 061

Net revenues in 2004 include $39.3 million of additional revenues received from Medicaid disproportionate
share hospital (“DSH”) funds in Téxas and South Carolina. Of this amount, $10.5 million was recorded in the
first quarter, $7.1 million in the second quarter, $8.7 million in the third quarter and $13.0 million in the fourth
quarter. These amounts were record‘ed in periods that we met all of the requirements to be entitled to these
reimbursements. Included in our results during the first quarter is $2.8 million of pre-tax ($1.7 million or $.02 per
diluted share, net of taxes) South Carolina DSH revenue attributable to a prior period. Included in our third
quarter results is a $2.3 million pr%e-ltax property write-down ($1.5 million or $.02 per diluted share net of taxes)
resulting from property damage caused by a hurricane. Included in our fourth quarter results is $11.6 million pre-
tax reversal of previously recordeb stock grant amortization expense ($7.3 million or $.11 per diluted share net of
taxes) related to restricted shares granted to our Chief Executive Officer that were contingent on an earnings
threshold which was not achieved:

(000s, except per share amounts)

: First Second Third Fourth
Z_OE ) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Netrevenues ................ S $831,990 $840,149 $832,080 $887,287
Income before income taxes . ... ’. ......................... $ 82751 $ 80,878 $ 70,216 $ 72.451
Income from continuing operauons ........................ $ 52,178 $ 50,649 $ 44005 $ 45247
S L PP $ 52,790 $ 50950 $ 49,061 $ 46,468
Earnings per share—basic ... . ... \ ...................... $ 091 $ 08 § 08 $ 081
Earnings per share—diluted . . . . . S T $ 08 $ 08 $ 079 § 075

Net revenues in 2003 include $27 8 million of additional revenues received from Medicaid disproportionate
share hospital (“DSH”) funds in Texas and South Carolina. Of this amount, $6.3 million was recorded in the first
quarter $7.0 million in the second quarter $8.1 million in the third quarter and $6.4 million in the fourth quarter.
These amounts were recorded in pen&ds that we met all of the requirements to be entitled to these
reimbursements. Included in our reé_ul‘ts during the third quarter is a $7.8 million pre-tax gain ($4.4 million, net of
taxes and minority interest expense)i recorded on the sale of three radiation therapy centers and three medical
office buildings. Included in our results during the fourth quarter is a net pre-tax increase to income of $1.9
million ($1.2 million or $.02 per diluted share, net of taxes) consisting of the following: (i) a pre-tax increase of
$8.8 million ($5.6 million or $.08 per diluted share, net of taxes) resulting from the reversal of an accrued
liability (including accrued interest) Edl.\l‘e to a favorable Texas Supreme Court decision which reversed an
unfavorable 2000 jury verdict and 2Q0} appellate court decision; (ii) a pre-tax increase of $6.8 million ($4.3
million or $.07 per diluted share, netiof taxes) resulting from a gain realized on the disposition of an investment
in a health-care related company, and; \(iii) a pre-tax charge of $13.7 million ($8.7 million or $.13 per diluted
share, net of taxes) resulting from the write-down of the carrying value of an acute care pediatric hospital located

|
in Puerto Rico to its estimated reahzable value.
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions Assets

divested or
Balance at  Charges to Write-Off of transferred to  Balance
beginning  Costsand  Acquisitions  Uncollectible facilities at End
of Period Expenses of Business Accounts held-for- sale  of Period
Description (000s)
ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Year ended December 31,
2004 ... $56,371 $307,163  $14,448 $(302,071) $(4,530) $71,381
Year ended December 31,
2003 ... $59,144 $263,724 $ 293 $(266,790) — $56,371
Year ended December 31,
2002 .. $61,108 $231,362 $ 6,260 $(239,586) — $59,144

Included in the charges to costs and expenses are $11,080 and $12,415 for 2003 and 2002, respectively,
related to assets divested or transferred to facilities held-for-sale.
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‘ﬁ? ACUTE CARE HOSPITALS

Aiken Regional Medical Centers
Aiken, South Carolina
225 beds

Auburn Regional Medical Center
Auburn, Washington
149 beds

Central Montgomery Medical Center
Lansdale, Pennsylvania
150 beds

Chalmette Medical Center
Chalmette, Louistana
195 beds

Corona Regional Medical Center
Corona, California
228 beds

Desert Springs Hospital
Las Vegas, Nevada
346 beds

Doctors’ Hospital of Laredo
Laredo, Texas
180 beds

Edinburg Regional Medical Center
Edinburg, Texas
169 beds

Fort Duncan Medical Center
Eagle Pass, Texas
77 beds

The George Washington University Hospital
Washington, D.C.
371 beds

Lakeland Medical Pavilion,

a Campus of Methodist Hospital
New Orleans, Louisiana

54 beds

Lakewood Ranch Medical Center
Bradenion, Florida
120 Beds

Lancaster Community Hospital
Lancaster, California
117 beds

Manatee Memorial Hospital
Bradenton, Florida
319 beds

McAllen Medical Center and
McAllen Heart Hospital
McAllen, Texas

633 beds

Methodist Hospital
New Orleans, Louisiana
306 beds

Northern Nevada Medical Center
Sparks, Nevada
100 beds

Northwest Texas Healthcare System
Amarillo, Texas
447 beds

St. Mary’s Regional Medical Center
Enid, Oklahoma
277 beds

Southwest Healthcare System
Inland Valley Campus
Wildomar, California

80 beds

Southwest Healthcare Systemn
Rancho Springs Campus
Murrieta, Calilornia

96 beds

Spring Valley Hospital Medical Center
Las Vegas, Nevada
176 beds

Summerlin Hospital Medical Center
Las Vegas, Nevada
274 beds

Valley Hospital Medical Center
Las Vegas, Nevada
409 beds

Wellington Regional Medical Center
West Palm Beach, Florida
143 beds

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH CENTERS

Anchor Hospital
Atlanta, Georgia
84 beds

The Arbour Hospital
Boston, Massachusetts
118 beds

The BridgeWay
North Little Rock, Arkansas
08 beds

The Carolina Center for Behavioral Health
Greer, South Carolina
66 beds

Clarion Psychiatric Center
Clarion, Pennsylvania
74 beds




oV peds

Costal Harbor Treatment Center
Savannah, Georgia
112 beds

Del Amo Hospital
Torrance, California
166 beds

Fairmount Behavioral Health System
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
180 beds

Forest View Hospital
Grand Rapids, Michigan
62 beds

Fuller Memorial Hospital
South Attleboro, Massachusetts
82 beds

Glen Oaks Hospital
Greenville, Texas
54 beds

Good Samaritan Counseling Center
Anchorage, Alaska

Hamﬁton Hospital
Westhampton, New Jersey
100 beds

Hartgrove Hospital
Chicago, lllinois
128 beds

The Horsham Clinic
Ambler, Pennsylvania
146 beds

Hosgital San Juan Capestrano
Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico
108 beds

HRI Hospital
Brookline, Massachusetts
68 beds

KeyStone Center
Wallingford, Pennsylvania
119 beds

La Amistad Behavioral Health Services
Maitland, Florida
54 beds

Lakeside Behavioral Health System
Memphis, Tennessee
204 beds

Laurel Heights Hospital
Atlanta, Georgia
102 beds

The Meadows Psychiatric Center
Centre Hall, Pennsylvania
101 beds

Meridell Achievement Center
Austin, Texas
112 beds

The Midwest Center for Youth and Families
Kouts, Indiana
58 beds

North Star Children’s Hospital
Anchorage, Alaska
34 beds

North Star Counseling Centers
Anchorage, Alaska

North Star Hospital

Anchorage, Alaska

74 beds

Palmer Residential Treatment Center
Palmer, Alaska

29 beds

Parkwood Behavioral Health System
Olive Branch, Mississippi
112 beds

24 Deds

Peachford Behavioral Health System of Atlanta

Atlanta, Georgia
184 beds

Pembroke Hospital
Pembroke, Massachusetts
115 beds

Provo Canyon School ™+
Provo, Uta
242 beds

Ridge Behavioral Health System
Lexington, Kentucky
110 beds

Rivendell Behavioral Health Services
of Arkansas

Benton, Arkansas

77 beds

Rivendell Behavioral Health Services
of Kentucky

Bowling Green, Kentucky

72 beds

River Crest Hospital
San Angelo, Texas

80 beds

River Oaks Hospital

"New Orleans, Louisiana

126 beds:

Rockford Center
Newark, Delaware
72 beds

Roxbury
Shippensburg, Pennsylvania
48 beds

St. Louis Behavioral Medicine Institute
St. Louis, Missouri

Spring Mountain Treatment Center
Las Vegas, Nevada
82 beds

Stonington Institute
North Stonington, Connecticut
63 beds

Talbott Recovery Campus
Atlanta, Georgia

Timberlawn Mental Health System
Dallas, Texas
124 beds

Turning Point Care Center
Moultrie, Georgia
59 beds

Two Rivers Psychiatric Hospital
Kansas City, Missouri
80 beds

Westwood Lodge Hospital
Westwood, Massachusetts
133 beds

MEDI-PARTENAIRES (Paris/Bordeaux)

Clinique Ambroise Paré
Toulouse, France
198 beds

Clinique Bon Secours
Le Puy en Velay, France
96 beds

Clinique d’Aressy
Pau, France
179 beds

Clinique Ber%
Charenton le Pont, France
92 beds

2U peds

Clinique du Trocadéro
Paris, France

50 beds

~«.Clinique Montréal

A

Carcassonne, France
125 beds

Clinique Notre Dame
Thionville, France
73 beds

Clinique Pasteur
Bergerac, France
96 beds

Clinique Richelieu
Saintes, France
73 beds

Clinique Saint Augustin
Bordeaux, France
155 beds

Clinique Villette
Dunkerque, France
117 beds

Hopital Clinique Claude Bernard

Metz, France

224 beds

Polyclinique St. Jean

Montpellier, France

102 beds

AMBULATORY SURGERY CENTERS

OJOS/Eye Surgery Specialists of Puerto Rico
Santurce, Puerto Rico

Goldring Surgical Center
Las Vegas, Nevada

Northwest Texas Surgery Center
Amarillo, Texas

Providence Surgical and Medical Center
Laredo, Texas

Surgery Center at Wellington
West Palm Beach, Florida

Surgery Center of Midwest City
Midwest City, Oklahoma

Surgical Arts Surgery Center
Reno, Nevada

Surgical Center of South Texas
Edinburg, Texas
RADIATION ONCOLOGY CENTERS

Auburn Regional Center for Cancer Care
Auburn, Washington

Cancer Institute of Nevada
Las Vegas, Nevada

Carolina Cancer Center
Aiken, South Carolina
SPECIALIZED WOMEN’S
HEALTH CENTER

Renaissance Women’s Center of Edmond
Edmond, Oklahoma
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JU peds

Costal Harbor Treatment Center
Savannah, Georgia
112 beds

Del Amo Hospital
Torrance, California
166 beds

Fairmount Behavioral Health System
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
180 beds

Forest View Hospital
Grand Rapids, Michigan
62 beds

Fuller Memorial Hospital
South Attleboro, Massachusetts
82 beds

Glen Oaks Hospital
Greenville, Texas
54 beds

Good Samaritan Counseling Center
Anchorage, Alaska

HamEton Hospital
Westhampton, New Jersey
100 beds

Hartgrove Hospital
Chicago, Hlinois
128 beds

The Horsham Clinic
Ambler, Pennsylvania
146 beds

Hospital San Juan Capestrano
Rio Piedras, Puerto Rico
108 beds

HRI Hospital
Brookline, Massachusetts
68 beds

KeyStone Center
Wallingford, Pennsylvania
119 beds

La Amistad Behavioral Health Services
Maitland, Florida
54 beds

Lakeside Behavioral Health System
Memphis, Tennessee
204 beds

Laurel Heights Hospital
Atlanta, Georgia
102 beds

The Meadows Psychiatric Center
Centre Hall, Pennsylvania
101 beds

Meridell Achievement Center
Austin, Texas
112 beds

The Midwest Center for Youth and Families
Kouts, Indiana
58 beds

North Star Children’s Hospital
Anchorage, Alaska
34 beds

North Star Counseling Centers
Anchorage, Alaska

North Star Hospital

Anchorage, Alaska

74 beds

Palmer Residential Treatment Center
Palmer, Alaska

29 beds

Parkwood Behavioral Health System
Olive Branch, Mississippi
112 beds

52 beds

Peachford Behavioral Health System of Atlanta

Atlanta, Georgia
184 beds

Pembroke Hospital
Pembroke, Massachusetts
115 beds

Provo Canyon School ™~
Provo, Uta
242 beds

Ridge Behavioral Health System
Lexington, Kentucky
110 beds

Rivendell Behavioral Health Services
of Arkansas

Benton, Arkansas

77 beds

Rivendell Behavioral Health Services
of Kentucky

Bowling Green, Kentucky

72 beds

River Crest Hospital
San Angelo, Texas

80 beds

River Oaks Hospital
New Orleans, Louisiana
126 beds

Rockford Center
Newark, Delaware
72 beds'

Roxbury
Shippensburg, Pennsylvania
48 beds

St. Louis Behavioral Medicine Institute
St. Louis, Missouri

Spring Mountain Treatment Center
Las Vegas, Nevada
82 beds

Stonington Institute
North Stonington, Connecticut
63 beds

Talbott Recovery Campus
Atanta, Georgia

Timberlawn Mental Health System
Dallas, Texas
124 beds

Turning Point Care Center
Moultrie, Georgia
59 beds

Two Rivers Psychiatric Hospital
Kansas City, Missouri
80 beds

Westwood Lodge Hospital
Westwood, Massachusetts
133 beds

MEDI-PARTENAIRES (Paris/Bordeaux)

Clinique Ambroise Paré
Toulouse, France
198 beds

Clinique Bon Secours
Le Puy en Velay, France
96 beds

Clinique d’Aressy
Pau, France
179 beds

Clinique Berc%
Charenton le Pont, France
92 beds

20 beds

Clinique du Trocadéro
Paris, France
50 beds

~-Clinique Montréal

&

Carcassonne, France
125 beds

Clinique Notre Dame
Thionville, France
73 beds

Clinique Pasteur
Bergerac, France
96 beds

Clinigue Richelieu
Saintes, France
73 beds

Clinique Saint Augustin
Bordeaux, France
155 beds

Clinique Villette
Dunkerque, France
117 beds

Hopital Clinique Claude Bernard

Metz, France

224 beds

Polyclinique St. Jean

Montpellier, France

102 beds

AMBULATORY SURGERY CENTERS

OJOS/Eye Surgery Specialists of Puerto Rico
Santurce, Puerto Rico

Goldring Surgical Center
Las Vegas, Nevada

Northwest Texas Surgery Center
Amarillo, Texas

Providence Surgical and Medical Center
Laredo, Texas

Surgery Center at Wellington
West Palm Beach, Florida

Surdgery Center of Midwest City
Midwest City, Oklahoma

Surgical Arts Surgery Center
Reno, Nevada

Surgical Center of South Texas
Edinburg, Texas
RADIATION ONCOLOGY CENTERS

Auburn Regional Center for Cancer Care
Auburn, Washington

Cancer Institute of Nevada
Las Vegas, Nevada

Carolina Cancer Center
Aiken, South Carolina
SPECIALIZED WOMEN'S
HEALTH CENTER

Renaissance Women’s Center of Edmond
Edmond, Oklahoma
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CORPORATE

Alan B. Miller
President and Chief Executive Officer

Steve G. Filton
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

O. Edwin French*
Senior Vice President

Michael Marquez
vice President

Marc D. Miller
vice President

Debra K. Osteen
vice President

Guy F. Pedelini
vice President

Richard C. wright
vice President

Charles F. Boyle
Controller

Bruce R. Gilbert
General Counsel

Cheryl K. Ramagano
Treasurer

Eileen D. Bove
Assistant Vice President

John Paul Christen
Assistant Vice President

Donald J. Pyskacek
Assistant Vice President

Linda L. E. Reino
Assistant Vice President

EXECUTIVE OFFICES

Universal Corporate Center
367 South Gulph Road
P.O. BOoX 61558

King of Prussia, PA 19406
(610) 768-3300

Management Subsidiary
UHS of Delaware, Inc.

REGIONAL OFFICES

Development

810 Travelers Boulevard
Suite -2

Summerville, SC 29485
(843) 486-0653

western Region

1635 Village Center Circle
Suite 200

Las Vegas, NV 89134
(702) 360-9040

Universal Health Network
639 Isbell Road

Suite 400

Reno. NV 89509

(775) 356-1 159

DIVISION

Acute Care

Michael Marquez
Vice President—western Region

Marc D. Miller
Vice President—Eastern Region

Daniel P. McLean
Group Director

Moody L. Chisholm
Group Director

Mary Hoover
Vice President—Universal Health
Network

Behavioral Health

Debra K. Osteen
President

Martin C. Schappell
vice President

Barry L. Pipkin
vice President

E. Daniel Thomas
Vice President

Roy A. Ettlinger
Vice President

Craig L. NucKles
Group Director

Gary M. Gilberti
Group Director

Corporate Information

ANNUAL MEETING

June 2, 2005, 10:00 a.m.
Universal Corporate Center
367 South Guiph Road
King of Prussia, PA 19406

COMPANY COUNSEL

Fulbright & Jaworski, L.L.P.
New York, New York

AUDITORS

KPMG LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

TRANSFER AGENT AND
REGISTRAR

Mellon Investor Services
85 Challenger Road
Ooverpeck Centre
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660
Telephone: 1-800-526-0801
www.melloninvestor.com

Please contact Mellon Investor
Services for prompt assistance on
address changes. lost certificates,
consolidation of duplicate
accounts or related matters.

Behavioral Health (continued)

Carothers H. Evans
Assistant vice President,
Development

Karen E. Johnson
Assistant Vice President,
Clinical Services

Ambulatory

Michael Urbach
Senior Vice President

Médi-Partenaires (Paris/Bordeaux)

Frédéric Dubois
Président Directeur Général

Sylvie Péquignot
Directeur Général

* retired in 2005

INTERNET ADDRESS

The Company can be accessed
on the World wide web at:
http/Awvww.uhsinc.com

LISTING

Class B Common Stock:New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol UHS.

PUBLICATIONS

For copies of the Company's annual
report, Form 10-K, Form 10-Q,
quarterly reports, and proxy
statements, please call 1-800-874-5819,
or write Investor Relations,

Universal Health Services, Inc.
Universal Corporate Center

367 South Gulph Road

FPO. Box 61558

King of Prussia, PA 19406

FINANCIAL COMMUNITY
INQUIRIES

The Company welcomes inquliries
from members of the financial
community seeking information
on the Company. These should
be directed to Steve Filton,

Chief Financial Officer. 99



Universal Health Services, Inc.
Universal Corporate Center
P.O. Box 61558
367 South Gulph Road
King of Prussia, PA 19406




